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Journey of Success

Hum MNetwork Uimited was launched on Januvary 17, 2008, with its flagship channel Hum TV in 2005 to revive the demand for
guality content in Pakistan at a tims when Indian serials were quite popular amongst the masses. Since then, Hum Network has
proudly prodiced ground-breaking serials and dramas that are highly popular in the South Asian diaspora. We have not only
provided the audisnce with quality entertainment but also educated them on social issues with dramas like Udaari and Sammi
which are now gaining international pratse and recognition.

HUM was alzo launched in the Middle East and North African region via its beam HUM MENA. Which has not only provided
superior content but we also believe in-showcasing the true essence of the region. Our localized programming and presence ai
local events prove Hum MENA te 4 be great platform for people from different countries and regions. The channel’s high- gquality
programming and launch of specialized channels globally, marks the beginning of even better things to come.

Hum Europe won the Best Urdu Channel Award at the Asian Viewers Television Awards 2015 and 2017, Hum Europe was also
nominated in 2015 and 2016 as “TV channsl of the vear™ in Asian Media Awards.

In 2006 Hum Metwork launched Pakistan's only successful 24-hour live cooking channel. Many competitors came but wars
unable to compete with Masala Tv and were discontinued. With an excellent team of experienced and talented chefs and home
cooks, Masala TV became the only channel in itz cateqgory out growing competition. With its intermational launch Masalaleads in
itz category in Hindi' urdu speaking diaspora. Mazala Film Festival attracts hundreds of thousands of foctfall in Karachi and
Lahora The event provides them with an opportunity to interact with their favorite chefs and enjoy a fun day with their families.

Hum Films was launched in 201 4 which instantly became the first choice for local & international film producers and studios for
distribution and marketing of movies in Pakistan. In the pre COVID-13 era Hum Films was the leading box office banner in
Paliiztan.

Hum Metwork has always played a Key role in supporiing and developing the fashion industry in Pakistan. For the past few yvears
we have regularly been holding events like Bridal Couturs Week, Hum Style awards, Hum Showcase and Miss Vest Pakistan
contest which give a platfiorm to the entertainment fraternity to showecase their talent and gain recognition.

Hum MNetwork has been constantly syndicating its dramas internationally. After syndicating the content to Zes in India, Celore &
Rishtey in the UK and MBG in UAE; Hum Network has touched the Malaysian borders by syndicating blockbuster drama ==nial
‘Zindagi Gulzar Hai' on mainstream Malaysian channel “TV3'. Mauritius Broadcast Corporation (8 Mauritius based channel} and
Sharjah TV (UAE bazed channel) are also acquiring content on regular basis.

HUM network has a well-established digital wing to entertain the everincreasing number of broadband users within the country
as well as the audience worldwide, who are increasingly turning to online sources for viewing and purchasing of content through
video on demand platiorms.

HLUIM Metwork has been the first Pakistani channel to have its content available on MNetflix and Iffix, first to collaborate with Eros
Mow and first to have direct channels on YouTube & Daily Motion. Hum Metwerk has strong footholds on social media platforms
likee YouTube with owver 16 million subscribers and Facebook with 10 million followers respectively.

Maszala TV Food Magazine is a monthly magazine for all food lovers who want to collect their favourite recipes by their favourite
Mazala chefs. It is a home maker's guida to becoming a domestic expert

Hum MNetwork launched it 24 hour news brand Hum Mews in May 2018, Dedicated to professional journalism, we aim to report
the truth without sensationalism and become the audiences’ preferred source of trusted Information. Hum Mews has recently
launched inthe UK and has started to0 gain attention among Pakistanis residing there due to its unigue, independent, investigative
and inspirational approach. Hom News is the fastest growing channel in the news category in Pakistan.

Hum Network has adopted a diversified business strategy by investing in ventures like HUM Mart, an online shopping platform
which offered hassle free grocery shopping experience.

Hum fwards has bean the un-official ambassadorof Pakistan throughout the world attracting thousands of sxpatriates in Dubai,
Toronto and Houston. Hum Awards iz now looking at London and New York as next destinations. Hum MNetwork alse collaborates
with IPPA Awards to conduct events in UK, Norway and Turkey. Hum Women's Award is one of its Kind recognition of women
leaders not only in Pakistan but all over the world. It has been appreciated by President of Pakistan and foreign delegates in
Pakiztan. The last event was held in the President House a= first ever private event held in Pakistan! media

Hum Metwork is synonymous with creativity, professionalism and guality. it is one of the most beloved brand of Pakistan and
prides itself in giving the best image of Pakistan.
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Notice Of The 17" Annual General Meeting

Motice is hersby given that the 17th Annual General Meeting of HUM Network Limited will be held on Tuesday, November 23,
2029 at 3:00 p.m:. at ICAP Auditorium, Chartered Accountants Avenue, ICAP Clifton, Karachi to transact the following
businesses:

Ordinary Business:

1- To confirm the minutes of the 16th Annual General Mesting hetd on July 16, 2021 and 9th Extracrdinary Genaral Mesting hald
on August:22, 2020

2- To receive, consider and adopt Annual Audited Fihancial Statements of the Company together with the Directors’ and
Auditors' reports thereon for the year ended June 30, 2021 together with the Audited Congolidated Financial Statements of
the Company and the Auditors’ Report thereon for the vear ended June 30, 2021.

3- Toappoint Auditors of the Company for the financial year ending June 30, 2022 and te fix their remuneration, The Board of
Directors, on the recommendation of Audit Committee of the Company, has proposad the name of retiring auditors M's. EY
Ford Rhodes, Chartered Accountants, for their appointment as exdernal aoditors for the year ending June 30, 2022

By Order of the Board
Sd/-
Dated: November 2, 2021 Mohsin Nasem
Place: Karachi Company Secretary

Notes:
1. Notice of Book Closure:

The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from: November 16, 2021 to November 23, 2021 (both days
inclusive). Transfer received in order by our Share Registrar, Mfs: FD. Registrar Services (Pvt]) Lid. 17th Floor, Saima Trade
Tower-A, 1. Chundrigar Road Karachi-74000 at the close of business on November 18, 2021 will be considered in time for any
entittement, as recommended by the Board of Dirsctors and for the purpose of attending the AGM.

2. Coronavirus Contingency - Participation in AGM through electronic
means
il Inview of the Coronavirus situation, the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) has,; vide Circular Mo. 04

dated February 158, 2021 directed listed companies to provide facility for attending general meetings through electronic
means as a regular featurs.

i) Considering the above the Company has made arrangement to provide wideo-link facility to membsrs who wish to
participation in the AGM through slectronic means.

iy To attend the AGM through video-link, Members are requested to register their following particulars by =ending an email at
mohsin.nasem@hum tv with subject Video-Link Registration fer HUM AGM scheduled on November 23, 2021°

LTI Folic f CDC Murmber of CMNICS Cell/Mobile Email ID
Member (s) Account Shares Held Passport Number
Number/ Number
CDC
Participant ID

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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The Video link and login credentials will be shared with the Members whose emails, containing all the required particulars as
mentioned, ars received at the given emall address before the close ef business hoursi.e., 05:00 p.m. on Movember 15, 2021

In cass any Members who want to attend the AGM personally are advised to follow SOPs for COVID-19 as prescribed by the
Government.

Forany queres. the Members may pleass contact at the aforesaid email.

Appointment of Proxies and Attending AGM:

& member eligible to attend and vote at the Meeting may appeint ancther member as hisfher proxy to attend, and vote
instead of him/her,

A blank instrument of proxy applicable for the mesting is being provided with the notice sent to members. Further copies of
the instrument of proxy may be obtained from the registered office of the Company during nommal office hours or can be
downloaded from the Company's website.

A duly complsted instrument of proxy and the power of attorney or other authority {if any), under which it is:signed ora
notarized certified copy of such power or autharity must, to be valid, be deposited at the registered office not less than 48
working hours before the time of the mesting. Attested copies of valid CNIC or the passport of the member and the Prosy
chall be furnished with the Prosxy Form.

In'case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ Resolution / Power of Attorney with specimen signature shall be submitted
with proogy form.

The owners of the physical shares and the shares registered in the name of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Ltd.
(CDC) and / or their proxies are required to preduce their original Computerized Mational Identity Card (CNIC} or Passport {in
case of forsign nationals) for identification purpose at the time of attending the meeting.

CDC account holders will further have to follow the under mentioned guidslines as |aid down in Circular No. 1, dated January
26, 2000 issued by the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan

A. For Atiending the Mesting: B. For Appointing Proxies:

0 In case of individuals, the account holder or {l In case of individusgls, the account holder or
sub-account holder and/ or the person whoss sub-account holder and / or the person whose
securitiess are in group account and their securities are in group account. and their
registration detaile are uploaded as per the registration details ars uploaded as per the
Regulations, shall authenticate his identity by Regulations, shall submit the proxy form as
showing his original Compuierized National per the above requirsmeants.

Identity Card [CNIC), or original passport at
the time of attending the mesting. {ii The prooy form =hall be witnessed by two
persons whose names, addresses and CNIC

(1} In case of corporate entity, the Board of numbers shall be mentioned on the form.
Directors’ resolution’ power of attorney with
specimen signature of the nomines shall be (iii) Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the
produced {unless it has bsen provided eardier) benaficial owners and the proxy shall be
the time of the meeting. furnished with the proy form.

{n) The proxy shall produce his original CNIC or
original passport at the time of mesting.

{v} In case of corporate entity, the Board of Direc-
tors' resolution’ power of atiomey with speci-
men signature shall be submitted (unlezs it
has been provided earlier] along with proxy
form to the Company.

In case of attending mesting by proxy through slectronic means iLe., video-link facility, Cell Number and Email |d of proxy,
shall be provided on the duly signed proxy form.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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4. Video-Conferencing Facility for attending AGM

if members holding ten parcent of the total paid up capital, are resident in any other city, the company shall provids the facility of
videa-confarencing io 2uch members for attending annual general maeting of the campany, if =0, required by such memberz in
writing 1o the company at least seven days (7] befors the daie of the mesting.

The Company will intimate members regarding venue of conference facility at least & days before the date of general mesting
along with complete information necessary to enable them to access such facility

Consent for Video-Conferencing Facility

lWe, of . being a member of Hum Network
Limited, holder of ordinary share (s) as per Register Folio/CDC Account
Mo hereby opt for video conference facility at , for
pariicipation at the Annual General Mesting o be held on November 23, 2027 or any adjournment
thereot

Date:

Signature of member(s)

5. Change in Members Addresses:

Members are requested to notify any changes in their addresses immediately to the Share Registrar Mfs. FD. Registrar Services
(Pvt.) Lid. 17th Flocr, Saima Trade Tower-A, || Chundrigar Road Karachi-74000.

6. Submission of Copies of Valid CNICs/NTN;

Members ars requesied to submit a copy of their valid CNICs/NTN Certificates along with the folio numbers to the Company's
Share Regigtrar, if not already provided, otherwise payment of dividend would be withheld in terms of section 243 of the
Companies Act, 2017 ('the Act'} and clause B of the Companies (Distribution of Dividends) Regulations, 2017 (the Regulations").

7. Availability of Financial Statements and Reports on the Website:

The Annual Report of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2021 has been placed on the Company's website at the below
link: httpfwww. humnetwork tw/Bnnual_Financial. Reports hitml

8. Circulation of Annual Financial Statements for the year ended
June 30, 2021 through CD/DVD/USB:

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan {(SECD) vide SEO No_ 470{)72016 dated May 31, 2016, has allowed listed
companies to circulate their Annual Audited Accounts (i.e., the annual balance shest and profit and loss account, auditor's report
and director's report) o fts members through CO/DVD/USE at their registered addresses instead of sending them in hard copies,
sublect to approval obtained from sharsholders in General Meeting. Accordingly, the company has obtained approval from
members in the 12th Annual Gensral Mesting held on October 20, 2076. Pursuant to the approval of shareholders, as aforesaid,
the Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year endad June 30, 2021, are being circulated to the members
threugh CO/ODVD/LSE.

9. Transmission of Annual Financial Statements and Reports and
notice of meeting through Email:

in terms of SRO Mo TET/2014 dated September 8, 2014, shareholders can opt to obtain annual balance shest and profit and
loss account, auditer's report and dirsctors report ete. afongwith the notice of Annual General Meeting through email. The
Companies Act, 2017 also allow electronic circulation of annual financial statements and reports therson. Accordingly, we are
pleas=d to offer this facility to our members who desirs to receive Annual Financial Statements and Notices of the Company
through e-mail in future.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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For the convenience of shareholders, a Standard Request Form has been made available at our website -www humnetwority,
to opt receiving of future annual reports through emall or in hard copies or otherwise request for-any hard copy of any accounts.
The scanned copy of the duly filled & signed form may be emailed fo the Company Secretary-at mohsin.nasem@hum: tv or the
same can be submitted through pesticouner to Company’s Share Registrar - Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited,
CDC House, Biock B, SMCHS, Main Shahrah-=-Faisal, Karachi — 74400,

Members who do not provide their email ids or request for a hard copy shall continue to receive their future Annuwal Financial
Statements and reports through C0V DVO/USE at the registered address.

10. E-DIVIDEND MANDATE (MANDATORY)

Under section 242 of Companies Act, 2007{Act), every listed company is required to pay dividend if any to their members
compul=sority through electronic mode by dirsctly crediting the same in their bank account provided by them. In terms of SRO No.
1145{)/2017 dated 06 Movember 2017, it i= mandatory for shareholdsrs to provide their bank account details to receive their cash
dividend directly into their bank accounts, failing which the company shall be bound to withhold dividend of those members who
do not provide their bank details.

All members are required to provide to the Company's Share Registrar, particulars relating to name, folio number, bank account
number, title of account, complete mailing address of the bank. COC account holders should submit their request directly to their
broker (participantVCOC. A Form is avaifable at the Registered Office of the Company and the same are alsc placed on the
Company's website.

11. Unclaimed Dividend / Shares

Pursuant to Section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017, any shares issued or dividend declared by the company. which remain
unclaimed or unpaid for a pericd of three years from the date it became dus and payable shall vest with the Federal Governmeant
after compliance of procedures prescribed under the Companies Act, 2017

All valued members of the Company, who by any reason, could not claim their dividend/shares, if any, are requested 1o contact
Company's Share Registrar, to file their claims with Company’s Share Registrar for any unclaimed dividend or shares outstanding
in their name.

In compliance with Section 244 of the Companies Act. 2017, after having completed the stipulated procedure, all such dividend
outstanding for a period of 3 years or mere from the daie due and payable shall be deposited to the Federal Government in case
of unclaimed dividend and in case of shares, ghall be deliverad to the SECP

12. Conversion of physical shares into book-entry form

Pursuant to Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 every existing company shall be reguired to replace its physical shares with
book-entry form in a manner as may be specified and from the date notified by the Commission, within a period not exceeding
four years from the commencement of the Companies Act, 2017

The shareholders having physical shares are encouraged to convert their physical shares inte book-entry form by depositing
shares into Central Depository Company Pakistan Limited by cpening COC sub-account with any broker or investor accounts
directhy with CDC.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED




Pattern Of Shareholdig

As on June 30, 2021

Number OFf Shareholders Shareholding Siab Total Shares Held
304 1 o 100 | 3407
763 101 o 500 361262
902 501 o 1000 ; 985445
2574 1001 o 5000 8100928
1238 5001 - 10000 _' 10516005
A7 10001 to 15000 5384470
a7e 15001 to 20000 | 7178402
247 20001 to 35000 f 5850000
189 ' 25001 “to 30000 ' 5449786
108 30001 to 35000 2534650
108 35001 to 40000 4222100

51 40001 - 45000 f 2313010
196 45001 1o 50000 ' 9711750
43 50001 o 55000 2289501
47 ' 55001 o 60000 3765600
25 60001 o 65000 1567500
32 | 65001 o 70000 I 2191065
27 70004 o 75000 : 2001500
34 75001 to 80000 1893500
12 80001 to 85000 ? 1001000
19 85001 to 30000 1685500
1 90001 to 25000 | 1499630
124 95001 fo 100000 | 12383700
: 100001 to 105000 ' 823500
105001 - 110000 | 977500
14 110001 o 115000 1603000
15 ' 115001 o 120000 | 1780500
g 120001 o 125000 ' 1000000
10 125001 - 130000 | 1280500
8 130001 o 135000 804500
a 135001 o 140000 ‘ 1257500
3 140001 o 145000 ' 430500
29 145001 o 150000 | 4343468
4 150001 to 155000 615500
A 155001 10 160000 634950
6 16000 to 165000 ' 980500
10 165001 to 170000 | 1694000
g 170001 o 175000 1567000
7 175001 to 180000 ’ 1245000
2 180001 o 185000 363000
6 185001 to 190000 1132000
7 190001 to 195000 1353000
30 185001 to 200000 ‘ 5399000
k& 1 200001 = 205000 ' 202000

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Number OFf Shareholders Shareholding Siab Total Shares Held
3 205001 o 210000 | 624500
2 210001 o 315000 423000
2 315001 o 220000 : 438850
5 220001 o 205000 1121500
2 225001 - 230000 455500
5 230001 to 235000 | 233000
4 235001 io 240000 | 240000
< 240001 to 245000 f 241500
11 ' 245001 to 250000 ;' 2739500
2 250001 to 255000 ; 506000
1 255001 to 260000 260000
3 26000 - 385000 ;' 783500
4 270001 1o 275000 ' 1096500
3 275001 to 380000 | 840000
2 280001 o 285000 567500
2 285001 - 280000 " 578000
15 | 295001 o 300000 I 4500000
2 300001 to 305000 | 03500
5 305001 to 310000 615000
2 315001 to 320000 ? 640000
5 320001 1o 325000 46000
2 325001 to 330000 | 656000
3 345001 to 350000 | 1050000
5 355001 to 360000 ' 1791250
2 370001 to 375000 ; 750000
1 385001 1o 390000 388500
& 395001 to 400000 , 2400000
. 400001 10 405000 403000
1 410001 to 415000 | 415000
2 420001 1o 425000 850000
1 425001 to 430000 i 430000
: 445007 o 450000 ' 448000
1 450001 to 455000 | 450500
1 455001 to 460000 456000
1 460001 to 465000 462000
2 470007 to 475000 " 948000
] 475001 to £80000 | 477000
14 495004 to 500000 _ 7000000
1 515001 to 520000 519500
2 520001 to 525000 1049900
3 530001 1o 535000 532000
2 550001 o 565000 , 1106000
2 555001 1o 560000 ‘ 1113000

ks 1 570001 to 575000 ’ 575000

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Shareholding Slab

Total Shares Held

1 575001 o 580000 580000
3 595001 o 600000 1800000
1 620001 o 625000 622000
1 630001 o 635000 633150
1 645001 to 650000 650000
5 650001 to 655000 652000
1 660001 to 665000 660200
2 670001 o 675000 1347000
1 680001 to 685000 683500
< 690001 to 95000 533600
1 720001 to 725000 724000
1 730001 to 735000 735000
1 750001 1o 755000 750500
1 770001 to 775000 75000
1 775001 to 780000 780000
1 780001 - 785000 783000
3 | 795001 o 300000 2400000
1 820001 to 825000 825000
1 845001 to 850000 250000
2 850001 to 855000 1703500
1 855001 1o 860000 256500
P 895001 to 300000 3537000
2 945001 to 950000 1900000
1 960001 to 365000 965000
1 980001 to 985000 081500
8 995001 1o 1000000 3000000
1 1015001 to 1020000 1017060
1 1020001 1o 1025000 1025000
1 1025001 to 1030000 1026500
1 1070007 1o 1073000 1075000
3 1095001 to 1100000 3300000
1 1110001 1o 1115000 1115000
1 1135001 to 1140000 1136500
1 1310001 to 1315000 1311000
1 1415001 10 1420000 1418000
1 148000+ to 1485000 1482000
3 1495001 to 1500000 4500000
1 1540001 to 1525000 1541000
1 1595001 to 1600000 1600000
1 1650001 to 1655000 1653750
3 1745007 1o 1750000 1750000
3 1795001 o 1800000 1800000
1 1965001 o 1970000 1970000

i 1 1995001 to 2000000 2000000

HUM NETWORK LIMITED

17




Annual Report 2021

Number OFf Shareholders Shareholding Siab Total Shares Held
1 2040001 o 2015000 | 2011000
P 2025001 o 5030000 2026500
1 2245001 o 3250000 : 2348500
1 5290001 o 3295000 2282500
1 2495001 - 2500000 2500000
5 2660001 to 5665000 9660500
1 2990001 to 2985000 | 2993000
4 3000001 to 3005000 f 3001500
1 ' 3095001 to 3100000 _' 3100000
1 3230001 to 3235000 ; 3234000
1 3545001 to 3550000 3550000
1 3750001 - 3755000 f 3753000
1 3795001 1o 3800000 ' 3796500
1 4100001 o 4105000 | 4104000
1 4310001 to 4315000 4311500
1 4395001 - 4400000 4400000
1 | 4875001 o 4880000 4877500
2 4995001 to 5000000 | 10000000
1 5580001 to 5585000 5584000
1 755001 to 6760000 ? 760000
1 7845001 1o 7850000 7848000
1 8195001 t 8200000 | 8200000
1 10045001 to 10050000 : 10047000
1 11545001 to 14550000 ' 11543000
1 11970001 to 11975000 | 11973500
1 12995001 1o 13000000 13000000
1 13680001 to 13685000 , 13684500
. 25795001 10 25800000 25799000
1 36445001 to 26450000 | 28450000
1 26585001 1o 26590000 26587500
1 30230001 1 30235000 ‘ 30232501
1 3589500+ 1o 35900000 ' 25900000
1 50865001 to 50870000 | 50865620
1 65395001 to 66000000 66000000
1 70675001 to 70680000 70680000
1 526060001 1o 558965000 ' 336061490

8502 | 945,000,000
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Additional Information
As of June 30, 2021

| Shareholders' Category

Sharahul:hrs! Shares Held Parcantaga'

_r Directors, heir Spouse(s) and Minor Children
Duraid Qureshi

| 229 622,000

B!
|

3 24.30
Sultana Siddigui 2 219,860 0.02
| Mazhar Ul Haq Siddiqui 1 10 0.00
. Mehtab Akbar Rashdi y. 10 0.00
Asif Yasin Malik 1 10 0.00
Schail Ansar 1 1,000 0.00
Shunaid Qureshi 1 50,865,620 5.38
| MUHAMMMAD AYUB 1 10,000 0.00
Mabigha Masser Masood 1 10 0.00
Associated Companies, Undertakings and related parties 1 35,800,000 3.80
Executives 3 566,750 0.06
Public Sector Companies and Corporations - - -
Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Mon-Banking
Finance Companies, Insurance,
Takaful, Modaraba and Pension Funds 9 45,697,000 4.94
Mutual Funds 12 43,841,000 4.64
General Public
' a. Local B376 257,641,219 27.26
b. Foreign 4 81,000 0.01
Foreign Companies 2 505,000 0.05
Others 83 279 049 511 2953
Totals 8502 945,000,000 100.00

 Shareholders holding 10% or more voting interest

Share Held Percentage |

Mr. Duraid Qureshi

229,622,000

24.30
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Six Years At A Glance

Key Financial Dat

OPERATING DATA

Fewvanue-MNat
Cost of production
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Graphical Presentation

Analysis of Statement of Financial Position and Profit & Loss Account
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Break-up of Revenue Streams

105

N Advertisement revenus - net
B Production revenue - net

W Digita! revenue - net

u subscription income - net
mOther income

u Gain on sale of MCA held for sale

Break-up of Cost
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B cost of production

B Transmission cost

W Distribution costs

B Administraive expenses
o Other expensas

B Finance costs

B Taxation

B Advertisement revenus - net
® Production revenus - net

¥ Digital revenue - net

& Subscription income - net

® Film distribution revenue - net

® Other Income

W Cost of production

B Transmission cost
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= Administrative expenses
B Other expenses

B Finance costs

B TaxatEon
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Met Revenue
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Breakup Value Per Share
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Building a better
working world

Independent Auditors’ Review Report
To the members of HUM Network Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in the Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed ths enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governancs)
Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations), prepared by the Board of Directors of HUM Network Limited (the Company) for the year
ended 30 June 2021 in accordance with the reguirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsibility is o
review wheather the Statement of Compliance reflacts the status of the Company's compliancs with the provisions of the
Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is
limited primarily to inguines of the Company’s personnel and review of vanous documents prepared by the Company to comply
with the Regulations.

As a part'of our audit of the financizl statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and intemal control
systems sufficient to plan the sudit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board
of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all rsks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such intemal
controis, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks

The Regulaticns require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit Committes,
place befors the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and have
ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors
upon recommendation of the Audit Committes.

Basad on our reéview, nothing has come to cur attention which causes us to befieve that the Statément of Compliance does not
appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance; in all material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations a=
applicable to the Company for the vear ended 30 June 2021,

Further, we highlight below instances of non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations as reflected in the paragraph
18 in the Statement of Compliance:

Paragraph Description

18ie) The Company was unable te comply with the regulations 27, 28 and 34(1) of the Regulations with
respect to the time in which these were to be conducied. Subseguent to the SECP clarification, these
were canducted immediately after the clarification.

Sdi-
Ey Ford Rhodes
Chartered Accountanis
Place: Karachi
Date: October 22, 2021
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Statement Of Compliance With The Listed
Companies (Code Of Corporate Governence)
Regulations, 2019 (“The Regulations™)

HUM Network Limited (“the Company™)
for the vear ended June 30, 2021
The Company has complied with the reguirements of the Regulations in the following manner

4

per the following (As at June 30 2021):

'-Lil

. The total of number of dirsctors are O

Six (6)

Female Three (3)

2. The composition of the board is as follows (8= at June 30, 2021)

Category

Independent director Mr. Schail Ansar
Ms. Nabigha Nasser Masood
Mr. Muhammad Ayub Younus Adhi

Mon-exscutive direciors Mr. Mazhar ul Hag Siddigul
Mr. Shunaid Qurash
Mrs. Mahtab Akbar Rashdi
Lt Gen.(R) Asif Yasin Malik

Executive directors Ms. Sultana Siddigui
Mr. Duraid Qureshi

Female directors Ms. Sultana Siddigui
Mrs. Mahizb Akbar Rashdi
Ms. Nabigha Masser Masood

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them s:serving as a Director on more than seven listed companies, including this

he Company has prepared a code of conduct and has

(a1]

nsured that appropraie steps have been taken to dissenunate it
throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures;

he Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant pelicies of the Company
The Bo

o

nard has ensured that complste record of particulars of the significant policies along with their dates of approval o

updating is maintained by the Company

B Al the powers of the Board have been duly sxercized and decizionz on relevant matters have besn takien by Board /

f the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) and these Regulations;

e

7. The mestings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman. The Board has complied with the requirements of the Act

and the Regulations with respect to freguency, recording and circulating minutes of mesting of Board;
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8. The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with the Act and the

Regulations:
8. The Company is compliant with the requirements of Directors’ Training Program’ provided in these Regulations. All the

Dirsctors except one have either attended the required training in prior years or stand exempted, as per critena mentioned
in the Code;

10. The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Cfficer, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, including
their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with requirements of the Regulations;

11. Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statemeant= before approval of the Board:

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of mambers given below:

a Aodit Commities b. Human Resource and Remuneration Committes
Mr. Sohail Anzar — Chairman {Independent) Mr. Sohail Ansar — Chairman (Independent)
Wir: Shunaid Gureshi (Non-Executive) Msz. Sultana Siddigul (Executive)
Mrs. Mahtab Akbar Rashdi (Non-Executive) Mr=. Mahtab Akbar Rashdi (Non-Executive)

Lt Gen. (R} Asif Yasin Malik (Mon-Executive)

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committess have been formed, documented and advised to the commities for
compliancs;

14. The frequency of the meetings of the committees were as follows:

a Audit Commities — One (1) quartedy mesting during the financial yvear ended June 30, 2021

b. Human Resource and Remuneration Committes — No mesting during the financial year ended June 30, 2021.

15. The Board has =et up an effective internal audit function and has also outsourced the internal audit function to Mfs. KPMG
Tasser Hadi & Co. Chartered Accountants who are considered suitably gualified and experienced for the purpose and are
conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company;

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the Cuality
Control Revizw program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of
Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidsfines an
code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Charterad Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm
invalved in the audit are not a closs relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the chief executive

officer, chief financial officer, head of internal audit, company secretary or director of the company;

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not besn appointed to provide other services except in
accordance with the Act, these Regufations or any other regulatery requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they
have cbserved IFAC guidslines in this regard; and

18. We confirm that all requirements of regulations including 3, 6, 7, 8, 32,33 and 36 of the Regulations have been complisd
with except 27, 28 and 34(1) due the following reasons:

a The term of Board expired on August 22, 2020 and fresh election was scheduled for August 2020, Since the number of
eligible candidates were egual to the number of directors fixed for election, the Company made the announcemeant on
August 13, 2020 under section 159{4) of the Companies Act, 2017. The aforesaid election of directors was questionsd
by the insligible candidates. Conssguently, the elected direciors also filed Suit The Honourable Sindh High Court
through Order dated: 21.08.2020 has directed the Company that the elections scheduled to be held on August 22,2020
would be postponed and rescheduled subject to the final decision by the learned single Judge of CMA Neo: 6787 of 2020
in Suit No. 968/2020.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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b. Due to the pending procesedings and various interim onders being in the field, the Company was not in a position to
decide as to whether the previous board can still approve the accounts or meeting of the new board will need to be

called for such purpose.

c. The Company scught clarfication from Securties and Exchange Commission of Pakistan az well-as filed an application
before the Hon'ble High Court of Sindh as to whether the Company can hold a board mesting for the approval of the

financial statement and convening the annual gensral mesting.

d.  On that the Commission has provided clarification that the previous board can continue to act in the performance of its
functions. The aforesald letter of the Commission has been placed on the record of the Hon'bie High Court of Sindh
during the hearing on May 24, 2021 and was taken on record by the Hon'ble High Court of Sindh in the presence of the

counsefs of the parties.

&. Due to the above mentioned facts, the Company was unable to comply with the regulations 27, 28 and 34(1) of the
Regulaticns with respect to the tims in which these were to be conducted. Subsequent to'the SECP clanfication, these

wers conducted immediately after the clarification.

,r"
DURAID QURESHI Date: QOctober 22, 2021 MAZHAR-UL-HAG SIDDIQWI
Chief Executive Place: Karachi Chairman & Director
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Chairman’s
Review Report

| am pleased to present annual review as Chairman of the Board of Directors of HUM Network Limited for the year ended June
n

isclosures are accurate an‘i T"..i‘_; !

nmittes particul

nnual evaluation of the Board of E '=-*t-*='e

rmance and the C

Mr. Mazhar-ul-Hag Siddigqui

- s NIE o 1 Pl |
Chairman of the Board

Date: October 22, 2021
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Directors’ Report

The Directors of Hum Metwork Limited (HNL) present the Annual Repart together with the Company’s audifed financial statemant
for the year ended 30 June 2021,

Financial Performance

Fr2021 was an unprecedentsd year on all counts, and it challenged us at several levels. Despite the disruption caused by the
COVMID-19 pandemic, we tried our best to ensure normal operations and were-able to insulate the business from the economic
slowdown. During the vear, our net revenues increased by 18% due to positive growth in all revenue streams especially the
subscription revenue which witnessed 'a comparable growth of 46% from last year. This shows the resilience of our business and
our ability to navigate temporary setbacks created by external factors howsver, as the competition in all the segments we operate
in remainzsd intense, we did not reduce our investments in guality content

The gmss profit of the Company increased by As. 838 million compared to last year resulting in gross profit margin of 37%
{FY2020: 21.3%). The reason of significant increase was mainly due to efficient cost management strategies and effective cost
cuttings which resulted in maintaining the cost within the reguired parameters.

The Company eamed a profit after tax of Rs. 1,014 million in FY2021 as compared 1o loss after tax of Re_ 113 million in FY2020
rezulting in 2amings per share of Be. 1.07 in FY2021 compared 1o loss per share'of Re. 0120

Principal Activities

HML iz undoubtedly one of the leading media networks of Pakistan and has predominantly been an entertainment provider for
more than a decade now HUM is already Pakistan's most admired media brand, and our content reaches millions of people
through ocur domestic and international bouquet of channels and multiple distribution platforms worldwide, films, digital, print
media-and e events. Broadcasting portfolio consists of satellite channels namsly HUM TV, HUM MNews, HUM Sitaray, HUM
Masala and HUM Werld {including separate beams for North Amenca, UK & Middles East}

The External Environment

The cutbreak of Corcnavirus ({COVID-19) pandemic globally and in Pakiztan caused significant disturbance and slowdown of
economic activity. In many countries, businesses were being forced to cease or limit their operations for long or indefinite periods
of time. Measures taken to contain the spread of the virus, including travel bans, guarantines. social distancing and closures of
non-essaential ssnvices have triggered significant disruptions fo businessss worldwide, resulting in an economic slowdown, The
Comparny demonstrated its ability & potential 1o stay ahead of the industry, with a sharp focus on keeping its viewers entertained
and well infarmed during thess times of crisis.

HNL implemented strict measures at its offices to combat and reduce the spread of virus as the health and well-being of the staff
iz of paramount importance to HNL In line with the guidelines issusd by the Government, the Company implemented key
measures across every fouch point to safeguard its Human Capital. HNL has always been agile in adapfing to change, which
made the transition to ‘Werk from Home' operations swift and smooth, ensuring minimal disruption to the viewers and
maintaining business continuity. All meetings across business verticals and functions were conducted seamlessly, with optimal
utilization of digital sclutions. We ensured that the employees had access to all critical business applications with undisrupted
suppert while working from home, with zero compromiss on data and content security. Strong proactive steps were takien in
transforming the workspace, Keeping social distancing norms at the fore. All the necessary safety and hygiene protocols ware
tollowed for the critical verticals functioning from office, including altérnate s=ating amangements, implementing a clean desk
policy-and temperature screening at all entry points. Frequent sanitization of all surfaces was maintained, and hand sanitizers
were placed at all strategic locations within the office premises.

Operational Performance

Despite pricing challenges and overall downward trend in the industry, the network maintained and grew its dominance.

Hum Tv

Through all of itz growing years, HUM TV has played a malor role in empowering women, showcasing stigmas and issues that
people shy away from, prasenting them with sensitivity and gaining acceptability with the masses This year we continued to offer
viewsers with the best of Pakistanl dramas. TRP-topping dramas like “Qurbatein®, *Tera Ghum Aur Hum®, "Zebaaish®, "Mushk=,
“Baraab”, "Phaans®, "Rags-e-Bismil®, “Sitam™ were the most watchsd prime time dramas.

Ramzan special =eres "Chupke Chupke™ and “Taana Bazna” became seascn hits. Thess rom-coms did the rounds on our TV
screens this year with many loving the sizzling chemistry befwesn the characters. These dramas have shifted towards

HUM NETWORK LIMITED

I




Annual Report 2021

light-hearted ‘comedy, steering away from the typical depiction of pre-mantal affairs, diverce, domestic abuse and family
digputes. The bright family comedies were lauded by the audisnces for their uniguensss.

Hum News

HUM Mews is following the precedent that was set by the flagship channel — HUM Entertainment by focusing mainly on the most
neglected issues of =ocisty such as women empowemment, youth and minorities affairs. HUM MNews is thus paying speacial
attention to the data-based-journalistic stories. Thiz helps in explaining the problem and with the help of relevant data collected
painsiakingly ultimately gives a better understanding of the issue fo our viewers. HUM News is not only striving to give hope to
our society but also revamping the Pakistan news industry by objective reporting methods. HUM News aims to articulate dreams
and aspirations of the 21st century Pakistan and to raiss the bar of broadcast journalism through factual, objective, balanced and
fair coverage.

During the COVID-18 pandemic, HUM News fulfilled its responsibility by providing timely news to fis audisnce and increasing
awarsness about the pandemic amongst the massas.

Hum Sitaray

The channel is positioned asa hybrid channel offering both narrative as well as format bazed enterfainment shows. The content
mix consists of Dramas, Soap operas, fashion lifestyle shows, Calebrity talk shows and international contents.

Hum Masala

South Asia's first and Pakistan's only 24-hour cooking channsl HUM Masala celebrated #s f4th anniversary in a special
transmission on Octeber 24, 2020, HUM Masala is not only immensely popular in Pakistan but has received overwhelming
response from South Asian food lovers from around the: globe. The 14th anniversary celebration iz a testament of the channels
dedication to provide its audience with a wide range of Pakistani and continental cuigines. As the pioneer 24-hour cooking
channel in South Asia, Masala has =et high standards for its current and future competitors.

Digital Media Division

Digital Media has continued ite consistent growth in the year 2020-21. One of the major breakthroughs includes: significant
growth on sccial media platforme (Facsbook, Instagram, Twitter and YouTube) following the implementation of revamped Social
Media Strateqy. Another milestone is the major digital sponscrzhip by huge brands like Kashmir, Singer Pakistan, Master Paints
and OPPO for Awards and Dramas,

Direct sales (local web advertizers) have been another business avenue that has grown significantly this year as.we have open
opportunities for digital sponsorship.

*Chupke Chupke” emarged as a werldwide hit, with multiple episodes trending on YouTube and hashtags trending not Just in
Paitistan, but in India and Bangladesh toe.

Events & Brand Activation

Over the last decade HML has played a key role in supporting and developing the drama, fashion, food and music industry in
Pakistan.

Bridal Couture week (BCW)

The 18th edrtion of the country’s biggest and most sought-after bridal extravaganza, HUM Bndal Couturs Week unvelled s red
carpet here in the City of Gardens, Lahore in February 2021 which is the most opulent and highest profile bridal show in Pakistan
It lzads the bridal fashicn industry with its creative influence and has been strategically repositioning Pakistani bridal fashion in
the glebal fashion economy for the last ten years. It has become the most aspired presentation for Pakistan's top designers,
couture lovers, influential individuals, buyers, celebrities, socialites, and legacy brands:

Hum Style Awards

The 8th Hum Style Awards took place in July 2021 in Lahore, celebrating the best of fashion and style from television, film, music,
sports and fashion fraternity. it was a night of glitz and glamour as stars walked on the red carpet, dressed to their nines, aftera
long hiatus:
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HUM Women Leaders Awards

The second edition of Hum Women Leaders Awards held at the Aiwan-=-Sadar in March 2021, celebrating national and
intermational women icons for theircontributions and achievements in the fields of diplomacy, social work, education, healthcare,
human rights, journalism and women's rights. The awards ceremony was graced by President Dr Anf Aha, dignitaries and créme
de fa créme of the entertainment industry of Pakistan.

HUM Social Media Awards

COVID-19 has alzo changed the way the awards are held. The first-ever digital award was held in October 2020, it was a show
different from the many award shows hald all the year round i the fact that HUM Sccial Media Awards 2020 was the largest
internaticnally recognized social media platform. Not only it was the first digitally bazed award show that has Facebook cnboard,
it iz also the first one to recognize desenving individuals working in different fields on the basis of their secial media presence.

Human Resource Management

The Metwork views its human resource as the most valuabls assst and pays special attention towards developing an atmeosphare
which fosters growth, high performance; adherence to organizational values and business ethics.

Core Values

HUM Metwork Limited s continuously striving to provide an enabling corporate and social work environment 1o its employess as
this helps tham to work in complste harmony in a haalthy and professional way.
Far thie very purpase the HUM MNetwork Family has developed the follawing cors values:

Infegrity & Honesty

Respect for All
Commitment/Dedication/ Ownership
Accountability & Oblectivity

Team Work

Discipline

SafetyHealth & Hygiene

O N

We adhers to the above core values in all the inftiatives that we undertalte as this helps in promoting a culture of fairness,
objectivity and teamwork.

Risk Management

The Company has a robust Rizk Management framework 1o identify, measurs and mitigate business risks and opportunities. This
framework =seks to create transparency, minimize adverse impact on the business coblective and enhance the Company’s
competitive advantage. This rigk framework thus helps in managing market, credit and operations nisks and guaniifies exposure
and potential impact at a Company level

Corporate Social Responsibility

In it ongoing efforis to empower Pakistanis from every walk of Iife, HUM Network has parinered with Telenor Pakistan to support
SIUT (Sindh Institute for Urology and Transplant), in i#s fund-raising campaign. The organization will suppert SIUT s fund-raising
efforts by matching public donations made to the institution via Moemina and Duraid Foundaticn's EasyPaisa account. A telsthon
was held in April 2021 on HUM News to encourage people to donate to:this noble caus=.

The collaboration between HUM Network and Telenor Pakistan to suppert SIUT is yet anciher effort to lend a helping hand to the
natiocn's healthcare system and to support fellow Pakistanis in this time of nesd.

This partnership is all set to provide relief to hundreds of thousands of Pakistanis in nesd and will make it possible for patients to

receive free treatment for COVID-19. As a responsible corporate citizen, HUM Network continuss to snsure the safety,
empowerment, inclusion, and well-being of every Pakistani.

Employee Training & Development

A= part of our annual appraisal exercise, each employee is asses=ed and counssled on individual basis. Training sessions ars
arranged on the basis of needs identified which creates growth opportunities for employees and provide us with highly motivated
and trained resource:
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Status Of The Board During The Year

The term of Board expired on August 22, 2020 and fresh election was scheduled for August 2020 Since the number of eligible
candidates were equal to the number of directors fixed for election, the Company made the announcement on August 13, 2020
under section 159{4) of the Companies Act, 2017 The aforesaid election of directors was questionad by the inefigible candidates.
Conssguently, the elected directors alse filed Suit. The Honourable Sindh High Court through Order dated: 21.08:3020 has
directed the Company that the slections scheduled to be held on August 22, 2020 would be postponed and rescheduled sublect
to the final decision by the learned single Judge of CMA No. 6787 of 2020 in Suit MNo_ 968/2020.

A= detailed above, the election of directors was subjudiced and the aforesaid crders were still infores, the managemeant of the
Company was not in a poeition to prejudgs the outcome of the cases and call a board mesting for approval of the financial
statements.

In this regard, the Company sought clarfication from Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan as well as filed an
application before the Hon'ble High Court of Sindh as to whather the Company can hold'a board mesting for the approval of the
financial statement and convening the annual general mesting

On that the Commission provided clarification that the previous board can continue to act in the performance of its functions. The
aforesaid |etter of the Commission has been placed on the record of the Hon'ble High Court of Sindh during the hearingon May
24, 2021 and was taken on record by the Hon'ble High Court of Sindh in the presence of the counsels of the parties.

In view of the.aforesaid, the Company procesded with the previcus Board and the board mesting for approvat of the financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2020 was held on June 14, 2021 and the annual general mesting (AGM) for laying the
financial statemenis for the year ended June 30, 2020 before the sharsholders was convened on July 16, 2021. Thereafter, the
board mestings for the approval of financial statements for the periods ended September 30, 2020, December-31, 2020 and
Warch 31, 2021 were held on September 23, 2021

A= mentioned above, the last AGM was held on July 16, 2021 whersin the Audited Financial Statements for vear ended June 30,
2020 were laid. The aforementioned reasons resulted in the delay in commencement of audit of the financial statements of year
ended June 30, 2021 and the holding of AGM for the year endad June 30, 2021 within stipulated timeline.

Future Prospects & Challenges

We have taken difficuit decizions to deal with the COVID-19 crisis, but thiz has enabled us to continue to invest in and
succassfully exscute our sirategies. We have implemenied new strategies during thess crisis to drive more efficiencies and
effectivensss. We monitorad our performance very carsfully and the risks associated with COVID-19 and were extremely focusad
on tightly managing our costs and cash flows:

Delivering guality content has positionad us to better respond fo the changing viewsrs' habits and to take advantage of the
cantinued strong demand for quality content internationally.

By investing in-our products and senvices, we will defiver our content in ways that work for all cur siakeholders, now and in the
future, which means continuing to provide premium quality broadcasting in order to safisfy stakeholders” demand for greater
flexibility in future

Our business and financial strategies, and the operational decision are designed to mowe HNL from strength to strength, and to
ensure that its independence is preserved in a sustainable way. As an enterprise we are well placed to deliver much better growth
forward backed by our well-defined business strategies, excellent infrastructure and robust board are confident about what we
need to do to ensurs that we emerge as an even more resilient, digital and future focused media and entertainment business.

We have a proud past, a vibrant present and an exciting futurs.

Credit Rating

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA)} maintained the long-term and shori-term entity ratings of Hum Network
Limited at "A+" and "A1", respectively. These ratings denote a low expectation of credit risk and the network’s established market
position.

Board Composition & Remuneration

Composition of the Board and the names of members of Board Committees may be referred to Statement of Compliance with
CCG.

Furthermore, the Board of Directors has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of s directors in
accordance with Companies Act 2017 and the Listed Compamies {Code of Corporate Governance} Regulations 2019,

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Pattern Of Shareholding

Pattern of shargholding as on June 30, 2021 is annexed with the annual report

Meeting Of The Directors
During the yvear, twio {2) Beard of Directors and one (1) Audit Committee meetings wers held however, no’'Human Resource &
RAemuneration (HR & R} Committee mesting was held. The reasons for non-holding of the Board and Committes mestings may

be referred to Statement of Compliance with CCG.

Attendance by sach Director was as follows:

Naiiia of Diractor Board of Directors Audit Committee
Attendance Attendance
Mr. Mazhar-ul-Hag Siddigui 2 -
Mz, Sultana Siddigui 2 -
Mr. Sohail Anzar 2 1
Mrz. Mahtab Akbar Rashdi 2 1
Mr. Shunaid Qureshi 1 1
Ms. Nabigha Nasser Masood Z2 -
LL Gen. [R) Asif Yasin Malik 2 1
Mr. Duraid Qureshi 2 -
Mr. Hazan Reza-ur-Rahim 1 -

Mr. Hasan Reza-ur-Rahim resigned as the director and Mr. Muhammad Ayub Younus Adhi has been appointed as the director of
the Company with sifect from June 14, 2021.

Auditors

The present auditors Messer EY Ford Bhodes Chartered Accountants shall retire and may be considered for re-appointment for
the year 2021-22.

Corporate Governance And Financial Reporting Framework

=  The financial statements, prepared by the management of the company, present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its
operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

*  Proper books of accounis have been maintained by the Company.

=  Appropriate accounting policies have besn consistently applied in preparation of financial statements and accounting
estimates are based on reasonable and prudent Judgment

=  [nternational Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of financial
statements.

= The gystem of internal control is sound In design and has been effectively implementad and monitored.

= There are no significant doubts upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

=  Thers has been no material departure from the best practices of comporate governance, as detailed in the listing regulations

=  Thers has been no departure from the best practices of transfer pricing.

=  (Outstanding taxes and levies are given in the Motes to the Financial Statement.

= There were no trading of shares by the Chief Executive Officer, Directors, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary,
their spouse and minor children:

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Dividend And Appropriations

Bazed on these results, the Board announced a final cash dividend of Re. NIL per share {i.e. Nil %5}

October 22, 2021

Karachi
™
( LS f\”‘
- -2
DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAGQ SIDDIGUI
Chief Executive Chairman & Director
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Report Of The Directors On Consolidated
Financial Statements

On behalf of the Board of Directors, we are pleased to submit the Annual Consolidated Financial Statements along with the
Auditor's Report therson for the year ended Jdune 30, 2021.

The Group consists of another wholly owned local subsidiary Skyline Publications {Private) Limited and three wholly cwned
forsign subsidiaries in US, UK and UAE namely HUM TV Inc., Hum Netwerk UK Limied and HUM Network FZ-LLC respectively.
Another subsidiary by the name of HUM Mart (Privats) Limited is an entirsly different fisld i 2. an e-commerce operations by the
brand name of Hum Mart.

The group recorded revenue of As. 4,994 million and profit after tax of Rs. 961 million for the financial year ended 2021. The
results translate into earnings per share of Rs. 1058

The Directors’ Report on HUM Network Limited for the vear ended June 30, 2021 has been ssparately presented in the annual
report

October 22 2021

Karachi
~ s
DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIGUWI
Chief Executive Chairman & Director

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Code of Conduct

1. Introduction

The provisions of this code as st forth in sections 1 to 15 -are mandatory, and full compliance is expected undsr all
circumstances.

Bvery director and every employes is responsible for complying with this code. Directors/Employees unceriain about the
application or interpretation of any legal reguirements should refer the matter to theirr supervisor or to the Beard, who, if
necessary, should sesk appropriate legal advice

Failure to comply with the code could result in severe consequences for both the individual and the company. The company will
impose appropriate discipline which may include discharge for viclation of the code. Furthermore, conduct that violates the cods
may al=o viclate federal or provincial law and could subject both the company and the individual to prosecutions and legal
sanchions.

2. Conflicts of Interest:

The Company expacts that directors/employess will perform their duties conscientiously, honestly. and in accordance with the
best interests of the Company, Directors/Employess must not use their positions or the Knowledge gained as a result of their
positions for private or personal advantage. Regardless of the circumstances, if directors/employess sense that a course of
action they have pursued, or are presently pursuing, or are contemplating pursuing may imvolve them in a conflict of interest with
their employer, they should immediately communicate all the facts to their supendzor or to the Board.

3. Gifts and Entertainment

Employess shall not on behalf of the company, furnish directly or indirectly, expensive gifts or provide excessive entertainment or
benefits to other persons.

Employess whose duties permit them to do so, may furnish modest gifts, favors and entertainment to persons other than public
officials, provided all of the following critena are met:

i The giftz are not in form of cash, bonds or other negotiable securitiez and are of limited value =o as not to be capable of
being int=rpreted a= a bribe, payoff or other impropar payment;

i they are made as-a matter of general and accepted business practice;
i they do not contravene any laws and are made in accordance with generally accepted ethical practices; and
v if subsequently disclosed to the public, their pravision would not in any way embarrass the company or the recipisnts.

For exampls, reasonable expensss of the entertainment of current or prospective business associates or customers are
permizsible by employees whose duties embrace the providing of such entertminment, provided prior approval from the
supervisor iz obtained and proper accounting is made.

4. Relationships With Clients and Suppliers

Employess should avoid investing in or acguiring a financial interest for their own accounts in any business ocrganization that has
a comtractual relationship with the Company, or that provides goods or services, 'or both, to the Company if such investment or
int=r=st could influence or create the imprassion of influencing their decisions in the parformance of their duties on behalf of the

Company.

5. Public Officials

All dealings betwesn employees or directors of the company and public officials should be transparent.

Even the appearance of impropriety in dealing with public officials iz improper and unacceptable. Any participation directly or
indirectly, in any bribes, Kickbacks, illegal gratuities indirect contributions or similar payments is expressly forbiddan, whether or
not they mught further the business interest of the company. Maintenance of a high standard of integrity 15 of the utmost
importance to the company,

Since the fumishing, on behalf of the company, of even an inexpensive gift or a modest entertainment or banefit to a public official
may be-open to the interpretation that it was fumished illegally to secure the use of his/her influence as public official, no such
gift, entertainment or benefit may be furnished by an employee or director.
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6. Political Contributions

The use of the company’s funds, goods or services as contributions to political parties, candidates or campaigns is specifically
forbiddean.

Contributions include money or anything having value, such as loans. services, enterfainment, trips and the use of the company’s
tacilities or aszsets,

7. Personal Gain

Empioyess and Directors shall not use their status to obtain personal gain from those doing or seeking to do business with the
company

Except as hersinafter provided, employees and directors should neither seek nor accept gifts, payments, services, fees, spacial
valuable privileges; pleasure or vacation trips or accommedations or loans from any persons (except, in the cass of loans, from
persons in the business of lending and then only on conventional terms) or from any Company or group that does or is seexing
to do busginess with the company or any of ite affillates, or from a compstior of the company or any of itz affiliates. However,
employses and directors may accept modest gifts, favors or entertainment upto the maxdmum limits prescribed by the Board of
Directors of the Company from time to time provided that doing so is consiztent with the fests relating to the furnishing of gifts
g2t forth in Section 3.

8. Inside Information

Employess and Directors shall not use for their own financial gain or discloss for the use of others, insids information obtained
as a result of their position within the company

Empioyess and Directors may find themsshves in violation of the applicable securities laws i they misuse information not
generally known to the public and either trade or induce others to trade in the stock of the company or in the stock of another
company. Specific confidential Information would include financial information, information conceming acguisitions or
dizpositions of properties and proposed acquisition or margers with other companies.

Im furtherance of this policy, the company has adopted a statement of policy regarding insider trading, which each director, officer
and employee who has access to material non-public information will be requested to sign.

9. Disclosure of confidential Information

(ertain records, reporis, papers, processss, plans and msthods of the company or to which the company has been permitted
access ars considered to be secret and confidential by the company or the party who has permitted access thereto, and
employees and Directors are prohibited from revealing information conceming such matters without proper authorization.

Directors, individuals, clients, agencies, investors and the public should have information about the company as iz necessary for
them adeguately to Judge the company and its activities. The company believes that full and complete reporting to governmental
agencies and the provision of information to the public as reguired constitutes a resporsible and workable approach to
disclosure. Howsver, the company except as required by law, will not disclose information important to its competitive
effectiveness or which might viclate the private rights of Individuals, enterprises or institutions. Employee and Directors are
thersfore prohibited from discussing or disclosing any secret or confidential information about the company or in the possession
of the company unless such disclosure has been authorized by the Board of Dirsctors.

Employess shall comply with departmental policies and procedures relating to the retention and orderly destruction of the
companys documents.

10. Authorization and Recording of Transactions and
safekeeping of Assets

The company’s books and records must reflect, in an accurate, fair and timely manner, the traneactions and disposition of assets
of the company. Employses responsible for the company’s books and recomds must ensurs that this occurs.

All transactions must be authorized and executed in accordance with the instructions of management and the Board of Directors.
They must be recorded s as to permit the accurate preparation of financial statements in confermity with generally accepted
accounting principles and other generally accepted laws applicable to such statements and to mamntain-accountability for assets.
Access to assets is permitted only in accordance with the authorization of management.

The use of company funds or assets for any unlawful or improper purpose is strictly prohibited and those responsible for the
accounting and record Keeping functions are expected to be vigilant in ensuring enfercement of this prohibition. The recorded
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accountability for asseiz will be compared with the esxisting assests at reascnable infzrvals and appropriate action will be taken
with respect to any differences.

11. Discrimination-Free Work Environment

The policy of the company is to provide a working envircnment free of discrimination and harassment in which individuals are
accorded equality of employment opportunity based upon mernt and ability.

Discriminatory practices based on race; sex, color, national or ethnic origin, refigion, marital status, family status, age or disability
will not be tolersted. Emplovess are entitled to freedom from sexual and all other forms of personal harassment in the work place.

It iz not a discriminatory practice to make a distinction between persons based on bona fide occupational requirements. Since
bona fide occcupational requirements are narmowly defined, such distinctions should not be undertaken without first obtaining
express authorization.

12. Protection of the Environment

The company and its directors and employees shall treat the protection of the  environment as an integral factor in all decision

making.

The company is commitied to the protection of the environment. To comply with  this commitment, the company’s policy is to
meet or exceed all applicable governmental requirements. Employess must report to their superior all circumstances in which
toxic substances are spilled or released into the envircnment. Violations of environmental laws, even if unintentional, can carry
savere penalties, and could result in the prosscution 'of the company or the employees involved or both.

Failure to comphy with the company's instructions for the protection of the environment may result in disciplinary actions.

13. Competition and Trade Practice Standards

The company shall compete vigorously and creatively in its business: activities, but itz efforis in the marketplace shall be
conducted in a farr and ethical manner in strict compliance with applicable competition and trade practice laws and regulations.

Under no circumstances shall any employes or Director of the company be a partly to any collusion or conceried effort of any
type involving any competitar vendor, supplier, customer or other party, which is in restraint of trade or violation of laws and
regulations designed to foster competition. Because laws relating to competition:are complex; employees and Directors shouid
refer matters about what they are in doubt to their supenor or should sesk the advice of the company's counssl.

14. Standards of Conduct

Although the various matters dealt with in this code do not cover the full spectrum of employee or Director activities, they are
indicative of the company’s commitment to the maintenance of high standards of conduct and are to be considered descriptive
of the type of behavior expected from employees and Directors in all circumstances.

15. Distribution

Each director and each employee of the company who has exscutive, managerial or supervisory responsibilitiss, or deals with
governmental officiale or political parties or candidates on behalf of the company, or who has access fo confidential information,
will be provided with a copy of this code. To ensure proper understanding of the code, any guestions as to its application to the
area of responsibility and jurisdiction of the Director or employee will be expiained fully by his / her superior or by the audit
commities.

At commencement of employment and at least once a year thereafter sach such employee shall sign the prescribed from of
acknowledgement which will be retained by the Chief Financial Officer or the Chairman of the audit commitise that each such
individual under his / her |lurisdiction has completed the regquired form acknowledging that he / she has read or reread, as the case

may be, the current version of the code of ethics & business policies and has complied with its terms.

Each directorshall sign such an acknowledgment to the audit committees at the commencement of his or her term
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Whistle-Blowing Policy

1. Purpose

To encourage employess to disclose any malpractice or misconduct of which they become aware and to provide protection for
employees who report allegations of such malpractice or misconduct. The main purpose of this whistle blowing policy is to give
all employees an opportunity to disclosse matters they feel neaed to be reported in the imterest of fair-play and larger benefit of the
organization; high standard of corporate governance; compliance with legal requirements and protection of the Company’s
interest.

2. Policy

The whistle blowing policy is designed 1o encourage amployees to report alleged malpractice or misconduct, io ensurs that afl
aflegations are thoroughly investigated and suitable action taken where necessary. Any whistle-blowing employee is protected
against adverse employment actions (discharge, demotion, suspension, harassment, or cther forms of discrimination) for raising
allegations of business misconduct. An employee is protected even if the allegations prove to be incomect or unsubstantiated as
long as there is no evidence of willlul misreporting. Employees who participate or assist in an investigation will also be protected.

3. Requirement of policy

This document thus sets out a format whistle-blowing policy, consisting of safe and effective procedures for misconduct
disclosure or reporting so that appropriate remedial action can be taken. A written, formal policy is alsc a means of preventing
and dsterring misconduct that might be contemplated but has not yet takien place. it is also a transparent method of addressing
iszuss ratating to whistle biowing, such as answering standard guestions, giving assurances, providing information and offering
explanations.

4. On what should one blow the whistle
What is reportable misconduct?

Any s=rious concems you may have zbout any aspeot of the operations of the Hum Network Limited {the Company) and those
who work in the Company can be reported under this policy. This may be a conduct that:

* |z against the governing rules, precedures, and policies, or established standards of practice of the Company. amounts to
improper, unsthical, or unlawful conduct;

«  Amounts to waste of company's resources: makes you fesl uncomfortable in terms of your experience with the standands
you believe; or

«  Amounts to an attempt to cover up any of these types of actions. Conduct becomes reportable when it happens or when it
iz reazonably likely to ocour. Harm to the Company or to its integrity may occur when any of this conduct iz unchecked or
unaddressed. Importantly, in determining whether to report conduct, harm is not only measured in terms of monitory loss to
the crganization, or damage to a particular program or inftiative, but the harm may also be done to the Integrity and
reputation of the Company itself, or its survival and/or growth.

Reportable conduct falls into the following categories:

4.1 lllegal or unlawful conduct

Conduct may be illegal or unlawful in terms of the Rules and Regulations of the Company and other applicable laws. We all have
legal responsibilities, cbligations or dutizss. Criminal offences - such as theft, fraud, corruption (for example, bribery), or money
laundering - are in breach of legal duties and thersfore constitute reportable misconduct

4.2 Un-procedural conduct

Conduct may be un-procedural since it viclates clearly communicated procedures (in the form of policies, regulations, or rules)
goveming the operations of the Specific rules and processes. togsther with other best practice procedures. guide accounting
practices and controls, financial reporting, auditing matters, the fransfer of funds to recipients, approved recipient accounts, and
the like. Such procedures are important for good governance and breaching them may exposs the application of funds to risk of
o=z or real loss.
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4.3 Unethical conduct

Conduct may be unethical sincs it undermines universal, core ethical values, such as integrity, respect, honesty, responsibiltty,
accountability, faimess. For example one could exert undue pressure on a person in position of power in order to gain an
advantage That would be unfair to others and as such unethical, although neither unlawful nor un-procedural. But not all
unethical conduct is reportabls. For eaxample, some kinds of conduct may be disrsspectful and therefore undesirable, without
harming any serous interests other than perscnal feelings. This-would not be reporiable misconduct.

4.4 Wasteful conduct

Conduct consfituting a gross waste of resources is a reportable category i its own right since responsible stewardship of
resources is as crucial to the success of the Cempany as all employees have an abligation toensure that all resources are used
prodently and efficiently.  resources are spent in-a wasteful manner, and in breach of the public trust under which they are
provided, and an employes Knows about this then this would be reportabie under the whistle-blowing mechanism.

5. Whistle-blower protection

HML shall take all necessany actions to safeguard the intersste of the whistle-blowsr. Where an individual makes a report under
this policy in good faith, reasonably believed o be true, there will be no retaliation (please read detail below) against the reporter
should the disclosure turn out fo be misguided. Retaliation means any direct or indirect detimental action recommendead,
threatened or taken because an individual reported conduct described in Section 4 of this policy. When establizhed, retaliation is
by ii=zelf misconduct which may be pursued under the appropriate mechanisms - for example, through disciplinary action initiated
through mechanisms of HR Pelicy or more broadly and as appropriate, through other mechanizsme of the company’s rules.
Reporting under this policy, however, in no way immunizes or shields a whistle-blower against action following from his-or her
own misconduct, which includes willfully making allegations through the whistle-blowing mechanism that the individual knows to
be falze ar makes with an intent to misinform

6. Whistle-blowing procedures

HNL encourages all its employees to act responsibly at all times and protect themselves and the company against any illegal or
immoral acts (ses section 4) by immediately reporting any such actions to the Designated Person.

Designated Persons (DPs)

The
. Company secretary, and
. Head of Internal Audit

Shall be the *Designated Perzsons® (DPs), and all information shall be directly conveyed to the DPs by the whistle-blower.

Access to the Designated Person

The whistle-blower shall have direct access to the Designated Perzons at all times. This right of the whistle-blower shall be
upheld under all circumstances and respected by the management of the Company.

Medium of Reporting

Reporis to the Designated Persons can be made by: Official email address of the Designated Persons.

Follow up Procedure

The DPe will inftfate an investigation and take any consequent action as deemesd appropriate and will record the same for
information of the Board of Directors, keeping at all times, the confidentiality of the Whistle Blower's identity.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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UNCONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Building a better
warking world

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the members of Hum Network Limited

Report on the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

Wa have audited the ahnexed uncansolidated financial statements of Hum Network Limited (the Company), which comprisa tha
unconsalidated statement of financial pasitlon a3 at 30 June 2021, and the unconsalidated sialement of profit or less, unconsolidated
statement of comprahensive incoma, the uncansolidated statement of changes In equity, the unconsalidated statement of cash flows
lor the year then ended and notes to the unconsolidated linancial statements, Including a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory infarmation, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the bast of our
knpwledge and belief, wara necessary for the purposes of the audit

In our opimion and to the best of our information and according 1o the explanations given to us, the unconsolidated statement of financial
position, unconsolidated statemant of profit or loes, unconsolidated statemant of comprehenslve Income, the unconsclidated statemant
of changes in equity and the unconsolidated statemeant of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereot conform with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable In Pakistan and glve the infarmation reguirad by the Companias Act, 2017 (X1X of
2017), in the manner so reguired and respectvely give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's alfairs as at 30 June 2021
and of the profit, the other comprehensive income, the changes in equilty and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

Wa conducted aur audit in acoordance with International Standards on Auditing (1SAs) 25 applicable n Pakistan, Our rezponsibilities
under thosa standards are further desaribed in the Auditor's Flesponsibiiities for the Audit of the Financial Statemants saction of our
reporl. We are Independent ol the Company In accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants as adoptad by the Institute of Chartered Accourtants of Pakistan {the Coda) and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibiliies in accordance with the Code. We believe thatl the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinian.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters ars those matters 1hal, inour professional judgment, weare of most significance in our augit of the finanoal statemants
of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements as a whols,
and in forming our opnien thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matiers.
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Key sudit matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

1. Net realizable value of television program costs

As ol the year-end, the balance ol tefevision program cosis
amournted to Rs. 452,448,811 {30 June 2020: 466,123,750)
which reprasents unamortized cost of completed mlevision
programs and tslevigion programs in production

As per the accounting policy of the Company, Islevision pragram
costs and acquired {alevision program licenses and rights are
aharged 1o expanse based on the ratio of the revenues eamed
till date 1o total revenues to be earned from the program
including future estimatad revenues, l2ss cost expensed in
orlor years on-an Individual program basls.

Allocation of talavision program costs over savaral accounting
periods based on estimales of revenue involve significanl
ludgemant of tha managemeant which may have a significant
impagt on the unconsalidated finaneial statermants. For this
reason, we have identified this area as key audit matter.

Refer notes 3.5, 8 and 25 o the unconsolidated financial
statements,

Cwr audit procedures amongst others, comprised reviewing
the appropriataness of the accounting policy of the Company
in accordance with the apglicable financial reporting standards.
Further, wa obtained undarstanding of tha ravanue astimation
and amorization process of the Company.

In this regard, we salactad a sampla of lelevision programs
and considered the factors used by the management for
revenue estimation and amaortization of teisvision pregram

cast including:

. historic experlence of revenus eamed by simlilar
programs;

k ratings of tha program fram available
avidances;

. rates usad by the Company and fis lluctuation based
on the trend analysis; and

. we also considered subsequent avants which may

have an impact on unamorized cost.

We also evaluated whether adequate disclesures have baen
made in the accompanying uncensalidated financial statements
in accordance with the applicable financial reporling standards.

Key audit matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

2. Impaiment assessment of investmeant in subsidiaries

As disclosed in nete &, the Company carries investment in
subsidiary companies amounting to Rs 188.898 million.

In respect of the above investment In subsidiary companies,
the impairment triggers were |dentified by the management
and accordingly, Impairment tests ware carried oul in
accordance with the requirements of the applicable accounting
standards. Such impairmant 1esis invalve astimation of future
cash fiows from the cperations of the above enfities 1o determing
the recoverable amount in respect of the above referred
invesiments.

Due o the management judgrments and estimates and other
uncerain factors Involved in these impairment tests carried
oLl by the managameni, we have oonsidersd the determination
of the recoverable amount of Investments as a Key Audil
Matter.

Our key procadures in relation to the impairment tests carried
out by the management for investment in subsidiary companies
were as fallows:

» we considerad the triggers and indicators
reguiring impairment assessmenl in respect
of the above assats;

- we assessed the appropriateness of the

methodology used by the management lor
carrying out the impairmeant test in accorgance
with the requirements of the applicable
accountlng standards;

" we raviewed the kay inpuls and assumptions
used to prepare the future cash flow projection
of the respective anlities including the
commercial assumptions used lor this
purpose. We involved our internal spacialists
to parform such raview. In this regard, wae also
considared the business plan of the subject
entities and the actual results achieved in
refdation 1o the previous plan; and

. we also applied sensitivity analysis on Key
assumptions and evaluated the resulls;

We also assessed the adequacy of the relaled disclasures in
the unconsolidated financial statements in accordance with
the financial reporting standards,
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Information Other thanm the Unconsolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management s respansible for the other information. The other infarmation compnses the information included in the Annual Repon,
but does niot inciude the unconsolidated financial statements and our auditor's repart theraon.

Our opinion on the unconsolidated financial statemants doas ot cover the other information and we do not exprass any farm of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In conmection with aur audit of the unconsolidated finarcial statements, our responsibility s to read the other information and, in doing
g0, consider whather the other information is matenally inconsistent with the unconsolidated financlal statemenis or our knowladge
opbtained in the audit or otharwisa appsars 10 ba matenally misstatad, H§, based on the work wa have padormed, we conclude that
there is.a malerial misstatement of this other information, we are reguired to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible fof the preparation and fair presentation of the unconsolidated fnancial statements in accordance with
the accounting &nd reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the reguirements of Comparnies Act, 2017 (X1X of 2017) and
lor such imtarnal contral as managamant datarmines s nacassary to enable tha praparation of unconsaolidatad financial statamants
that are fres from matarial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In prepanng the unconsolidated financial statements, managemeant is responsitle for assessing the Company's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable. matters related to going concem and wsing the going concern basis of accounting unless
management sither intends to liguidate the Company or 10 cease operations, or has no realistic allernative but lo do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseseing the Company's fimancial reporting process.
Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Our cbjectives are fo obtain reasonable assurance about whethar the unconsolidated financial stalements as a whale aré free fram
material misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or error, and (0 issus ar auditor's report that includes our opinion. Heasonable sssurance
is-a high level ol assurance, bul is not a guarantes that an audit condueted in accordance with 1SAs as applicable in Pakistan will
always detect a material misstaternant whan it gxists. Misstatemeants can arize (rom frasd or error and are considerad matarial i,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these unconsolidated financial stataments.

As parl of an audit in accordance with 15As as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skapticism throughout the audit, We also:

. Identify and assass the risks of material misstatemant ol the unconsolidated linancial statemeants,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedurss responsive To those risks, and oblain
audit evidence that |s sulficient and appropriate to provide a basls for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a8 material misslatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, az fraud may
Involve collusion, forgery, Intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the ovarride of intemal contral.

. Obtain an undarstanding of internal gontrol relevant to the audit in order to design audit progeduras that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprassing an opinion on tha effectivenass
of the Company's inlernal control,

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures mads by managamenl.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use ol the going congern basls of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a matarial uncertainty exists relatled to events or conditions
thal may casl significant doubl on the Comparny's ability lo conlinue as & going concemn. Il we conclude
thal a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our audilor’s report to the related
diszlosuras In the unconsolidated linancial stalements ar, il sueh disclosures are inadeguate, to modily
our opinlon. Our conclusions are based on the audil evidence obtained up lo the date of our auditor's
report, Howevar, Tuture events or conditions may cause the Company to ocease 1o confinge as a gaing
CONCEe.
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a Evaluate the overall presantation, structure and contenl o! the unconsolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whethar the unconsolidated financial statemants represent the underlying
transactions and avents in a manner thal achievas fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant dellciencias in Internal contral that we identity during our audit.

We also provida the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirerments regarding independence,
and to ¢communicate with them all relationships and bther matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independance, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the mattars communicatad with the Board of Directors, wa daterming those miatters that wera of most significanca in the audil
of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
nur auditor's report uniess taw or reguiation precludes public disciosure abaut the matier or whean, in exiremealy rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our repor because the adverse consequences of dolng so would reasonably
be sxpected o outweigh the public interas! bensiits ol such communcation,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements

Based on our audit, we lunher report thal in our opinlan:

a) proper books of account Have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Acl, 2017
(X1X of 2017);
b) the unconsolidated statemant of financial position, the unconsolidatad statement of profit or loss,

tha unconsolidated statement of comprehansive incoma, the unconsolidated statemant ol changes
in equity and the unconsolidated statement of cash Hows togather with the notes thereon have
been drawn up in confarmity with the Gompanies Act, 2007 (XI1X of 2007) and are in agreement
with tha books of account and retums,

c) Investments made, expendilure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the
purpose of the Company's business; and

dj no Zakat was deductibla at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIl of 1880).

The angagement pariner on the audit rasulting in this Indepandent auditor's raport is ©mar Ghughtai.

Sd/-
EY Ford Rhodes
Charlered Accountanl
Place: Karachi
Date:; October 22, 2021
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30, 2021

2021 2020
Mote m———ramnan RI.IPEES ———————
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Froparty, plant and equipmant 4 1.263,816,621 1,365,363 429
Intangible assets ] 20,007,542 32,107 487
Long term investments & 188,898,481 326,898,481
Long term deposits and prepayments 7 31,120,555 27,917,160
Telavision program costs B 352 064,012 260,737,951
Defarrad tax asset o 121,432,046 144 BBE 503
1.977,339,257 2.258.910,011
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 16,660,901 16,984,145
Current partion of television program costs 8 100,385,799 105,385,789
Trade debis 10 1,956,785 375 1.716, 753,677
Short term investments 11 502,415,167 241 508,052
Advances 12 129,006,777 90,637,954
Trade deposils and short-term prepaymenis 13 21,102,013 16,119,741
Oiher raceivablas 14 144 616,512 120 503 353
Taxation = net 211,788,308 182,766,633
Cash and bank balances 15 355,827,585 141,628,483
3,438,568 427 2,644 665877
Mon-current asset held for sale 16 - 16,507 087
TOTAL ASSETS 5415,927,684 4,921,082 875
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorised capital
1,500,000,000 (2020: 1,500,000,000) Ordinary shares of Be.1/- each 1,.500,000,000 1,500,000.000
Issued, subscribed and pald-Up capital 17 945,000,000 245,000,000
Unappropriated profit 3,118,470,793 2,104,074,108
4,063,470,793 3,049,074, 108
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term lease llablities 18 92,051,392 103,701,273
Long term financing 19 248 521 449 837,839,369
Defarred Income - Governmeant grant 20 560,658 -
341,133,499 o4 1,540 642
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and othar payables 21 581,944 377 492 872,413
Advance from cuslomers 28,593,206 13,629,128
Accrued mark-up £,092,693 2,860,434
Short term bormowings 22 - 189,067,264
Unclaimed dividend 5,948 490 5,948 430
Unpaid dividend 205,159 205,158
Current partion of deferrad income - Governmeant grant 20 4,495,607 "
Curment partion of long term lease liabilities 18 29,564,860 29,573,737
Current partion of long lerm financing 19 352,479,000 156,311,600
1,011,323,392 G30, 468,225
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 23
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 5,415,927,684 4,821,082,575
The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements,
4% ’_(_l = ) .".-ﬁ
7 S i ad
DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIGQUI MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Chairman Chief Financial Officer
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Mote
Revenue 24
Cost of production a5
Transmission cost
Gross profit
Distribution costs 28
Administrative expenses 27
Other income 28
Gain on sale of non-current asset held for sale 16
Other expanses 29
Operating profit
Finance costs 30
Profit / (loss) before taxation
Taxation b= |
Profit / (loss) for the year
Earnings / (loss) per share — basic and diluted (Rupee) 32

The annexad notas from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial stataments,

LA
B
DURAID QURESHI
Chief Executive

HUM NETWORK LIMITED

MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQUI

Chairman

2021 2020
Rupees
4,327,326,066 3679466, 088
(2,614,343 5€6) (2,756,142 547)
(90,436,188) (139,069 102)
{2,704,779.754) (2,895,211.649)
1,622,546,312 784,256 430
{235,410,544) {279,841.775)
(663,205,198) {475,129.826)
160,572,087 173,651,157
476,832,913 -
(153,826,920) (87,605,169)
1,207.508,650 105,330,806
(100,365,167) {241,450 871)
1,107,143,492 {136,120,065)
(92,746,807) 22,881,574
1,014,396,685 {113,238 491)
1.07 (0.12)
.-‘M
MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN

Chief Financial Dfficer




UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

2021 2020
e RUpEES -
Profit / {loss) before taxation 1,014,396,685 {113.238.491)
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be subsequently reclassified to statement of profit or loss
Remeasuremeant gains on defined benefits plan - net of t@x - 5,191,764
Total comprehensive profit / {loss) for the year 1,014,396,685 {108,0468,727)
The annexaed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral pan of these unconsalidated financlal statemeants.
fr:.&'_":q e et ll" '::"\d-_u.
L - e AL e
DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQU! MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Chairman Chief Financial Officer
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Revenue Reserve

Issued,
subscribed
and paid-up Unappropriated
capital profit Total
Rupees
Balance as at June 30, 2014 845,000,000 2.212,120,835 3,157.120,635
Loss for the year {113,238,491) {113.238,421)
Other comprehansive income - 5,191,764 5,191,764
Total comprahensive loss for the year = (108,046 727) {108,046, 727)
Balance as at June 30, 2020 945,000.000 2,104,074,108 3,049.074,108
Profit for the year - 1,014,396,685 1,014,396 685
Other comprehansive income - - -
Total comprahensive income for the year 1,014,396,685 1,014,398 685

Balance as at June 30, 2021 945 000.000 3,118.470,793 4083470793

The anrexed notes from 1 fo 47 form an integral pard of these unconsolidated financial stalements.

o e II:".
%jjf b ,ﬂ

HUHA.MM;.D ABBAS HUSSAIN

DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQUI
Chief Execulive Chairman Chief Financial Officer
HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from operations
Taxes paid

Finance cosis paid

Profit received on depesit accounts
Long term deposits

Television program costs

Met cash generated from [ (used) in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Fixed capital expenditure

Additions to intangible azsels

Shorl term Investmeants - net

Dividend received

Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets
Proceeds from sale of non-current asset held for sale
Net cash generated from Investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Leasa rentals paid
Long term financing - net
Met cash used In financing activities

Met increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and bank balances
Short-tarm running finance

Note

33

28

28
4.4
16

2021 2020
——mamnannnn Rupees
787,835,853 2A0,429.530
(98,325,024) (71,831,296
{95,132,808) {244, 080,531)
16,634,989 13,005,882
(3,203,395) (302,167
8,673,938 (133,509,334)
616,583,554 (156,287.916)
(110,529,571) (40,728,620)
{292.400) (1.008.000)
(162,756,066) 503,856,977
177,973 150,000
16,481,506 45,841,494
493,340,000 -
236,421,442 598,041,851
(21,645,375) (24,877.232)
(428,094,255) {316,404,093)
{448,739,630) (341,381,325)
403,265,366 100,372,610
(47.437,781) {147,810,391)

355,827,585

355,827,585 [47.437,781)

141,620,483
(189,067,264

355,827,585 __ (47,437.781)

The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral parl of these uncansolidated financial statements.

A W .
fﬁfj;l"’ B P
DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQUI MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Chairman Chief Financial Officer

HUM NETWORK LIMITED




Annual Report 2021 ]

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

1 THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

1.1 HUM Metwork Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan as a public limited company on 25 Februsary 2004 under the
repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (the Ordinance) now Companies Acl, 2017, The shares of the Company are guoted on
Fakistan Stock Exchange.

1.2 The Company's principal business is to launch Iransnalional satellde channels and aims al presenting a wide vanety of cultural
haritage. Its core areas of operation ara preduction, advertisement, entertainment and madia marketing. It covers a wide variaty
of pregrammes with respect to information. entertainment, news, education, health, food, music and society.

13 Geographical lecation and address of business units

Registered office Plot Mo, 10111, Hassan Ali Street, Oif, ||, Chundrigar Read, Karachi, Pakistan,
Head office — Karachi B.R.R Tower, Hassan Ali Street, Off. L.I. Chundngar Road

City cffices — Karachi Alfalan Court, |1 Chundriger Road

City office — Islamahad 2R, I&T center, sector G-6/1

City office — Lahora House # 58, R-24, Maszon Road

City office — Peshawar Plot No. 7-A, 28 The Mall, Peshawar Cantonment

City office — Quelta House # 3, Phase Il, Shahbaz town

1.4 These are separale financial statements of the Company in which investments in subsidianes are slaled sl cost less
impairment, if any.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION
21  Statement of compliance

These unconsclidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standard Board
(l1ASB) as nolified under the Companies Act 2017 (the Act); and
- Provisions of and directives issued under the Act

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Act differ from IFR S, the provisions of and directives issued
under the Act have been followed.

2.2 Accounting convention

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except far:

- Property, plant and equipment which are carried at revalued amount in accordance with 185 16 "Property,
Plant and Equipment” as disclosed in note 3.1 and 4.1, and

-  Employees’' retiremen! benafits which is carried al present value of deflined beneflil obligation nel of fair value
of plan assets in accordance with the requirements of |AS 19 "Employee Benefits”, as disclosed in note 3,11
and 21.1.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements are consistent with
those of the previous financial year except that the Company has adopted the following standards, amendments,
interpretation and improvements o IFRS which became effective for the current vear:

IFRS 3 Definition of a Business (Amendmeants)
IFRS9/IAS 28/ IFRS T Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
(Amendmenls)
18451 /IAS 8 Definition of Material (Amendmeants)
Effective date
{annual periods

Improvement to accounting standards issued by the IASB (2018 - 2020 beginning on or

cycle) after)

IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amandments) January 01, 2022

I1AS 16 Properly, Plart and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended 04, 2022
Use (Amendments) Janueey 01,

1AS 37 Onerous Contracts — Costs of Fulfilling a Conltract January 01, 2022
{Amendments)

1451 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current January 01, 2023
{Amendmenis)

IFRS 10/ IAS 268 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its o
Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments) Ntyer fngliand

IFRS 9, IAS 38, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2 {Amendment) January 01, 2021

IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 April 01, 2021
{Amendments)

1AS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policias (Amendmeants) January 01, 2023

1AS B Definition of Accounting Eslimales (Amendmenls) January 01, 2023

1AS 12 Deferred tax related to Assets and Liabilities arsing from a

1.
single transaction (Amendments) BRI I

Improvement to accounting standards issued by the IASB IASB effective date (annual

(2018 — 2020 cycle) periods beginning on or after)
IFRS 9 Feas in the "0 parcent’ test for the
1
derecognition of financial labilities vpuacy Uy el
IAS 41 Agriculture - Taxation in fair value measurement January 01, 2022
IFRS 16 Leases: Lease incenfives January 01, 2022

The above standards, amandments of IFRSs and improvements to accounting standards are not expectad o have
any material impact on the Company's unconsolidated financial statements in the penod of initial application.

Further, following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan:

Standard IASB effective date (annual
periods beginning on or after)

IFR31 First lime adaption of IFRSs January 01, 2004
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts January D1, 2023
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24  Significant accounting Judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the unconsclidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards, as
applicable in Pakistan, requires the management to make judgment, estimates and assumplions thal affect the
application of policies and the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilties and accompanying
disclosures. Uncerizinty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes thal require a material
adjustment to the camying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

The estimates and associaled assumplicns are based on histoncal experience and various gther factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances. the results of which form the basis of making judgments about the carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.

Estimates, assumplions and judgmenis are reviewed on an ongeoing basis. Revisions lo accounting estimates are
recognized In the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the perind of the
revision and fulure periods f the revision affects both current and fulure penods.

In the process of applying the accounting policies, managemeant has made the following estimates and judgments which
are significant to the unconsolidated financial statements:

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (note 4 & 5)

The Company reviews approprateness of the rate of depreciation / amortisation, useful life and residual value used in the
calculation of depraciation ( amortisation. Further, where applicable, an astimate of the recoverable amount of assets is
made for possiole impaimment on an annual basis. In making these estimates, the Company uses the technical resources
available with the Company. Any change in the astimates in the future might affect the carrying amounlt of respective item
of preperty, glant and egquipment and intangible assets, with corresponding effects on the depreciation | amortisation
charge and impairment.

Investment in subsidiaries (note 6)

The Company value its investment in subsidiaries at cost less impairment, if any, The Company determines whether
objective evidence of impairment exists for Individual investments. The determination of fair value of unguetad
subsiciaries involves Inherent subjectivity, key assumptions (such as future cash flow forecasts, discount and growth
rates and volalility), and estimation refation o valuation inputs and techniques. Any change in these assumplions and
estimates may have significant impact on the fair value of investments with corresponding impact in statement of profit or
loss,

Television program costs (note 8)

Television program costs represent unamorfized cost of completed television programs and television programs in
production. In order to determing the amount to be charged to statement of profit or loss, the management estimates
future revenues from each program. Estimates of fulure revanues can change significantly due to a variety of factors,
including advertising rates and the level of markel acceptance of the production in different geographical locations,
Accordingly, revenue estimates are reviewed periodically and amortisation is adjusted, Il necessary. Such adjustments
cauld have a material effect on resulls of operations in future periods.

Income taxes (note 9)
In making the estimate for income tax payable by the Caompany, the Company lakes info account the applicable tax laws
and the decision by appseliate autharities on certain issuss in the past.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused tax losses and credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which such losses and credits can be utilized. Significant management judgmant is required ta
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and level of future
laxable profits tegether with future tax planning strategies.

Impairment of financial assets (note 3.7)
The Company uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade debts and other receivables. The provision rates are
based on days past dua for Company's various customar that have similar loss patterns.

The provision malrix is initislly based on the Company's historical observed defaull rates. The Company will calibrate (he
maltrix to adjust the historical credit Inss experence with forward-lnoking Information. For instance, il forecast economic
condiions are expected to detenorate over the next year which can lead to an increassd number of defaulls in the
manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At every reporing dale, the historical obsarved defaull
rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.
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The assessmenl of the correlalion between histoncal ohserved defaull rales, forecasl economic conditions and ECL= s a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive lo changes in circumstances and of forecast econamic cenditions,
The Company's hislorical credil loss experience and [orecas! of economic conditions may also nol be representative of
customer's actual default in the fulure. The Information about the ECLs on the Company's financial assets exposed lo
credit risk is disclosed in note 38.5.

Contingencies (note 23)

The assessment of the contingencies inherently invalves the exercise of significant judgment as the outcome of the future
events cannol be predicted with certainty. The Company, based on the avaliability of the latest Information, estimates the
value of conlingent assels and liabilities which may differ on the occurrence | non-ococurrence of the uncertain fulure
avanis.

Leases- Estimating the incremental borrowing rate (note 17)

The Company cannol readily delermine the interest rate implicit in the lease, thersfore, it uses its incremental borrowing
rate ('IBR’) lo measure lease liahilities. The |IBR is the rate of interest thal the Company would have 1o pay o barrow owver
a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary lo cbtain an assel of a similar value 1o the right-of-use
assel ina similar aconomic envirenimen,

Leases- Determination of the lease term for lease contracts with extension and termination options (note 17)

The Company determinas the leasa term as the non-cancellabla lerm of the lease, together with any periods covered by
an gption to extend the lease i il s reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods coverad by an option to lerminate
the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has lease contracts that include extension and termination option, The Company applies judgemeant in
evaluating whether il is reasonably cerdain whether ar not lo exercise the option lo renew or terminate the lease. Thal is, i
considers all relevant factors that craate an economic incentiva for it to axercise either tha renswal or termination. After
the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if therz Is a significant event or change in
circumstances that is within its contral that affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the oplion to renew o to
terminate.

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

an Property, plant and equipment
31.1 Operating fixed assets
These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any.

Depreciation is charged to statament of profit or loss using straight line method so as to write off the historical cost of the
assets over thelr estimated useful lives. Depreciation on additions Is charged from the month in which the asset is
avallable lo use end no depreciation is charged lor the month in which assel was disposed of,

Mainlenance and normal repairs are charged 1o statement of profit or loss as ang when incurred. Major renewals and
improvemnents, if any, are capifalized when il is probable thal respective fulure economic benefils will flow to the Company.

An ltem of property, plant and equipment |s derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits ars
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on dergcognition of the assel {calculaled as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in statermnent of profit or loss in the
year the asset s derecognized.

The assels' residual values, uselul lives and method of depreciation are revised, and adjusted if appropriale, al each
statement of financial position date.

31.2 Right-of-use assels

The Company recognises a right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date the underlying asset
is available lor use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cosl less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease llabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made al or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-iine basis aver the shorter of lease term
or useful life, except for the lsases In which ownership of the underlying assels transfer 1o the lessee by the end of the
lease term or cost of rght of use assels reflects that the lessee will exercise a purchase aption, the Company depreciate
those right of use asset over the useful life of the underlying asset.
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3.1.3 Capilal work-in-progress

Thesa ara stated al cost less accumulaled impairment and consist of expendilures incurmed and advances made in
respect of specific assets during the construction period. These are transferred to specific assets as and when assets are
available for use,

3.2 Mon current assets held for sale

Mon current assets are classified as assets held for sale when their carmying amount is {o be recovered principally through
& sale transaction rather than continuing use and sale i= considered highly probable, They are stated at the lower of
carrying amount and fair value lass cost to sell.

The crilena for held for sale classification is regarded a5 mel only when the sale s highly probable, and the asset or
disposal group is available for immediate sale in its present condition. Actions required o complete the sale should
indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes 1o the sale will be made or that the dacision to sall will be withdrawn,
Management must be committed to the plan to sell the asset and the sale expected to be complated within ane year from
the date of the classification.

Property, plant and eguipment are not depreciated ance classified as held for sale.

Assetls and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separalely as current items in the unconsolidaled statement
af financial pasition.

33  Intangible assets

Intangible assels acquired separately are meaasured on initigl recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acguired in
a husiness combination is fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried
8t cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amorisation methed for an
imtanglble assel with a finite useful life is reviewed al least al each financial year end. The amortisation expense on
intengible asselz with finite lives 1s recognised in slatement of profit or loss in the expense calegory consistent with the
function af the intangible asseal,

Gains or losses ansing from derecognition of an intangible assel are measurad as the dilfersnce belween the nal
disposal proceeds and the carrying amaunt of the asset and are recognised in statement of profit or loss when the asset
is derecognized,

34 Investments in subsidiaries

Subsidiary s a entity over which the Company has control. Control is achieved when the Company is exposed, or has
rights, to variable relurns from its involvemeant with the investee and has ability (o affect those returns through its power
over the investea. Generally, thare is presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. In assessing control,
potential voting nghts that are currently exercisable are taken into account,

Investment In subsidiary Is initially recognised at cost. At subsequent reporting dates. the Company reviews the carrying
amount of the Investment lo assess whelher there is any indication thal such invesiments have sulfered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated i order to daterming the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. Such impairment losses or reversal of impairmeant losses are recogrised in the siatement of profil or loss,
These are classified as long term investmant’ in the unconsolidated financial statements.

35 Television program costs

Televislon program costs represent unamorized cost of completed television programs and telavislon programs n
production. These costs include direcl production costs, cost of inventory consumed, and production overheads and are
stated at the lower of cost, less accumulated amortisation and net realizable valus (NRV). NRY is estimated by the
management on the basis of future revenue generation capacity of the program. Acguired television program licenses and
rights are recorded when the license pernod begins and the program is availabie for use.

Television program costs and acquired televisicn program licenses and rights are charged to expanse based on the ratio
of the revenues earned Ll date to lolal revenues 1o be earned from the program including fulure estimated revenues less
cost expensed in prior years on an individual program basis.
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36 Inventories
These are valued on weighted average cost basis and are stated at the lower of costand NRV.
3.7 Financial instruments

A financial instrument 15 any contract that gives rse to a finanoal asset of ane entity and a financial liability or soquity
instrument of another entity.

i) Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement
Lnder IFRS @ Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at following;

(a) at amortised cost
{b) at fair value through profit or loss{(FVYTPL); and
{c) a1 falr valug through other comprehensive income (FYTOCH),

The classification of financial assels at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's confractual cash flow
characteristics and the business mode! far managing them, With the exception of trade receivables, the Company initdally
measures a financial assat at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs. Trade receivables are measured at the transaction price determined under IFRS 15,

In order for a financial assel to be classified and measured at amorized cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give
rise to cash flows that are 'solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount outstanding. This
assessmant is referrad to as tha SPP| tast and is performead at an Instrument leval. The Company’s business madal for
managing financial assets refers ko how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows, The business
model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or bolh.

Purchases or sales of financial assats that require delivery of assets within & time frame established by regulation or
convention in the markel place {regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, l.e. the date that the Company
commils to purchase or sell the assel

(a) At amortised cost
A financial asset is measured at amortised if both of the following conditions are met:

- The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial asseis in erder to collect
contractual cash flows; and

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interesl on the principal amounl culstanding.

(b) At fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and Interest are classified and measured at fair
value through profit or logs, irrespective of the business model. Financial assets al fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading, financial assets designated upon Initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or
financial assets mandatorlly required to be measured at fair value, the Company may rrevocably designate a financial
asset lhat otherwvise meets the requirements o be measured al amerised cost or at FVYOCI as at FVTPL if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismateh that would otherwise arise.

A financial asset (unless it 15 a8 trade receivable withoul & significant financing component that is initially measured at the
ransaclion price) is initially measured al fair value plus, for an item nol at FVTPL, transaction cosls thal are directly
attributable ta its acquisition.

(c) At fair value through other comprahensive income
A debl inslruments is measured al fair value through OCI if both of the following conditions are mel:

- The financlal assel is held within a business mode| with the abjective of both holding to collect contraclual cash flows
and selling; and

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified ¢ates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Upon initlal recognition, the Company can elect to classify irrevocably ts equity investments as equity instruments
designated at FVOC| when they meet the definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial Instrumants: Presentation and are
not held for trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.
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Subseguenl measurement
For purposes of subseguent measurement, financial assets are classified into following categories:

- Financial assets al amortised cost (debl instruments).

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recyeling of cumulative gains and losses upon
derecognition (equity instruments)

Financial assels al fair value through prafit or loss

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
Financial assets al amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective Interest (EIR) method and are subject
to Impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, madified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVPL include financial assets held for wrading, financial assets designated upon initial recognition at
FVPL, or financial assats mandatorly required 1o be measured at falr value. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if thay are acqurad for tha purposa of saling or repurchasing in the near term. Finsncial assels with cash flows
thal are nol solely payments of principal and inleres! are classified and measured al fair value throegh profit or loss,
Imespective of the business model, Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments 1o be classified at amortized cost or
at FVDCI, as described above, debt instruments may be dasignated at FVPL on initial recognition if doing so eliminates,
or rignilicantly reducas, an aceounting mismaltch

Financial assats at FVPL are cammied in the unconsolidated statement of financial position at fair valua with nat changes in
l&ir value recognised in uncensolidated stalement of profil or loss.

This calegory also includes denvative instruments and hsted equity invesiments which the Company had nol imevocably
elected to classify at FVOCI, Dividends on listed equity investments are also recognised as other income in profil or loss
when the right of payment has been established.

Financlal assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt Instruments)

These sssets are subsequently measured at fair value. Intarest income, foreign exchange revaluation and impaiment
losses or reversals are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in OCI, Upon derecognition, the
cumulative falr value change recognised in OCI Is recycled to profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses (equity Instruments)
These assats ame subsequently measured at fair value. Gaing and losses on thesa financial assets are never recycled to
profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in the statement of profil or loss when the right of payment has
been established, except when the Company benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of parl of the cost of the financial
assel, in which case, such gains are recorded In OCI. Equity instrumeants designated al fair value through OCI are not
subject to impairment assessmeant.

As at the date of statement of financial position, Company is not having any equity instrument designated at fair valus
thraugh OCLL

Derecognition
A financial assat (or, whare applicabie, a part of a financial assat or part of a group of similar financial assets) is prmarily
derecogmised (e removed from the Company's unconsolidated staterment of financial position) when:

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

The Company has transferred its rights 10 recelve cash flows from the assel or has assumed an obligation 10 pay the
received cash fiows in full withoul material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the
Company has transferred substantislly all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither iransferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the assel, but has transferred control of the assel.

When the Company has transferred its rights to recelve cash flows from an asset or has entered Into a pass-through
arrangamant, it evalustes if, and to whal axtant, it has relainad the risks and rewards of ownership.

When it has neither transferred nor retainad substantially all of the risks and rewards of the assat, nor transfarred controd
of the assal, the Company confinues to recognise the transferred assel to the extent of its continuing involvement, In that
casa, the Company also recognises an associated liability, The transferred assel and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required 1o

repay.
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Iimpairment of financial assots

Tha Company recognises an allowance for axpectied credil loszes (ECLE) for all debl instrumaniz not hald &t fair valus
through profil or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the conlractusl cash lows due m accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted at an approxmation of the eriginal
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
anhancemanis thal are inlagral 1o tha conlractual larms,

ECL= ars recognisad in lwo slages. For cradil axposuras lor which thare has nol bean & significant increase in cradit rigk
smon inilial recognilion, ECLs are provided for credil losses thatl resull from defaull events thal are possible wathin the
next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has boen a significant increase in credit
rsk since Initial recognition, a lose allowance Is required for credlt losses expected over the remaining Ife of the
axposura, irraspactiva of the timing of the dafaull (= lifetims ECL)

For trada dabts, lhe Company appliss a simplified approsch in ealculating ECLs. Tharators, the Company doas not irack
changes n credil nsk, bul mstead recognizes a loss allowance based on lifetme ECLs al esch reporling date. The
Company has established a provision matrix that is based on ita historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward
lnoking factors specific fo the deblors and the ecanomic envirpnment

The Company considers a fimancial assat in dafault whan contractual paymeants are 80 days past due. Howavar, in cartain
cases, lhe Company may also consider & financial sssel 1o be in defaull when intemal or extemnal information indicales
that the Company is unlikely to recelve the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Company. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
racovering the contractual cash flows

ii) Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial abilities ara classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilites at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
barrowings, payables, or s denvatives designated as hedgmg nstruments in an effeclive hedge, as appropnale.

Al financial liabilities are recognisad initially at fair value-and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
diracilly atiributable transaclion cosls.

Financial llabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liahiities at fair value through profit or loss Include financial labiiities held for trading and financial liabilities
designaled upon inilial recognition ss al fair value through profit or loss. Gains or losses on liabilities held for rading are
recognised in the stalement of profit or loss. Financial liabilities designated upon Initial recognition at fair value through
profit or lass are designated at the initial date of recognition, and only I the criteria in IFRS © are satisfied. The Company
has not designated any financial liability as at fair vaiue through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, borrowings and payables are subsequently measured at amartised cost using thae EIR method
Gains and losses are recognised in profil or loss whan the lisbiities are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amorisalion process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking Into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the stalement of profit or loss.

Bormowings are classified as cument liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer the settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. Exchange gain or losses arising in respect of borrowings in
lorelgn currency are added to the cammying amount of the borrowings,

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised whan the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financkal liability is replaced by anather from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
exisling liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is trealed as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new lmbility. The difference in the respective camrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

38 Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilites are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, lo realise the assels and setlle the liabiities simullanaausly,
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38 Advance from customers (Contract Liability)

A contract lability is the obligation of the Company to transfer goods or sarvices to a customer for which the Company
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration
before the Company transfers goods or services lo the customner, a cantract liability is recognised when the payment is
made or the payment is due (whichever is earier). Contract liability are recognised as revenue when the Company
performa under the contract,

310 Impairment of non-financial assets

The camying amounlts of non-financial assats are assessed at each reporting date to ascertain whether there is any
indication of impairment. If such an indication ewists, the assel's recoverable amount is estimated to datermine the extant
of impairment loss, if any. An impairment loss s recognised, as an expense in stalement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. The recoverable amount s the higher of an asset's fair value less cost to disposal and value |n
use, Value in use is ascerained through discounting of the estimated future cash flows using a discount rate that reflects
current marketl assessments of the time value of money and the rsk specific to the assets for which the estimate of future
cash flow have not been adjusted. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the loweslt levels for
which there are separately identifiablie cash flows (cash-generating units).

3.11 Deposits, advances, prepayments and other receivables excluding financial assets

These are initially recognised at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given. Subsequent to initial recognition
assessment is made at each statement of financial position date to determine whether there is an indication that assets
may be impaired. Il such Indication exists, the estimated recoverable amount of thal asset is delermined and any
impairment loss s recognised for the difference between the recoverable amounl and Lthe carrying value,

3412 Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilifies in the unconsolidated statement of financial position based on currentinon-
currant classification. An asset is currenl when it is:

* Expected to be realised or Intended to be sold or consumed In the normal oparating cycle

* Held primarily for the purpose of trading

« Expected {o be realised within twelve months after the reporiing pericd

Cr

* Cash or cash equivaleni unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a llahbility for at least twelve months
after the reporting period

All ather assels are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

+ It is expected to be setided In the normal operaling cycle

« It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

+ Il iz due to be seftled within twelve months after the reporting period

Or

» There iz no unconditional right to defer the settliement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

The terms of the Hability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity
instruments do not affect its classification.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current azsets and liabilities.

313 Taxation

Current
Pravisian for current lax is based on the taxable income in accordance with the Inceme Tax Ordinance, 2001,

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet liability method, on all major temporary differences arising at the
statemnent of financial position date betwean lax bases of assets and liablliies and their carrying amaounts in the financial
statements.

Deferred tax liabilittes are recognized for all laxable tlemporary differences. Deferred lax assets are recognized for all
deductible temporary differences to the axiant thal il is probable that the fulure laxable profils will be available against
which the assets may be ulilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the
ralated tax benefit will be realized.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax asset Is reviewed at each statement of financial position date and reduced o the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available 1o allow all or part of the deferrad tax
azzal o be recognized

Defarrad tax aszaiz and liabilibes are measurad &l the (ax rale that are axpacled (o apply 1o the penod whean (he azs8l =
realised or the liability s setthed, based on lax rales (and lax laws) thal have been enacled o substantively enactoed at the
statement of financial position date.

314 Caeh and cazh agquivalants

Thasa are camad al cogl. For the purpose of stalemenl of cash lows, cash amd cash squivalents compnse of cash m
hard, bank balances and short term running finance.

3.15 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified a3 equity and recognized at their face value. Incremental costs directly attnbutable 1o the
issue of new shares or options are shown In equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds,

316 Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract Is, or contains, a lease. That s, if the contract conveys
tha right to control the use of an identified assst for a period of ime in axchange for consideration

3.16.1 Company a8 & lesses

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilites to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assats,

i) Lease liabilities

Al the commancemanl dale of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabililies measured sl he present value of lease
payments to bea made over the lease term, The lease payments include fived payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate. and amounts
axpectad to be pald under residual value guaranteas. The laase payments also include the exarcise price of a purchasa
oplion reasonably cerain 1o be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminaling the leasa, if the
termination option is reasonably certain o be exercised. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rale are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred o produce inventories) in the perlod in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs. In calculating the present value of lease paymenis at the lease
commeancement date, the Company uses the inlerast rate implicil in Lhe lease. In casa where the inlerast rate implicil in
the lease is not readily determinable, the Company uses ils incremental borrowing rate. After the commencement date,
the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In
addition, the carrytng amount of laasa liabilitias is remeasured if there s a modification, a change in the leass term, &
change in the lease paymenis or a change in the assessment of an oplion to purchase the underlying assat.

i} Determination of the lease term for lease contracts with extension and termination optians

The Company dalarmines the lease larm as the non-cancellable lerm of Lhe lease, logethar with any periods covered by
an oplion to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any pericds covered by an option to terminate
the lease, if it is reasonably centain not to be exercised.

The Company has several |ease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies
judgament in evaluating whether il is reasonably ceriain whethar or nol to exercise the option to renew or terminate the
lease. That is, il considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for il to exercise either the renewsl or
termination. After the commencement dale, the Company reassesses the lease term if there s a significant event or
change in circumstances that is within its control that affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or
to terminale (e.g., consiruction of significant leasehold improvements or significant customisation of the leased asset).

iil) Estimating the incremental borrowing rate
The Company cannol readily determing the interes! rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses ils incremental borrowing
rate (IBR) to measure lease llabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to bommow over a

similar term, and with a similar security, tha funds necassary 1o oblain an azsal of a similar value o the right-of-use assat
In a similar aconomic amaronmenl,

iv) Short-term leases

The Company apphes the short-lerm lease recognition exemplion o its short-lerm leases of office premises (i.e., those
leases thal have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option).
Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as expanse on a straight-line basis over the lease lem.
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317 Borrowings

Borrowings are inilially recognised & fair value, net of ransaction costs incurred and subsequently carried al amortized
cost using the effective interast method.

Borrowings are classified as current fiabilities unless tha Company has an unconditionsl | contractual right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the statement of financial position data.

318 Government Grant

Government grants are recognised whera there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and all attached
conditions will be complied with. As the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the perods that the related costs, for which It s Intended o compensale, are expensed.

319 Unclaimed and unpaid dividend

Dividend declared by the Company, in the preceding three years, which remains unclaimed or unpaid as on the staterent
of financial pasition date is recognized as unpaid dividend, Dividend declared and payable prior to the preceding three
years from the statemenlt of linancial position date are recognized as unclaimed dividend.

3.20 Provisions

Provisions are recognized whan the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a resull of past events, it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to setfle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of thae
amount of obligafion. Provisions are reviewed at sach siatement of financial position date and adjusted to reflect the
current bast estimate,

3.21 Revenue recognition

Adverlising revenues are recognized at a point in ime when the related advertiserent or commercial appears befors
public i.e aired.

Production revenue; Production revenue is recognised at a point in ime when production work appears before public,

Digital revenue: Advertising revenues from digital properties are recognized on the basis of number of impressions on the
advertisermenl aired on website.

Subscription income arises from the manthly billing to subscribers for services provided by the Company. Revenue is
racognisad in the month the service is rendered.

Film Cistrbution Revenues: Revenue from film distribution is recognized at 5 point in tme upon receipt of related sales
reparts from cinemas.

Credit limits in contract with customers ranges from 2 to 90 days,
322 Other income
Sale of magazine and DVD's is recognized on receipt basis.
Profit on bank deposits s accounted for on effective interest method,
Dividend income is recognized when it is dectared and right to recelve is established.
intarest / markup income is recognized on accrual basis.
Other revenues are accounted for on an accrual basis,
3.23 Expenses

Expanses are recordad when ncurred based on the accrual basis of accounting. Distrbution costs and administrative
expenses include direct and indirect costs not specifically part of cost of production. Allocations between cost of
production, distribution and administrative expanses. whan required, are made on a consistent basis,

3.24 Staff retirement benefits
Defined contribution plan

The Company operates a funded and approved provident fund scheme for all its permanent employees. Equal monthly
contributions are made, both by the Company and the ermployess, to the fund al the rate of 8.33% of the basic salary,
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3.25 Foreign currency transactions and translations

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pakisiani Rupees using the exchange rates ruling at the dales of the
fransaclions. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign curréncies are translated into Pakistanl Rupees using the exchange
rate at the statement of financial position date. Non-monetary assets and liabllities are translated using exchange rate that
existed when the values were determined. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settiement of such
transactions and from the translations at the year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
forelgn currencles are laken lo unconsolidated statement of profil or loss currently.

3.26 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acguisition and construction of assets and incurred during the period in
connection with the activities necessary 1o prepare the assel for its intended use are capitalized as a part of the cost of
related asset.

All ptrar borrowing costs are recognised as an expansea in the paiod in which they are incumed.
3.27 Dividend and appropriation to reserves

Dividend and appropriation to resenves are reccgnized in the financial statements in the period in which these are
approved.

328 Contingencies

Contingencies are disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation that anses from past events and whose
existence will be confirmed only by the cocurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncerain futlire avents not wholly
within the control of the entity or a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because I Is not
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount
of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient rellability.

3.29 Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted eamings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares, EPS is calculated by
dividing the profit or loss atiributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares oulslanding during the period.

3.30 Functional and presentation currency
These financial statementis are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation

3.31 Segment Reporting

Segemant reparting is based on the reporting operating (business) segments of the Company. An operating segment is a
camponent of the Company that engages in bussiness activities from which it may eam revenue and Incur expenses. An
operating segment's operating results are reviewed regularly by the senior management of the Company o make
declsions about resources to be aliocated to the segrment and assess ts performance, and for which discrete financial
information is available.

Note June 30, June 30,
4 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 2021 2020
smesnmmeces RUPRES sosemaeee
Operating fixed assets 4.1 1,067,367,531 1,219.674,736
Right of use assats 4.5 109,028,621 128,754,816
Capital work-in-progress 4.6 87,420,469 15,833,877

1,263,816,621 1,365 363 429
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43 488 F5f - 2B ETE 2 =
21857 8011 T 5,350,814) =
(144,530, 790) (74,341, 548)

- Includes asset under commen cwnership under Diminizhing Musharaka amangemeant.

 Additions of Rs, 39,042 879 (2020: Rs, 83,033 078), as shown above, include an amaount of Rs. Nil (2020 Rs, 59,434,083)
transfermad from capital work in progress during the parod.

7 Reclassified o non-curren! assets held for sale (Refer nole 18)

HUM NETWORK LIMITED

Includes transfers from nght of use assets o owned assels. (Refer nole 4.5)

Oeprociatian
Finte

]

B @R

Dupreciatian
Rate

per snniem
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42 Farticular of Immovable Asset in the name of the Company are as follows:

Locatian Addresses Total Area
Rarachi Plol Mo. 10071 hassan ali streel, off L1 Chundrgas ioad. 2,070 g yards.
Istamabad Plot Mo 24, 15T cenire sector G-6/1 30610 s ft
|starmabad 6-7 km, kashmie highway, adjacent to Sector H-17 303 sg yands
2021 2020

1] [ R — R‘U])EIES PRS-
4.3  Depreciation for the pericd on operating fixed assets has been allocated as follows:

Cost of prodection 25 14B,330,6T6 16A.740,193
Distriulion costs 25 870,964 1,141,380
Adminisirative exnonsas &7 36,313,880 41,513,785

185,515,520 A 1!395.33:3

4.4 The details of operating fixed assals disposed [ wnttan off, dunng the period are as follows,

Accumulated  Met book Sale Modes of
Description Cost depreciation walue procegds Gain Dipozals Particulars of Buyer
Office equipment
2508480 1,411,020 1,087 460 1,371,550 274,080 Megotiation Akbar Enginsering
Vehicles
As por
Company
6,188 718 4332 350 1,867,348 2,186 604 338 355 Palicy Mr. Badar Iiram, an employea,
As per
Company  Wr, Muhammad Abhas Hussain,
£,218 B9A 4,353 480 1,866,403 20618 344 213 Palay Chiaf Financial Offbesr
As par
Carmpsany
2,500,200 1,852 745 BdAT 455 O74 505 127140 Palicy Mr. Masir Jamal, an employes
As per
Company Mr Duraid Qureshi, Chisf
BTT7.08 A4, 043 BRd 1733127 1844 513 211,385 Pokcy Exailitlve
As par
Company
2713640 1,898,548 814,082 292,900 178,808 Pokty Mr. Khalid Soorty, an empioyee
As per
Comparty  Mr. Kammen Shamshad Shmed,
1,621 880 1,045,744 EB4 148 918 381 334,233 Paloy an amphoyes
Ass per
Company
2,008,794 1,A33.058 1,366, 738 1,852 306 485 65D Poloy Mr. Anir Zia, an employes
Insurance
1,153,474 493,381 B60, 093 1,197,000 536,807 claim Adarmjes Insurance
liems having book vaiue
ol less than Rs. 500,000 5211535 4313187 808 348 2822081 102813 MNegaliation Warinlis
2021 36,903,714 25,178,503 11,725,211 16,481,506 4, 756295
2020 114,538,200  T4.341.548 40,106,742 45841404  5.544752

—_— e

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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2021 2020
Note Rupees
4.5 Right of use assets
Year ended June 30
Opening net book value 129,754 816 205,224,718
Additions in lease liabilties 9,951,424 4,701,600
Change due to modification during the yaar 315193 {31,925 290)
Transfer lo oparating fxed assels- book value (5,890,547) (14,810,383)
Less: Dagreciation charge for the year 453 {24,822,265) (33,335,818)
Clozsing net bonk value 109,028,621 129,754,816
As at June 30
Cost 169,937,566 165,841,498
Accumulated depreciation (60,908 945) (36,088,680
Mel book value 109,028,621 128,754,876
4,51 Breakup of net book value of right-of-use assaets by class of underiying asset is as follows:
20 2020
cenemes (RUPEES) —oomees
Land and building 69,984 187 108,023,390
Vahicles 20,476,037 21,731,417
110,460,224 129,754,816
4,52 The nght-of-use assels are deprecialed on straight line basis over the lease term.
4.5.3 Depreciation for the period on right of use assets has been allocated as follows:
20 2020
Hote —esmemes RUPEEE =memeeeme
Cosl of production 25 13,400,475 20,321,304
Distribution costs 28 2,639,022 2120139
Adrmmnistrative expenses 27 8,782,768 10,8554, 575
24832265 _  S3.395878
Breakup of depreclation of right-of-use assets by class of underlying asset is as follows:
20 2020
—mmeees RUPBEE msmmeees
Land and building 18,074,403 19,037 661
Vehicles 6,747,862 14,298,157
i) i ey 1
HUM NETWORK LIMITED 5
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4.6.1

5.1

2021 2020
Rupees ————
Capital wark-in-progress
Leasehoid Land 87420469 _ 15033877
Movament in capital work-in-progress Suring the period:
Balance at baginning of the year 15,933,877 59,031 934
Additions during the peiod 71,486,592 16,336,036
Transfars duning the pariad - (59,434,093
Balancs af end of the pesiod 87,420,469 15,833 877
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Cost Accumulated amortization Book valus Amortisation
Az at Additions Az at A=z at Faor the Az at as at rabe
July 04, June 30, July 01, period June 30, June 30, %
020 2021 2020 2021 2021 PEr ANNUMm
Compuler softwares  5ga3s 748 130400  S8.466 118 37400085 7,708,595 45200880  13.265438 20 - 33
License fee 10,500,000 : 10,500,000  ©385424 366850 9752274 747728 BET
Trade mark 33,724,500 162,000 33BA3500 23572297 4316900 Z7RA9122 5,804 378 20
e SRRl 102,557,218 202,400 102,840,618 70449731 12392345 A2842076 20,007,542
Cost Accumulated amortization Book value Amortisation
As at Additions As at A= at Far the As gt as at rate
July 01, Jdune 30, July 01, yaar June 30, June 30, Y
FURE:] jnz2d 20149 20240 z020 per annum
Computer softwares 55435718 - 58,335,718 28077132 8414853 37492085 20,643,633 20-33
License fee 10,500,000 10,500,000 BOD9EB0 475544 93854724 1,714,576 B 67
Trade mark 32713500 1,008,000 33721500 18,016,055 5553067 23572222 10,149,278 20
June 30,2020 101,549,218 1,008,000 102,557,218 56,006,067 14443664 70,449,731 32,107 487
2021 2020
Amortisation for the period has been allocated as follows: Note s RUpBES seeeeeees
Cost of production 25 9,598,124 10,649,802
Administrative expanses 27 2,794,221 3,793,882
12,392,345 14,443 654

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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6 LONG TERM INVESTMENTS - unquoted subsidiaries

Country of Holding /

incorporalion MNote e i
Rupess —--———
United States
HUM TV, Inc of Amarnca R
10,000 Common stock at & 0.01 (5 100) 8,603 B0
Advance for fulure issue of sharas ($ 200,000) 18,716,750 18,716,750
18,725,353 18,725,353
HUM Metwork UK Ltd United Kingdom 100%:
553,677 Ordinary Share of 1 GBP (GEP 553.677) 95,923,751 95,923,751
Sky Line Publication {Private) Limited Fakistan 100%
3,950,097 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 10 each 39,999 970 395090970
Provision for impairment 6.1 (39,998,370) (38,6899.8970)
United Arab
HUM Network FZLLC Emiratas N
2,200 Ordinary Shares of AED 1000 each (AED
2,400,000) 69,802,371 659,802,371
Advance for fulure i=sue of shares (AED 175431) 4 446 966 4 44B 266
74,249,337 74,249,337
HUMM Co, (Private) Limited Pakistan 100%
4 ordinary shanas of Rs. 10 each 40 40
HUM Mart {Private) Limited PFakistan 0%
14,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 140,000,000 144,000,000
Provision for impairmant 6.2 (140,000,000} -
- 140,000,000
i&&iﬁag‘l 328,898,481

6.1 The Company owns 100% shareholding of Sky Line Publication {Frivate) Limited (Skyline) as al 30 June 20271 100% (2020; 100%),
The principle business of the subsidiary is publishing a monthly English magazine and production and seles of documentary films. The
subsidiary company has earmed a profit aflar tax amounting to Bs. 1,080,782 (2020 incurred loss of Rs. 12,085,550) and acemulated
loss amounting 1o Rs. 87,436,108 (2020 Rs. 88,526,881). As al year end the Company is camying Hs investment in Skyline as a
subsidiary company 8l cosl less impatment [ossas, T any.

Shotine is not generating sufficient cashflows and profits and there 15 no receverability of investment foreseen in future pariod by the
Campary therefore, the managemenl has decided 1o impair Lhe ull cost of investment,

6.2  The Company carried out a review of the recaverable amount of the investment in subsidiaries, The Company estimated the
racovarable amount by using value-in-use method and market approach and based on that amount concluded that the recoverable
amaunt 15 higher than the carrying amaunt. The key assumptions in the value-n-use calculations are the terminal growth rate and the
risk-adjustad pre-1ax discount rata,

6.3 As al the yaar and data, HUM Mart is not generating sufficlant cash ows and profits, The Managamant (5 changing the axisting husinass
modal of the Company o make it profitable, Dua to the existing loesas and in accordance with the requirements undar applicatls financial
reporting framework, the mangement has recordad the impairment loss against investment in these unconsolidated financial statemeants.
fanagement will recansider the recovarability of investment al each reporiing date and provisioning for impaiment will be re-azsessed

accordingly.
2021 2020
e RUPBES ——emeeeeee
T LONG TERM DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
Security deposits
- Lease - 1,322,057
- Rent 6,761,458 6,921,458
- Trada 15,975,435 15,400,141
- Others 4,173,504 4,273,504
26,910,397 27917160
Prepayments
- Software develpomarnt fao 4,210,158 -
31,120,555 27 917,160
HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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10

1014

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

TELEVISION PROGRAM COSTS

Unredeased | released less amortisation

In production

Less: Currant portion

DEFERRED TAX ASSET
Taxable temporary differences arising in respect of:
Unrealized loss on shorl lenm investments - net

Deductible temporary differences arising in respect of:
Unused tax cradite on subscription income

Provisions

Unrealised loss on short term investments - net

Long term lease liabilities - net

Accelarated ax depreciation and amorlisation

TRADE DEBTS — unsecured

Considered good
Less: Allowance for ECL

Allowance for ECL

Balance at the beginning of the year
Provision recognised during the vear
Balance at the and of tha yaar

Particulars of receivable fram forelgn jurisdictions:
United &rab Emirates

Unitad Kingdom

Uniterd States of America

These receivablas are on contracl bas:s and here are no defaulling perbes as of June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2020

Include amount recelvable from the following relaled parties;

HUM TV Inc.
HUM Metwork LIK Limited

The aging of trade debts from athar than related paries s as follows:

Meither past due nor impaired
Pasl due bul net impaired

= M o 30 days

- 31 to 60 days

- Over 60 days

The aging of trade debts from related parties is as follows!

Neither past due nor impairad
Past due but not impaired

- 01 to 20 days

- 3 o 80 days

- Ower 60 days

2021 2020
Note Rupegs -—---—
430,167 561 437 380,500
22,282,250 38,743,250
452 449 811 466,123,750
{1040,385,799) (105,385, 709)
352 064,012 360,737,951
(14,002,837)
. B9 558 636
08,532,348 46,431,207
- 1.388.007
3,512,963 830,469
33,390,632 6677184
135,435,943 144 BAE5 503
121,432,046 144 BA5. 604
104 & 10.5 2,017,638,207 1,763,780, 580
101 (60,853,832) {&7,026,812)
1,956, 785,375 1,716 753,677
47,026,912 47 026,912
13,826,920 -
60,853,832 A7 026,912
75,885,667 84,509, 792
87,464,218 100,932,574
133,164,533 97 452 537
286,524 418 282 885,003
2021 2020
Note Rupees ----- -
73,597,309 73,370,300
B7 464 218 100,932 674
161,061,527 174,302 974
1,422,280,594 900 247 483
208,088 87T 351,056 4072
164,747 058 279,454 5684
61,461,151 53,719,168
—1.656,577.680 _ 1584477615
161,061,527 174,302 974
10.6 161,061,527 174 302,974

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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10,6  The maximum amount outstanding from related parties at any time during the period calculated by reference o
month end balances are as follows:

2021 2020
Note —-—--- Rupees
HUM TV Inc. 73,587,308 243,651,336
HUM Metwors UK Limited 100,932,674 100,032 674
174,520 983 344 584 010
1 SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
At fair value through profit or loss
Term Finance Certificates (TFCs)
Bank of Punjab
2,033 TFCs having face value of Rs.99,860 each - 198,901,230
U Microfinance Bank Limited
8,400 TFCs having face value of Rs.4,992 each 1.4
{ZEZUZ 8,400 TFCs hE‘i’iﬁg face value of R5.4,9'B4 EEE!'I'[ ) 42.3“21”20 42 BO3.BE2
Mutual Funds
Askari High Yield Schems
21,865 units having nel assel value (NAV) of Rs.1023.1229 per unil 2,254 809 -
AKD Opportunity Fund
2,199,809 unils having NAV of Rs. 1387162 per unil 300,749,572 -
ARD Golden Arrow Stock Fund
0449 241 units having NAV of Rs. 16.6286 per unit 157,108,756 -
502415157 241,505 002
111 These camy interest ranging from 10.60% to 10.94% (2020 B EB% to 16 98%:)
12 ADVANCES - unsecured, considered good
Interast frea advances to:
- Producers 84,929 111 52272091
- Suppliers 24,715,168 27,870,135
- Emplayess 8,704,959 9,738,188
- Executives 657,539 G57,539
129,006,777 0,637,954
13 TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT-TERM PREPAYMENTS
Depasits
- Rent 514,500 G64,500
Prepayments
- Insurance 17,088,354 15,872,890
- Rant 160,800 268 498
- Other 3,338,359 2,213,853
20,587,513 18,455,241
21,102,013 19,119,741
HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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14

141

14.2

14.3

144

14.5

15

151

2021 2020
MHote s RUPERE -
OTHER RECEIVABLES - considerad good
Sales tax receivable 14.1 110,254,312 101 406,385
Due from related paries 14.2 90,715,980 B5471,159
Incaomedmerk-up accrued - B0 580
Oither 551,438 551,438
202,221,711 187 498 552
Provision for Impalment 14.5 {57,605.219) {57 605219
144,616,512 128 883 353

As per rule 5| of Sindh Sales Tax Special Procedure (wibholding) Rule 2014, registered persons as recipient of advertisement sarvices shall
withhald whnle of sales tax applicable on the person providing advartizement services, Accordingly, the company s unable to adivst 18 Input tax
deducied on purchases of taxable goods and services as 100% of the oulput tax an the Company's taxable sendcas are belng withheld by the
recipient of these services. However, Company is in correapondence with the redavant authonties through its legal advizor to resolve the matler

20 2020
- Rupees -———-—-
Due from refated panies
HiUM TV, Inc 30,052,260 26,951,421
HLIM Mart {Prrivate) Limited 1,347,185 574 518
Sky Ling Publications (Private) Lirmited 50,346,535 57805219

90,715,360 Ba.471,158
The aqging uf receivables from relaled partes is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired 1,248 468 1,433,365
Past due bt not impaired

- B0 o 80 dayz 1,547 411 E74.813
- over 90 dave 87,820,004 B3.452.081

90,745,980 25471, 150

The maximum amount cutstanding from related parties al any time during the pericd calculated by reference to monih end balances are as foliows,

Hota 2021 2020
wrmmmn e RUPBE semmmaman
HUM TV, Inc 30,052,260 26.851 421
HLUM Mart {Private] Limited 1,317,185 514,519
Skyling Publications (Private) Limited 53,346,535 57605219
E ?1&2@ @.!{ﬂ ‘.IE
Provision for impalmment
Balance &t the bagnning of the yasr (57,605.218) -
Provision made during the year . - {57,605.219]
Balance at the end of the year [57.605,219) {57605, 218)
CASH AND BANK BAL ANCES
Cash In hand 364,499 476,780
Cash at banks
= iM CUrTEN? Accounis 64,844 325 19:538,153
- In deposit accounts 151 200,518,761 121,154 550
355 463,086 141152703

Hﬁﬂﬂiﬂﬁ 141.629,433

These camy profit at the rates ranging fram 5:5% 1o 8% par anrum {2020: 6.5% 1o 11.256%:) par anmum,

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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16 NON-CURRENT ASSET HELD FOR SALE

On 16 July 2020, the management of the Company disposed off land locatad in Karachi at considaration of Rs.
493,340,000 having fair value of Rs. 472,958,100 based on the independent valualion carried out on 30 June 2020 and
nat book value of 16,507,087,

17 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

2021 2020 2021 2020
(Number of shares) e Rupees
Ordinary shares of Re. 1/- each
500,000,000 500,000,000 Fully paid in cash 500,000,000 500,000,000
445,000,000 445.000,000 Issued as fully pald bonus shares 445,000,000 445,000,000
945,000,000 845,000,000 945,000,000 945,000,000

171 As at June 30, 2027, institutions and others held 665950488 and 279,049,511 shares, respectively (June 30, 2020:
604,869,034 and 340,030,966 shares). Voting rights, board selection, right of first refusal and block voting are in
proportion to the shareholding.

2021 2020
Note  —— Rupees
18 LONG TERM LEASE LIABILITIES
Opening balance 133,275,010 185,475,941
Additions during the period 7874151 4,701,600
Change due to modification during the year 35,193 (31,925, 294)
Mark up on lease liabilities 30 15,301,368 22.515,209
Less: Lease rentals paid [34,869,470) (47.492.441)
Closing balance 181 121,616,252 133,275,010
Current portion of long-term {ease liabilities 29,564,860 28,573,737
Long-term |ease liabilities 92,051,392 103,701,273

181  Includes lease finance facility entered inio by the Company with commercial banks for wehicles amounting 1o Rs
81,750,000 (2020: Rs. 115,000,000) out of which Rs. 66,358,190 (2020: Rs. 101,173.870) remains unulilized at period
end. Lease rentals are payable in monthly installments |atest by September 2022,

2021 2020
18 LONG TERM FINANCING - secured MNote ssssscenas Rupees
Islamic banks
Diminshing Musharaka - | 19.1 269,420,550 409,771 B46
Diminshing Musharaka - || 19.2 187,048,496 312,185,127
456,469,046 721,966 973
Less: current maturity (257,640,427} (169,835, 542)
168,828,619 552,131 431
Conventional bank
Term Finance Loan - 2,183,956
Salary Refinance Loan 19.3 144,531,403 -
144,531,403 312,183 096
Less: current maturity (94,838,573} {6,476, 058)
49,692,830 2856707 838

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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19.2

183

20

201

21

211

21.2

Represant Diminishing Musharaka facility carrying profit at the rate of 8 months KIBOR plus 1% (June 2020: 8§ months
KIBOR plus 1%) per annum. The financing is repayable by 24 June 2023 In 48 equal monthly instalments commencing
after a grace period of 12 months from the dale of first disbursemant i.e. from June 2018. The loan is secured by way of
reqisterec mortgage over the bullding on leasehold land.

Reprasant Diminishing Musharaka carrying profit at the rate of 6 moanths KIBOR plus 1% (Jung 2020: & months KIBOR
plus 1%) per annum. The financing is repayable in 48 egual monthly instalments commencing after a grace period of 18
months from the date of first disbursement i.e. December 2017, In 2020, the Company has availed the principal deferment
facility for LTFF offered by the SBP through BPRD circutar no. 13 of 2020 to dampen adverse effects of the COVID-19 and
to provide relief o the businesses. Hence, the financing is repayable by December 2023, Financing is secured by way of
Equitable Morigage over registered office, first par passu constructive mortgage charge over land and first hypolhecation
charge over plant, machinery & equipmenL

Represaents long term-financing from an islamic bank obtained dunng the penicd of Rs. 200 milllon under the refinance
scheme for payment of wages and salaries by State Bank of Pakistan (SBP). The loan carry markup rate at the rate of
SEP rate + 3% however, the loan have been recognised at the present value. The lean is repayable in 8 equal quarterdy
installmants commencing from January 2021 discounted at effective raie of interest. The differential markup has been
recognised as goverment grant which will be amortised to interest income over the period of loan. The facllity is secured by
way of registerad equitable mortgage over land and property with 30% margin,

2021 2020

Deferred Income - Government grant Note Rupees

Opening balance - -
Received during tha year 13,459,991 -
Released (o the statement of profil or loss 28 (8,403,726) -
Closing balance 20.1 5,056,265 -
Current portion (4,495,607) -
Man-current portion 560,658 -

Gowvernment grant has been recorded pursuant to a salary refinance scheme introduced by the State Bank of Pakistan
{IH&SMEFD Circular Nos. 07 &14) to provide loan to businesses at concessional rates to finance salary expense during
the COVID-12 outbresk. The grant has been provided to the Company as a reimbursement of average wages and salaries'
bill for the months of April, May and June 2020 subject to Company's undertaking that no employees have been lzid off,
due/owing to cash flow limitations, for & period of three manths bebween April 01, 2020 to June 30, 2020,

2021 2020
Note Rupaes

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors 211 217,409,409 308 271,132
Accrued liabilities 294,418,683 77,654 739
Due to related party - HUM Network FZ LLC 36,225,306 46,791,822
Withholding tax payable 15,161,701 42,230,593
Payable to provident fund 21.2 1,563,648 1,273 701
Others 17,165,530 15,650,426

581,944 377 492 872413
Include amount payable 1o the Tollowing related parties:

M.D Production (Private) Limited 1,669,008 95,840,684
Digital Enterdainment World (Private) Limited - 45,002,845

1,669,008 140,043 629

Investments out of provident fund have been made In accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the Act and the
rules formulated for this purpose.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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2021 2020
Mote —=ss=== Rupees

22 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS — secured
Short-term running finance—- conventional banks 22 - 189,067,264

221 The Company has shorl-term running finance facilities from various convenlional banks smounting o Rs, 425,000,000 {Juns
2020: Rs. 425,000,000} which remained unutilised at year end (June 2020: Rs. 235.932,736). These facilities carrying markup
ranging from 1 month to 3 month KIBOR + 0.75% to 1%. (June 2020: 1 menth to 3 month KIBOR + C.75% to 1%). Thesa
facilities are securad by way of par passu charge and first hypothecation charge on all current assets of the Company.

222 The Company has losal bill discounting facilities amounting to Rs, 175,000,000 (Juhe 2020: Rs 175,000,000) which remain
unulilized at the year end. These faciliies carmying mark-up rales ranging from 3 months KIBOR + 0.9% o 1% (June 2020: 3
months KIBOR = 0.9% to 1%). These faciites secured by way of pan passu charge and first hypolhecalion charge on all
current assets of the Company.

22.3 The Company has facility egainst letiers of credit aggregating to Rs. 50,000,000 (June 2020; Rs. 50,000.000% which remain
unulilized at the year end. These faciliies secured by way of lien over import documents.

23 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
231 Contingencies

Forthe Ex year 2013, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR ) passed an arder under section 1221} of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 wharain carain disallowances { addbacks ware made to the taxable incoma of the Company. The Company filad
an appeal belore the Commissionsr Inland Revenue (Appeals) against the sforesad order who decided he case againsl (he Company,
The Company challenged the aforesaid order of the CIR (A) befara the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR ) Pursuant to the
above appeal, the ATIR has now passad an appellate order whereby the order passed oy tha ACIR has been remanded back on the
ground that proper opportunity of being heard was not provided to the company. Mo notice hes yet been issued for fresh proceedings.

Tha tax authorities passed an order under section 122 {5A) of tha Income Tax Crdinanca, 2001 for the tax year 2014 wheraby
a lax demand of Rs. 168,186,682 was crealed, The Company has filed appeal before the Commissionar Inland Revenue
[Appeals) (CIR [(A)) in respect of the aforessld order, which is pending adjudication,

Furthermare, the Company has obtained stay from recovery of tax in raspect of the above tax demand from the Sindh High
Court (the Court), till the decision of appeal. The managemant, basad on the legal and tax advica, is confident that the ultimate

cutcome will be in favor of the Company and accordingly, no provision has been made in lhis respect in these financisl
statements.

2314 For tax related matters, refer note 31 to these unconsalidated financial stalements.
232 Commitments
2321 Purchase of lelevision programs commitments with M.D Production (Privale) Limiled - a relaied party as al June 30, 2021

amounted to Rs. 175,514,000 (June 30 2020: Rs. 155,579,500). Commitment for purchase of television programs with other
than related parties a5 at June 30, 2021 smounted 1o Rs. 71,736,000 (June 30, 2020 Rs. 84,222, 500).

HUM NETWORK LIMITED

83




Annual Report 2021

24.2

REVENUE - net

Advarisamant revenua
Production revenus
Digital revenue
Sunscription incomes
Film distribution revenue

Revenue is net off the Tollowing items:

Sales tax
Digcount to customers

Represents revenua from the following geegraphical regions:

Asla
America

COST OF PRODUCTION

Cost of outsourced programs
Cost of in-housa programs
Cost of inventory consumed
Salaries and benefils
Depreciation

Traveling and conveyance
Utilities

Rent, rates and taxes
Insurance

Repair and maintenance
Fee and subscription
Communication

Security charges
Amortization

Consultancy

Printing and stationery

In production elevision programs — opening
In production television programs - closing

Released | unreleased programs - opening
Released | unreleased programs - closing

2021 2020
Mote Rupees -—--—
3,508,022 187 3,086,247 608
67,299,884 51,405,210
47,036,575 42,880,157
704,967,420 483 802 784
- 15,042,231
2411 24.2 4,327,326,066 3,670,468 088
502,997 087 440,971 672
330,388,488 248,715,703
833,385,575 680,687 375
3,828,961,128 3,402,041,047
498,364,938 277 427,041
4,327,326,066 3,679 468,088
1,449 206,687 1480732 577
128,361,607 238,684,117
2,721,280 343,582
251 601,660,804 676,880,163
435453 161,731,151 180,061,457
35,312,405 38,778 806
20,732,088 16,375,363
535,389 1,838,183
25,091,917 22818,782
39,595,665 20,734 444
103,226,704 50,054 645
15,882,786 17,554,272
382,000 612,213
5.1 0 .598.124 10,648,802
5,466,961 4,956 291
1,064,049 1,581,224
2,600,669,627 2,781,651,861
38,743,250 54,213,918
(22,282,250) [38,743,250)
2,617,130,627 2,787,122,547
427,380,500 386,400,500
(430,167 561) (427,380,500)
2,61 4t3_iﬁl555 2,756,142,547

Include Rs. 23 635 656 (2020: Rs. 26,580,044} in respect of staff retirement benefits.
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26 DISTRIBUTION COSTS 2021 2020
MHote ——--— Rupees -——-—
Advertisemeant and promotion 91,004, 045 135,202 148
Salaries and benalils 261 120,538,937 122,174,629
Traveling and convevance 10,435,718 9815 760
Rent. rates and taxes 90,983 5,808
Lltilities 1,751 418 BET 803
Depraciation 438453 3,509,986 3,261 480
Communication 1,267,513 1,391,337
InsUrance 2524783 2,716,465
Repalr and maintenance 1,926,678 2,166,613
Fees and subscription 2,119,504 1,884 746
Printing and zlationary 180,979 231,967

— 233410544 279841770
261 Include Re. 6162 805 (2020 Rs. 4 BT 023) In raspect of stafl reliremeant benafits.
27 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and benafils 271 401,738,686 214 452 376
Technical advisory fee 27.2 41,400,000 41.400,000
Diepraciation 438453 45,006,648 52 408,160
Amortisation 51 2,794,221 3,743 B2
Repalr and maintenance 39,774,884 27 738,768
Cammunication 5227 144 4 371,987
Treveling and conveyance 18,579,225 52 926,755
Fee and subscription 19,281,925 7,880,334
Litilitias 25875191 24 561 5620
Legal and professional charges 29,295,203 10413032
Printing, stafionery and penodicals 5,618,270 4,564,302
Renl, rales and laxes 9,492,188 8 366,763
Insurance 5173203 4 628 769
Auditors” remuneration 7.3 5,618,954 4 870,158
Security charges 8,139 457 10,272,261
Danation 274 200,000 1 ARD 54D

683205499 475120028
271 Include Rs. 4,803,800 (2020 Rs. 4,956,932) in respect of stafl rebirement beneafits.

7.2 Reprasents {ee paid o a Director for technical advisory services rendered in tlerms of the echnical advisory agreement duly
approved by the Board of Directars of the Company.

273 Auditors' remuneration 2021 2020
P—— Rupees JR———

Adardit frae 1,500,000 35,000
Fee for consolidated fingncial stalements 550,000 550.000
Fee for half yearly review 450,000 326,000
Tax and other assurance sarvices 2,518,954 2,276,560
Cut of pocket expenses 500,000 783 598

5518954 4 870,158

274 Interest af tha Directors or thelr spouses in the donations made during the year is as follows:
Mames of interested directors and

Mame of donee and addrass nature of interest 2021 2020
rmnmins RUPEES em————

Momimna and Durard Foundation (Plol No. 10/ Mr, Duraid Qureshi - Truslea

hassan ali street, off L1 Chundrigar road, Karachi.  Ms. Sultana Siddiqui - Trustes - 1,480,649

28 OTHER INCOME
Income from financial assets

Profil on bank accounts 16,634,989 13,005,862
Exchange {loss) f gain (863,932) 15,243,773
Dividend income 177,973 150,000
Interest ! markup income 7,242, 865 63,157,955

Government grant 8,403,726 -
Linrealised gain / (loss) on revaluation of investmeants 110,580,114 [4,1688,063)
{Loss) [ gain an redemption / sale of investments {12,426,115) 1,608,558
129,749,620 88,878,105

Incame from non financial assets
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assels 4,756,296 5,644,752
Sale of content end festival revenue 26,066,181 79,128,300
30,822 47T B4 773,052
160572007 _ 173651157
HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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2021 2020
Mote RUpEES -———em-
29 OTHER EXPENSES
Allowance for ECL 104 13,826,920 57,605,219
Provislan for impaimment of investment in subsidiary il 140,000,000 39,999,970
153 HEEIEEG ﬂ?lﬁﬂﬁjﬁﬁ
a0 FINANCE COSTS
Mark-up on long term linancing 63,287 927 164,400 120
Mark-up on short term borrowings 20,906,003 53,548 307
Finance lease charges 15,301,368 22,515,209
Bank charges B9, 869 978,235
100,365,167 241 450871
| TAXATION
Current 60,293,350 G068 537
Defarrad 23,453 457 (B8 G7 3 45806)

= 6,410,385

3t 92 Tﬂég? (22 E‘{ 5?-4!

31 The Company has filed its return of Income up to tax year 2020, The return 5o filad s deemed to be an assessment arder
issued by the Taxation Authorities on {he date the complele retum is filed. The Company is mainly subject to Minimum Tax
Fegime under Secion 153((1) (b)) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, therefore, relationship between income tax expense
and accounting profit has not been presented.

.2 The Company filed a Constitutional Petition (CP) before the Court on September 27, 2018 challenging the tax under sgcticn
54 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, The Courl accepted the CP and granted a stay against the above section. In case
the Courl's decision is nol in favor of the Company, Lthe Company will either be required 1o declare the dividend o the exient
of 40% of afler tax profits or il will be liable o pay addiionzl lax 5l the rale of 7.5% of the accounting profil before tax of the
Company for the financlal year ended June 30, 2018,

The Sindh High Court (the Court), through its order datad 30 Aprl 2021, daciared the inserfion of saction 54 of the
Ordinance as ultra vires to the Constitiution of |slamic Republic of Pakistan, 1973 and therefore siruck down the provisions
of the aforesaid sechon. Accordingly. in light of the above judgement of the Court, the provisions of section 54 of the
Ordinance are no longer applicable on the Company, until such matter is decided othenvise by the Honorable Supreme
Court

.3 Dunng the year 2017, Deputy Commissicner Inland Revenue issued a show cause nolice to the Company, for the tax year
2014, showing his intention 1o disallow the deduction claimed on account of agency commission on alleged non-deduction of
&% on such agency commission. The Company filad & suit before the Hon'ble High Court of Sindh challenging the above
showeatse notice,

Based on a recant judgement of the Hon'ble Supreme Court of Pakistan, suits filed by taxpavers are not to be maintainad
unless 50% of the tax dua is deposited by the paeliticnars, In compliance to the abovea ordar, the Company has dapositad an
amount of 24,385,012 into the Government treasury, The decision in respect of the Suit filed by the Company is still pending,

2021 2020
=——--— Rupess --——--—-
32 EARNINGS / (LOSS) PER SHARE - basic and diluted
Profit / {loss) for the year 1,014,396,685 (113.238.491)
Weighted average number of ordingry sharss
outstanding during the period ad-ﬁ!uﬂusunu 945,000,000
Earnings [ {loss) per share (Rupes) 1.07 (0.12)
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2021 2020
meemanees RLUPBEE eeaaee
33 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Profil / [loss) betore laxation 1,107,143,492 {136,120,065)
Adjustments for :
Depreciation 210,337,785 244 721 156
Amortisation 12,392,345 14,443 664
Finance eosts 100, 365167 241,450,871
Provision for amployes retiremant benefit - 58392, 751%
Unrealized exchanges loss / (gain) 863,932 {15,243 773)
Profil on deposit accounis (16,634,889) (13.0056.882)
Cain on disposal of oparating fixed assels (4,756,296) (5,544, 752}
Gain on dispesal of non-current asset held for sale (476,832,913) -
Lass { (prafit) on redemption ( sale of invesiments 12 426,115 (1,508 6558)
Dividend income (177.973)(| (150, 000%
Provision for impatrment 153,826,920 97,605,182
Unrealised (gain) / loss on revalualion of investments (110,580,114) 4,188,063
(118,770,021} 572,705,729
(Increase) { decrease in current assats
Inventories 323,244 || 2,548,010
Current partion of television program costs 5,000,000 108,000,000
Trade debls (254, 722,550) 75,193,063
Advances (38,368,823) 25,780,852
Trade deposits and shorl lerm prepayments (1,882,272) (5,621,847)
Other racahabies (14,723,159) {21,651 7O8)
(304,473,560) 154,347 980
(Increase) ( decrease in current liabilities
Trade and olher payables BA,071,964 {347,000, 730)
Advance from customers 14,964,078 5,498 616
787 9350853 280,428 530
34 REMUMERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
2031 020
Chinf Exocutive Chial Excoutive
Executlus Directar Directars Eumcutives Exscutive Directar Directars Euscutives
Wanageril reaiuheration 31,161,290 - . 167,728,678 31,161,990 174,04 3.409
Fee 2,300, 000 AET5.000
Bones 87,753,993 87,753,993 - - - - -
Rotrermnant banefils - - a 12,051,188 12847 819
Houss rent 14,022 584 - - 2,303,947 14,022 554 - 56,593,943
Uklitles 3116120 - - 13,848,453 3406,125 - 16,220,756
Carallowaros: 0438072 22,500 000
Techrical adviscry fee - 41,400,000 = : 41,400,000 = :
Fudd ared comveyance 1,348,577 15,0 548,085 8,785,309 1, 343.515 B34, 38 489,512 8821 361
157 531 642 1 k] 49, 085 T30, 553 Al 18 [FFEERT] 3174 32 JROTD 267
Hutbar w g‘r‘— —@"5— 2‘134 v Bl
341 The Chisl Exacutive and cadain Execulivas ara also provided with fres use of Company maintained cars in accordanca wilh (he Compary's palicy
and reimbursement of expanses related to business travel.
342 I'het aggregale amaunt charged in the financial stelemanls for meeling fee 10 non-executive deectors amounted b Rs. 300,000 (2020: Rs. 675,000}
HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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35 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Redalpd partes of the Compary oomprise subsifianes, sssocialed compnes, relitemen) furds, dineclos and key mamnagemenl persornel.  Delails of bansaclions wilb relaled
parhis duning fe pened, oihar than lhose which have been disciosen eismahers in these firancial sisiamenis are e folloss

2021 20240
Redationshinp Mature of iransactions Rupens
Subsidiaries Expurses pad on behall of tho Compsany 23,428,727 26,402,224
Expenses pad on behall of the subsidiary 5478 382 TAT 514
Pyt recoivind on bt of subsidiary 45,211 355 27 BE3.2E0
Payrnent recehed en bengl of e Company 15045173 2245812
Maragaman lea 4, 782 0D 4 B1L500
Payment rrade during ine year 3,618,408 146, TiT3, 245
Prol=ssional or promictaonsl senices acqured 3,335,000 Gl GV oaAT
Submeriplion inoome 47474 B30 4,885,174
Purchases of goods 3.616.408 B, 708, 248
Associaled Companies Purcheses of iekrimion wograms righls 1,263,468 397 1,142 864,102
Expenses paid on benalf of the assackals 22 4470 B0 18,238, Mk
Payment mnde durng the aerod 1,321,362 543 1537 378 260
Cthers Cantribution to the orovidert fund 33.702.081 36,523,599

Al fransactions with relaled parlies are enlened inlo al sgreed lerms gy approved by Ihe Board of Drectocd of the Corpary. The outstarnding receicable and payabile alances of
the refatan partes are discloses o thar respachve nolas 1o thess uncorseidated fnencial statamans

ELR Falicwang are the related peries with whom the Company had entered into fransections or have amangemant [ agreement in placa:

Aggregate Y%
S.No. Company Name Basis of association af
ahnarehalding
1 Skviing Publications (Privats) Linited Subsidiary 1004%
2 HLUM T Inc. Subsidiary 100%
3 HUM Metwork FZ LLGC Bubsidiary 100%
4 HUM Metwork UK Limitsd Subsidiary 100%
5 HL Rdant (Privista ) Limitad Subsidiary T
& 0.0 Productzons (Prvate) Limied Aspocisted company (36.1.1) -
7 Momina & Duraid Fims (Prvate) Limied Agsopted company (38.1.1) -
g Momina and Durad Foundalion Aazocisted company (36.1.1) -
a HUM MHetwork Limited- Emplovess’ Provident Furnd Fetirement Fund -
1 Ma. Sultania Siddiqui Direcior 0.02%
£k | Mr. Mazhar ul Hag Skddigui Direciar -
12 br. Dwrald Oureshi Direcior 24.30%
13 r. Shursid Cureshi Qirecior 5.38%
T4 Mre. Mahtab Akbar Rashdi Direcior -
5 LiGen (R} Asif Yasin Mallk Pirecior
16 BAr. s ammad Aib Younus Adhi Girecior -
i Mr, Schad Ansar Cirector -
18 M. Nabigna Massser Mesoos Direcioar -
18 P, Mbubsarramesd Abbas Hussam Kay managemant Parsanmal =
20 Mir, hdahsin Mesem Key managamsant Personne! -
A5494 These enhibes are aesociated companiss § snierakings of the Company under Comparies Acl, 2017
5.2 Subsidiaries incorporated outside Pakistan:
Mama Country of Incofporation
HUB TV, Ine. United States of America
HLI Metwork FZ LLG Uritee Araby Emiratos
HUM Netwaork LK Limdlad United Kingcom

53 [vone-of the Key managament parsonnel had any amangemants with the Company athar than the employmant contract.
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2021 2020
MNote RUpBES s-seames

36 FIMAMCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

361  Financial assets as per statement of financial position
Financial assets at amortised cost
- Long temm deposils 7 31,120,555 27,917,160
= Trada debts n 1,856,785,375 1,716, 753.677
- Trade depaosits 13 514,500 A64,500
- Other receivables 14 33,662,200 26,486,988
- Cash and bank balances 15 355 B27 585 141,620,483

2,377,910,215 1,915.451.7886

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Short term investments 13

36.2 Financial liabilities as per statement of financial position
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

50%‘1 5!13? 241!54}5!092

= Long temm financing 18 248,521 4458 837,838 3609
- Daferred Incoma - Govemmeant grant 20 560,658 -
- Trade and ather payables 21 566,762,676 450,641,820
- Agcrued mark-up B,092,693 2,860,434
- Short term barrowings 22 - 185,087,264
Current portion of deferred income - Government grant 20 4,485 607 -
Current partion of long tarm financing 19 352,479,000 196,311,600
Uneclsimed dividend 5,048 490 5,048 420
Unpaid dividend 205,159 205,158
1I1 I!Tim!?:ﬂ 1-5'5.%2?4113,55

7 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT DBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Tha Company's activilies expose it to a varaly of financial ricks i e market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and
price risk), credit rsk and liquidity rsk, The Company's overall risk managament programme focuses on the unpredictatility
of financial markets and seeks o minimise potential adverse effects on the Company's financial performance.

The Company’s senior management overseas the management of these nsks. The Company's senior managemen! provides
palicies for overall sk managemeant, as well as policies covering specific aress such as foreign exchanga risk, interest rate
risk and credit risk, use of financial derivatives, financial instruments and investment of excess liquidity. It is the Company's
palicy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes shall be undertaken.

The Board of Directors review and agree policies for managing each of these risks which are summarized balow:

371 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that fair value of future cash flows will flucluate because of changes in markel prices. Markel prices
comprise three lypes of risk: intarasl rata risk, currency nsk and equily price nsk, such as eguily risk.

37.2  Interest rate risk

Interest rate nek is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in
the market interest rates. The Company's interest rate risk arses from long term financing and finance lease obligations,
shart term borrowings and bank balances. The Company manages these rigks through risk management strategies.

Sensitivity analvsis:

The following figures demonstrate the sansitivity 10 a reasonably possibla change in interest rate, with all othar variables hald
constant. of the Company's profit before laxation:

Increase [
decreasein Lo RO
basis points
Rupees
June 30, 2021 +100 (2,202.015)
=100 2,202,015
June 30, 2020 +100 (11,145 8821
00 11,149 BHZ
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ar.s

Currency risk

Farelgn currency risk is the rizk that the value of financial assets ar financlal Habilities will fluctuate dus o a change in foreign
axchange rates, |t anses mainly where receivables anc payables exist due to transactions in foreign currencies. The Company's
exposure to foreign currency nNsk is as follows:

June 30, 2021 ——-— =semeee= Jung 30, 2020 »-—e-
AED Us Dollar GBP AED Us Daollar Gep
Trade debts 1,403,932 399,380 - 1,139.801 492,354
Other receivablas 190,808 - - 180,803 .
Trade and aother payables {852 364) (355,706) - (1,028,392} (406.532) -
—— Rupgees - -——— Rupees ————

Sensitivity analysis:

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity (o a ressonably possible change in e US dollar sard GBP exchange rate, with all
atner variables held constant, of the Company's profit bafore taxation:
Effect on Change in Effect an

Change in Change in GBP Effect on
profit before US doltar profit before

AED rate (%) e rate (%) S rate {%) profit before tax

== Rupees =-- = Rupees --- == Rupees =
June 30, 2021 +10 {3.665.165) +10 19,514,786 +10 8.626.608
=10 SEHEE 165 =10 {1 51351 Q!;E! =10 ;i 626 HDEI
June 30, 2020 “10 __ (4679.182) 410 __ 14086407 +10 ___ 10093267
-10 4,675,182 -10 (14 SBG.407) 10 {10,083 257)

Equity price risk

The Company's investments are susceptinle to marke! price nsk- arsing from uncerainties about future values of investmeant
securties. The Company manages the equity price risk through diversification and placing fimits on individual and totsl investments,
Hepors on the invasimeants portfolio are submitted 1o the Company's sanior manegemeant on 8 reqular basis

As of the statement of financial positon date, the exposure to investments at fair value through profit or loss was Rs. 502,£15,156
(30 June 2020° Rs. 241,505,002).

Credit risk

Credit nsk is the risk which anses with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge its obligation and
cause the other party to incur a financial loss. Conceniration of credit risk arsa when a number of counterparties are engaged in
similar business activities or have similar ecocnomic features that would cause their ability to mest contractual obligations o be
similary affected by changes In economic, politicsl or other conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of
the Company's performance fo developments affecting & particular indusiry,

Tha risk managemeant function is reguiarly conducting detailed analysis on seclors ( industries 10 denlify the degnee by which the
Company's customers and their businesses have been impacted amid COVID-19. Keeping in view shod-term and long-term outlook
of each sector, management has taken inlo considerstion the factors while calculating expected credil losses against Tade debis
and othar recsivables.

Management of credit risk

The Campany's policy is 1o enter inta financial contracts In accordance with the guidatines set by the Board of Directors and other
infernal guidelines.

Credit fisk is managed and contralled by the management of the Campany In the fallowing mannar:

- Credit rating 8nd [ or credit worthiness of the counterparty is tgken into sccounl glong with the financial background so 85 o
minimizg the risk of default,

- The risk of countarparty sxposure due to {ailed agreements causing a loss to the Company is mitigated by a periodic review of their
credil ratings, financial slatements. credil worthinass and market information on a reguiar basis.

- Cash is held with reputable banks only.
As of the unconsolidaled statement of financial position cale, the Company s exposed to credil nsk on the following assets:

2021 2020
——— Rupees
- Long term deposits 31,120,555 27,917,180
= Trade debts 1,856,785,375 1,716, 753,877
- Short term Invesiments 502,415,157 241,505,052
- Trade deposits 514,500 Bfi4,500
- Qiher recelvables 33,662,200 28,486,968
- Bank balances 355,463,086 141,152,703
. f 2, 156,480,100
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The credit quality of financial assets can be assessed by reforence to external credit ratings or 1o historizal information abaut

counterparty default rates:

Trade debts

Customers with no defaulls in the pasl ones year
Customers with some defaulls in past one year

Bank balances
Al+
A-1
Al
Short term investments
Mutual funds AMI=+
MFR 5-Star
AlT)
Term finance cerificate A
A+
fi-

376 Liquidity risk

Mote

10

15

"

2021 2020

Rupees

1,956,785,375 1,716, 753877
60,853,832 47,026.912
2,017 639,207 1,763,780.589
354 695,094 141,146 955
767,992 -

- 5748
355,463,086 141,152 703
157,108,756 -
300,749,572 -

2,254,800 -
460,113,137 =
42,302,020 -

- 188,801,230

- 42,603,862
502 415157 241 505,082

Ligguidity risk is the rizsk that the Company will not be ahle to meat its financial oiigatione as they fall due. The Company appliss
prudent risk managament policies by maintaining sufficient cash and bank balancas and by keeping committed cradit lines.

Due to COVID-19 oulbreak the Company's customers and their businesses have been adversely impacted. The management is
conlinuausty monitoring e liguidity positon and is eking necessary pracaulionary measures where nesdecd

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company's financial abilities as at the following reporting dates;

2021 On demand L';.'u‘mhﬁ 3 310 12 months 1 to 5 years Total
Rupees
Long lerm lease liabilites - 5,979,119 23,585,741 92,051,392 121,616,252
Lang term financing - 87,703,546 264,775,454 248,521,449 601,000,449
Trade and ofher payables 288,864,088 227,197,945 49,156,995 - 565,219,028
Detarad Income - Governmant grant - 1,570,255 2,925 352 560,658 5,056,265
Shart termn bomawing - - - - -
hgcrued mark-up 8,092,693 - - - B,092,693
296,956,781 322 450 BES 340.443. 542 341,133,499 1,300 984 687
2020 On demand "E:u"'m: 4 3 to 12 months 110 5 years Total
Rupess
Lang term leass liablliies - 4 BT9 7R9 25 841 107 170,774,112 201 494 H08
Lorg term finarcing B0, 558,183 237 B4T B4R 049 485 375 1, 247651 101
Trade and other payables 56,515,726 J30470,145 62 442248 - 449 358,118
Short term bormowing - 180,067 264 - - 189,0&7 264
Accrued mark-up 2060 434 - - - 2860454
59,376,160 504,514 381 325930,638 1,120 259 487 2 ﬂBﬂ.—tS‘réﬂﬂ
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37.6.1 Changes in liabilities from financing activities

1-Jul-20 Cash Flows New leases Othears 30-Jun-21
{Rupees in "000)
Lang term financing 1,034,150,980 (433,150,520) - - 601,000,449
Long term lease fiablities 1332 I-'E'.l:lﬂ}__ {M.%Q.dﬁ 7874151 15,336,561 121 .616.2_52_.
1-Jul18 Cash Flows New leases Others 30-Jun-20
e (RUp e @S in "000)
Long term financing 1,350,555,062 316,404,003) - - 1,034, 150,969
Long term lease liabilities 185.475.941 (47 402.441) 4,701,600 18.410,080) 133.275.010

37.6.2 Fair value of financial instruments

The carmyng values of all financial assets and habilities refiected in the unconsolideted financial statements appropnate their fair
values,

37.7  Capital risk

The Company finances its operations through equity, bomawings and management of working capital with & view of maintaining
an appropriate mix between varous sources of finance to minimize risk. The primary objective of the Company's capital
managemeant is o ensure that it maintains healthy capital ratics in order to support its business sustain future development of the
business and maximize sharehalders value. The Company monitors capital using a debt equity ratio as follows:

3T.e

2021 2020

Naote Rupggs e—---e-
Lang term lease liabiities 18 82 051, 392 103,701,273
Long term financing 19 248,521,449 837 830,369
Deferred Income - Government grant 20 560,658 -
Trade and other payatle 21 581,944,377 402 872 413
Accrued markup 5,092,693 2,860,434
Shor term bomowing 22 - 189,067,264
Cumrent partion of defered Income - Government grant 20 4,495 607 -
Currant partbon of long term leasze liabilities 18 29,564,860 29573737
Current portion of long erm financing 18 352 479 000 186,311,600
Total debt 1.317.710,036 1.852.226.090
Cash and bank balances 15 (355,827 585) (141620 483)
Met debt 961,882,451 1,710,596,607
Share capital 17 945,000,000 945, 000,000
Unappropriated profil 3.118.,470,793 2,104 .074,108
Total equity 4,063,470,793 3040074108
Capital 5025353244 4 759.670.71
Gearing ratio 19.14% A5.94%

Fair value measurement

Fair valua is the price thal would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer & liability in an orderly transacton betwaan market

participants at the measurement date.

The carrying values of all financial assels and liabilities reflected in the financizl stalements approxmals fair values,

The following table shows assets recognised al fair value, analysed betwean those whose fair value is based on:

Lewval 1; Guoted prices in active markets for dentical assets or lahbililiss,

Level 2, Those involving inputs other than guoted prices included in Level 1 thal are observable for Ihe assat o liability, either
directly {as prices) or indirectly (denved from pricesy, and

Level 3: Those whose inpuls for the asset or izbility that are nol based on obserable market data (unobservable mpuls),

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Assets measured at fair value

2021 2020
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
{Rupees)
Short term mvestments w ﬂi !2 % - w 241 snglﬁz

During the period, there were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 fair value maasurements, and no transfers into and out of level
3 falr value measurement.

A7.8  Financial instruments which are tradabls in an open market are ravalued at the market prices prevailing on the statament of fnancial

pasition date.
a8 OPERATING SEGMENTS

For managemaeant purposes, The Company has determined following reportable operating segmaéants on the basis of areas of operations
1.e. entertainment and News.

Enledainment sagmen s engaged in adverlisemant, anlertainment and media markaling.

Mews segments s engaged In hroadeoasting of news pmgrams,

a8

Entertainmant News Total
2021 2020 201 2020 021 2020

Revenug
Met revenue from exlemsal

customer 4,068.565,371 3.480,085,360 258 660,695 199,382,728 4,327.326 066 3,670,458, 088
Result
Sagmant prafit ! (loss) 1,831,210,238 1,074,284 452 (444,074, 470) (606G BRI, TAR) 1,387,135,768 GO A 14 654
Taxatian (32,746 80T) 22,881 574
Unaliocated incoma |

[expansas) :
Adminisiralive expenges {663,205,109) (475,128,824}
e EXpansas {153,826,920) (97 605, 188)
Dhiar nGomea 160,572,087 173651157
Galn on sale of non-current assat held for sala 476,832 813 .
Finands cost {100,385,16T) (241,450.871)
Profit | (loss) for the period 4,014,396, 685 (113,230 491}
Other Infarmation
Amortization (7,157,856} 8.281.408) (5,234 389} (5,162, 256) {12,392,345) {14,443.6584)
Degreciation (41,079,871} (50.343.078) (169,257,914} {185388.078) {210,337.785) [244.731.156)
Bagmaent pssels 372,202,538 Ja0 648 848 011,621,224 1.053.331.155 1,283,824 163 1.413.878,003
Unallocated Assots - - - - 4. 132,103,521 3,507 102 972

E?ZIZCR D35 WU.H‘%E& 011,621,224 liﬂﬁﬁ 3311155 5.415.027,684 2 8521082075

Cagilal exporsdilurne 'Illsl'l 4. 252 Ta7 354213 24, 628,727 10,207 652 30.042,79 B3.0E3. 078

Sagmant lkabifibins

*

= "

597,969,267 GGG 553,350 754 487624

1202 4bh G5 ‘Ilﬂdﬁiﬂﬁi 1,872 CU8 867

Revenua from three major customers of the Company during the period constituted B4% (2020: 59% - two Customers) of the total

ravanuea
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39 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The total number of employess and average numbar of employees at perod end and during the perod respectively are as follows:

2021 2020
- Rupees
Tolal number of employess 711 T
Average nurmber of employess during the perlod 677 789

40 GENERAL
For better prasentation, cerain prior year figures have been raclassified conssquent to certain changes in cumant penod presentation,

40.2  Figures have been rounded off 1o the nearest Rupee

41 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

These lmancial staiements have been aulthonsed for ssue on Oclober 22, 2021 by the Board of Dractars of the Company.

fk_iﬁ;f/ T i
DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQUI MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Chairman Chief Financial Officer

HUM NETWORK LIMITED




Annual Report 2021

CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HUM NETWORK LIMITED




Annual Report 2021

Building a better
warking world

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the members of Hum Network Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of Hum Metwark Limited {the Holding Company) and its subsidiary
ithe Group), which comprise the consolidated statemeant of financial position as at 30 June 2021, and the consolidated statemeant of
profit or loss, consolidated staternent of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changss in equity, the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year than andaed and natas to the conaalidated financial statemants, including a summarny of significam
accounting policies and othaer axplanatory informiation,

In our opinion, consohdated inancial stalemeants give a true and fair view of the consalidated financial pasition of the Group as at 20
June 2021, and of its consolidated financial perdormance and its consclidated cash Mows for the year then ended in accordance with
the-accounting and reporting standards a5 applicable in Pakistan

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable In Pakistan, Qur responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibiities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Siatemants
saction of our repart. We are independent of the Group In accordance with the Imemational Ethics Standards Baard lor Accoumtants'
Code of Ethics lor Prolessional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Charlerad Accountanis of Pakistan (the Code), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibllites In accordance with the Code, Wa belizve that 1he audit evidence we have obtalnad s
suflicient and appropriate to pravide a basie for our opinien.

Key Audit Matters

Kay audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgmeant, were of most signiticanca in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the cument year. These matiers were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financal statements
as a whole, and in forming our opinion therecn, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Following are the Key audit matters:

Key audil matlers

How the matier was addressed in our audit

1. Net realizable value of television program costs

Az of the year end, the balance of television program cosls
amounted to Rs. 452 443,811 (30 June 2020: 466,123,750)
which represents unamortized cost of completed television
programs and television programs in production.
A par the accounting policy of the Company, television program
costs and acquired talevision program licensas and rights are
charged io expensa based on tha ratio of the evanues sarmed
till date to total revenues to be earmed from the program
including tuture astimaled revanuas, less cost expansad n
prior years on-an individual program basis.

Allocation of television program cosls over several accouniing
pariods basad on astimates of revenus Involve significant
judgemeant of the managameant which may have a significant
impact an tha consolldated financial statements. Faor this
reason, we have identitied this area as key audit matter.
Rafer notés 3.6, 8 and 26 to the consolldated financial
siatameanis,

Our audil procedures amongst olhers, comprised reviewing the

appropriateness of the accounting poliey af the Company in

accordance with the-applicable financial reporting standards.

Furthar, we oblained understanding of the revanus estimation

and amortization process of the Company.

In‘this regard, we selocted a sample of television programs and

considered the factors used by the managamant lor ravanus

esfimaton and amonizaton of television program cost including:

* histaric axperience ol revenus earned by similar
programs;

. ralings ol the program from available evidences;

. rates used by the Company and its fHustuation
based on the trand analysis; and

« we also consldered subsequant avents which may have
an impact on unamortized cost,

We also evaluated whathar adequata disclosures have been

mada in the accompanying consolidated financial statamants in

accordance with tha applicable financial reporting siandards.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditors' Report Theraon

Managament is responsible for the other information, The other information comprisas the informatien includad in the Annual Report,
but does not includs the consolidated financial statements and our auditors' report theraon

Cur oplnion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance.
conclusion thareon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial stalaments, our respansibility |s to read the othar information and, In delng
g0, consider whather the other information s materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
potaimed in the audit-or otherwise appears lo be malerially misstated. Il, based on the work we have parformed, we conclude that
thiere ts a8 material misstatament of this other information, we are required to repor that fact. We have nothing to repart in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is rezponsible for the preparation and lalr presentation of the consoiidated linancial statements in accordance with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakisian and Companias Act, 2017 and lor such infermal control as management
dstermines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statamants that are fras fram material misstatemant,
whether due to fraud or emor.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concemn, disclosing, as applicable, mallers ralalsd to going concern and using the going concern basis of acsounting unless management
gither intends lo liquidate the Group or to cease operalions, or has no realistic allernative bul to do so.

The Board ol Directors are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financlal reporting process,
Auditor's Responsihilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financia! Statements

Our objectlves ara to obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to Iraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonabie assurance
ts.a high lavel of assurance, but is not & guarantae that an audit conducied in accordance with |SAs as applicabla in Pakistan will
always detect 3 material migstatement when it exists, Misstatemants can arise from fraud or error and are considered matenal if,
individually ar in the aggragate, they could reasonably be expacted to influence the aconomic decisions of usars taken on the basis
of thesa consolidated financlal statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs as applicable In Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skapticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identity and assess the risks ol material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether dua to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
oblain audit evidence that s sulficient and appropriate to provide a basis lor our opinion. The risk
ol not datecting a material misstatemant resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
arrar, as fraud may |Involve collusion, forgery, intentional emissions, misreprasentations, or the
override of internal contral.

. Obtain an understanding of intemnal contral relevant te the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. but not Ior the purpose of axprassing an opinion on tha
effectivenass of the Group's Internal contral.

. Evaluate the appropriatieness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
esfimates and related disclosures made by management.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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- Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis ol accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtalned, whethar a material uncertalnty exists related fo events
or cenditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's abllity to conlinug as a golng concern.
[T we conclude that a material unecedainty exists, we are reguired to draw atlention in our auditor’s
rapart to lhae related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, it such disclosures
are inadequate, to modlfy our epinion. Our conclusions are based on the audlt evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, fulure events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continueg as a going concern.

. Evaluate the ovarall presenfation, structure and contenl ol the consolidated linancial statemants,
including the disclosures, and whather the consolidated finanzial statemants reprasant the undarlying
transactinns and events in a mannar that achieves fair presentation.

= Obtain suificient appropriate audit evidence regarding the linancisl mfermation of the entities or
business aclivitias within the Group to express an opinion an the consolidated financial slalemeants.
We are responsible lor the directlon, supservision and partormance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit apininn.

We communicate with the Board of Direclors regarding, amang cther matiers, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audil findings, including any significant deficiencies i intarnal control that we [dentily dunng our audit.

We also prewide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements ragarding independancs,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonzably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related saleguards.

Fram tha mattars communicated with the Board of Directors, we daetarmine those matters that wara of most significance in tha audit
of tha consolidated financial statements of the current year and are thersfore the kay audit matters. We deseribe these matters In our
auditor's report unless faw or regulation preciudes public disclosure sbout the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, wa
determine thal a matter should not be communicated in our regort because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expecied lo outweigh the public interest banelits of such communication

The engagement partner an the audit resulling in this independent auditors' raport Is Omer Chughtal.

Sd/-
Ey Ford Rhodes
Chartered Accountants
Place: Karachi
Date: October 22, 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30, 2021

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and eguipment
Intangible assets

Lang term invesimenls

Long tarm deposils

Tedavigion program costs
Deferred tax esset

CURRENT ASSETS

Inveniories

Current parion of telavision program costs
Trade debls

Short term investmenis

Advances

Trade deposits and short-term prepayrments
Other receivables

Taxation — net

Cash and bank balances

Mon-current assel held for sale

TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIAB E
SHARE CAPITAL AMD RESERVES

Authorised capital
1,500,000,000 (2020: 1,500,000.000) Ordinary shares of Re_1/- each

lzzued, subscribed and paid-up capital
Revenue Reserves

Attributable to owners of the Holding Company
Mon-controlling Interest

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Lang term |easa [abilities

Long term financing

Defarrad Income - Governmeant grant
Staff retirement benefits

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and ather payablas

Advance from ousiamers

Accrued mark-up

Shaort term borrowings

Unclaimed dividend

Unpaid dividend

Current poriion of defemed income - Governmenl grant
Currznt portion of long temm lzase liahilities

Current portion of long term financing

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

The annexed notes fram 1 to 41 form an integral part of ihese consolidated financial statemants,

bﬁ ':.' =
f:}::.‘,.. vy 3 FE. —
a7 e
DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAG SIDDIQWI
Chief Executive Chairman
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e oL e

18
1
12
13
14

15

16

17

18
19
20

21

22

20
16

23

2021 2020
RUPBES -
1,272,025,049 1,389,715,699
74,894,373 110,838,356
. 73,387,086
31,443,434 45 865,076
352,064,012 360,737,951
134,673,585 161,689,721
1,865.200,453 2,152,233,819
16,660,901 44,130,860
100,385,799 105,385,799
2,231,476,846 2,083,810,853
502,415,157 241,505,092
129,283,397 108,122,200
23,582,975 23,663,213
111,845,411 110,529,571
210,879,875 180,574,832
437,693,527 268,697,823
3,764,223,888 3,170,420,243
- 16,507,087
5,629,424,341 5,330,161, 249

1,500,000,000 1,500.,000,000
945,000,000 945,000,000
1,098,190,358 2,096,403 506
4,043,190,358 3.041.403,506
{32,505,864) 1,064,284
4,010,684,494 3,042,467,790
92,051,392 104,833,723
269,229,311 B37 839,369
560,658 y
33,255,893 28 453,198
395,097,254 971,126,290
683,186,088 B57 637 3d1
136,766,203 238,044,221
8,907,299 3,210,149
o 189,067, 264
5,048,480 5048490
205,159 205,159
4,495,607 -
29,564,860 35,142,045
353,568,887 186,311,600
1,223,642,593 1,325,567, 169

5.629.424,341

5,338.161,249

MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Financial Officer




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Revanue

Cost of production
Transmission cost

Gross profit
Distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Other expanses

Other incorme

GEain on sale of non-current asset held for sale
Operating profit/ (loss)

Finance cosis

Share of net profit of assoclate
Profit / (loss) before taxation

Taxation
Profit / (loss) after taxation

Attributable to:
Onwners of the Holding Company
Mon-controfling inleresls

MNote

24

25

27

28

29

30

3

2021

2020

smmmemeees  RUPEES ==r=eweee-

4,993,729,036

4,645 325 787

(2,838,603,878)

(3,188 456,727)

(346,613,518) (440,082,741)
{3,185,217,396) (3,628,530,468)
1,808,511,640 1.016,786,319

(288,605,843} (356,436,868)
(928,539,710) (698,912,624)
(70,301,849) (263,202,006)
162,914,752 276,510,077
476,832,913
1,160,811,903 (25,255,102)
(101,587,351) (244,973,245)

1,058,224,552

(270,228,347)

. 7,228,162
1,059,224,552 (263,000,185)
(98,031,756) 15,831,667
961,192,796 (247,168,518)
994,762,944 (193,088,481)
(33,570,148) (54,080,037)

961,192,796 {247 168,518)

Earnings | (loss) per share — basic and diluted (Rupee) 3z 1.05 {0.20)

The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,

At
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DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQUI
Chief Executive Chairman

MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Financial Officer
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

2021 2020
-------- Rupees ——-—-=-—-
Prafit / (loss) after taxstion 961,192,796 {247 168.518)
Other comprehensive income for the year
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently 1o statement of
profit or loss
Remeasurement gains on defined benefits plan - net of tax - 5,181,764
ltemns that may be reclassified subsequently to statement of profit or loss
Effect of translation of net iInvestment in forsign subsidiary companies 7.023.008 7,841,236
Total comprehensive income [ (loss) for the year 868,216,704 (234 135.518)
Attributable to:
Ownars of the Holding Company 1,001,786,852 (180,055 481)
Mon-controlling interests (33,570,148) 154 080,037 )
968,216,704 (234,135.518)

The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

gt N
7 N ,@ﬁ

DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQUI MUHAMMA/D ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Chairman Chief Financial Officer
HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Revenue Reserves

Issued, Foreign
subscribed exchange Maon-
and paid-up translation Unappropriat controlling
capital reserve ed profit Sub-total interest Total

Balance as at June 30, 2019 845,000,000 151,839,386  2.124.619.601 2276 458 DAT 85,144 321 3,276 603 308
Loss attffoutable o non-contraling infarests for
The year - - - - (54, 080,037) (54,080,037}

* 4 - ~ [54,080.03T) {54,080, 037}
Logs for the year = -1 (183,088,481} {193,088 481) - (193,088,481}
Other comprabensive incoma - T84 235 5,181,764 13,033,000 - 13,033,000
Tatal comprehensive income / (loss) for the year - 7841236  (187.886.717) {180,055.481) - {180,055,481)
Balance as at Juna 30, 2020 845,000,000 150,680 622 1.036,722.804 2,096,403, 506 1,064 284 3,042 467,790
Loss attnbutable o non-controling interests for |
the year - - - - (33,670,148} (33,570,145

- - - - [33,570,148) (33,570,148)
Prafit far the vear & = 554,762,944 994 762,944 - 094, TH2, 844
Qiher comprehensive income N 7,023,908 - 7.023.908 - 7,023,908
Tatal compranansive income | {loss) for the year - T.023,908 904,762,944  1,004,786,852 - 1,001,786,852
Balance as at June 30, 2021 845 000,000 166,704,530 2,031 485 828 3,008 190 358 (32,505 B64) 4 010 684 494
The annexed rotes from 1 w41 form an inlegral pad of these consolidated financizl statements.

,}' II'- ._--
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DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQUI MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Chairman Chief Financial Officer
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from operations

Taxes pad

Finance costs paid

Profit received on deposit accounts

Long term deposits

Telaevision program costs

MNet cash flow | used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Fixed capital expandiure

Additions (o intangible assets

Shart term investments - nel

Procaeds from disposal of investment in an associate
Dividend receved

Proceeds from sale of non-current asset held for sale
Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets
Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assats

MNet cash generated from / (used in) investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Long term financing - net
Leasa rentals paid
Net cash (used in) [ generated from financing activities

Met increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at tha beginning of the period
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and barik halances
Shori-term running finance

The annexed notes from 1 1o 41 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQWI
Chief Executive Chairman

HUM NETWORK LIMITED

2021 2020
RUpPBES sasmamann
634,717,149 205153,018
(40,079,083) (74,833,973)
(94,890,201) {247 335.272)
16,956,588 12,443,154
12,421,642 14 417 284
6,673,939 {133,503 334)
537,600,034 (223,665,129)
(111,229,971) (44 455 693)
(2,604,635) {(1.008,000)
(162,756,066) 583,866,977
13,682,805 -
177,973 -
493 340,000 -
6,390,192 -
20,895 167 45 841 444
257,885,465 504 234 778
(411,352,771)| | (316.404 093)
(26,269,760) (36,281,788)
(437,622,531) (352.695,891)
358,062 968 17,873,758
78,630,559 61,756,801
437,693,527 79,630,659
437,693,527 268,697 R23
- {189,067 264)
437,693,527 79,630,559
MUHAMMAD ABEAS HUSSAIN

Chief Financial Officer
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

1.3

THE GROUP AND ITS OPERATIONS

HUM Metwork Limited (the Holding Company) was incorporaled in Pakistan as a publfic limiled company under the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984 (the Ordinance). The shares of the Holding Company are guoled on Pakistan Stock Exchange.

The Holding Company's principal business is (o launch transrational satelliie channels and aims at presenting a wide variety
of cultural heritage. Its core areas of operation are production, advertisament, entertainment and media marketing. It covers
a wide varety of programmes with respect lo information. entertainment, news, education, health, food, music and society.

The "Group’ consists of
Holding Company
HUM Metwork Limited

Subsidiary Companies

2021 2020
Percentage of holding
HU TV, Inc. 100% 100%
HUM MNetwork LK Limited 100%: 100%
Sky Line Publications (Private) Limited 100% 1004%
HUM Matwark FZ LLC 100% 100%
HUMM Ca. (Private) Limited 100%: 100%
HUM Mart (Private) Limited T0%: T0%

MNature of operations of subsidiaries

HUM TV, Inc., HUM Network UK LTD and HUM Network FZ LLC have been established with the purpose of providing
entertainment programmes to the South Asian community by increasing presence in the United States of America (USA).
Canada, UK and UAE respectively. HUM Melwork UK LTD has 100% equily in HUM News Limited, which s engaged in
business of transmission of news for UK audience, The subsidiary companies will also serve as a platform for the Holding
Company to explore avenues for greater distribution of the Holding Company brands in USA, Canada, UK and LAE and will
establish relations with advertisers, as well as develop US-based media matenals, such as dramas, documentaras and
other entertainment shows and events.

Skyline Publication {Private) Limited (SPL} Is angaged in the publications of books and magzines,

HUMM Co, {Privata) Limited has been established with the purpcse of developing and producing contents, shows and
programs. Currently, it is non-cperational.

HUM Mart (Private) Limited engaged in the business of online shopping far grocery, houselod items and consumer goods.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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1.4 Geographical location and address of business units
Registered office Plat Mo. 1011, Hassan Ali Strest, Off. 1.l Chundrigar Road, Karachi,
Pakistan,
Head office — Karachi B.R.R Tower, Hassan Ali Street, Off. .|, Chundrigar Road
City offices — Karachi Alfalah Court, |.| Chundngar Road
City office — |slamabad 28, 18T center, sector G-6/1
City offica — Lahore House # 58, R-24, Masson Road
City office — Pashawar Plat Mo, 7-4, 22 The Mall, Peshawar Cantonment
City office — Quetta House # 3, Phase |l Shahbaz town
HUM Network UK Limited 3B-P Alum rock road. Birmingham, England.
2 Hemlet Mews, London
HUM News Limited Evergreen Houes Narth Third Floor, Office Suite 311, Grafton Place,
Euston London, United Kingdom.
HUM Network FZ LLC Office G-01 Boutique Studio City, Dubai, UAE.
Skyline Publicaticn (Privata) Limited Plat No. 10011, Hassan Ali Street, Off. L. Chundrigar Read, Karachi,
Hum Mart (Private) Limited E:]r[;::h .."-‘Ixﬂ? Shed # A-2, Survey 413, Sector T A, Korangl Industrial Area,
HUM TV, Inc. B201 Bonhomme Road, 180N, Houstan Texas.
2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

21 Statement of Compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared In accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comorise of;

- Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the Intemational Accounting Standard Board (IASE) as
natified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act);

- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) Issuad by the Institile of Chatered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) as
are notified under the Act; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Act.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Act differ from IFRS, the provisions of and directives issued under the
Act have been followed.

2.2 Basis of measurement

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of historical cost convention, except otherwize
specifically stated.
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Mew and amended standards

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financlal statements are consistent with those of
the previous financial year excepl that the Group has adopted the following amendments of IFRS which became effective
for the current year

IFRS 9 - Prepaymeant Fealures with Negative Compansation {Amendmaents)
IFRE 14 - Regulatory Defarral Accounts

IFRS 16 -  Leases

IFRS 16 - COVID 19 Related Rent Concessions (Amendments)

1AS 18 = Plan Amendment, Curtailmant or Sattlement (Amendmaeants)

IAS 28 - Long-lerm Interesls in Associgles and Joinl Ventures [Amendments)
IFRIC 23 - Uncerainly over income tax treatments

Improvements to Accounting Standards lssued by the |ASB (2015-2017 cycle)

IFRS 2 - Business Combinations - Previously held Interests in a joint operation

IFRS 11 - Joint Arrangements - Previously held Interests in a |oint cperation

IAS 12 - Income Taxes - Income tax consequances of payments on financial instrumants classified as equity
1AS 23 - Borrowing Costs - Borrowing costs eligible for capitalization

The adoption of the above standards, amendments and improvements to accounting standards did not have any material
effect on the Group's consolidated financial statements except for IFRS 16. The impact of adoption of IFRS 16 are

descrbed below;

Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yat effective

The accounting policies adopled in (he preparation of these unconsolidated financial stalements are consisten] with those
of the previous financial year except that Ihe Company has adopled the following standards, amendments, interpratation
and improvemeants (o IFRS which became effective for the current year:

IFRS 3 Definition of a Business (Amendmenis)
IFRS9/IAS 38/ IFRS 7 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform {(Amendments)
IAS1/IASE Definition of Material (Amendments)

Improvement to accounting standards issued by tha |IASB (2018 - 2020 cycle)

Effective date
{annual periods
beginning
Standard or Interpretation on or after)
IFRS 3 Relerence to the Conceplual Framework {Amendments) January 01, 2022
IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendmentz) January 01, 2022
IAS 3T Onerous Conlracls - Costs ol Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments) January 01, 2022

1AS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Currant or Non-Current {Amendmants) January 01, 2023

IFRS 10/ 1AS 28 Sale or Contnibution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

{Amendments) Mot yet finalised
IFRS 9, IAS 39,
IFRS 7. IFRS 4 Interest Rate Banchmark Reform - Phase 2 (Amendment) January 01, 2021
IFRS 16 Covid-18-Related Renl Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 (Amendments) April 01, 2021
IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies {(Amendments) January 01, 2023
IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates {(Amendments) January 01, 2023
IAS 12 Deferred tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a single transaction January 01, 2023

{Amendments)
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IASE effective date {annual
Improvement to accounting standards issued by the |ASB (2018 — 2020 cycle) periods beginning on or after)

IFRS 9 Fees in the 110 percent’ test for the derecoanition of financial

liakilities January 01, 2022
1AS 41 Agriculture - Taxation in fair value measurament January 01, 2022
IFRS 16 Leases: Lease incenlives January 01, 2022

The above siandards, amendmeants of IFRSs and improvements fo accounting standards are not expected to have any
material impact on tha Company's unconsolidated financial statemants in the period of initial applicaticn.

Further, following new standards have been issued by IASE which are yet to be notified by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP) for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan:

Standard |ASE effective date (annual
periods beginning on or after)
IFRS 1 First time adoption of IFRSs January 01, 2004
IFRS 17 Insurance Conlracls January 01, 2023

2.5 Significant accounting judoments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the consolidated flinancial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards, as applicable in
Pakistan, reguires the management to make judgment, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies
and the reporled amounts of revenues, sxpenses, assals and labilities and accompanying disclosures, Uncerdainty about
these assumplions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carmying amount of
assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed
ta be reasonable under the circumstances, the resulls of which form the basis of making judgments about the carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are nol readily apparent from other sources,

Estimales, assumptions and judgments are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Rewvisions 1o accounting estimates are
recognized in the perod in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that pericd, or in the period of the
revision and future pencds if the revision affects both cument and future periods.

In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the following estimates and judgments which
arer significant to the consolidaled financial stalements:

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (hote 4 & 5)

The Group reviews appropriateness of the rate of depreciation [ amortisation, useful life and residual value used in tha
calculation of depreciation [ amortisation. Further, where applicable, an estimate of the recoverable amount of assels |s
made for possible impairmeant on an annual basis. In making these estimates, the Group uses the technical resources
avaitable with the Group. Any change in the estimatas in the future might affect the carrying amount of respective iterm of
properly, plant and eguipment and intangible assets, with corresponding effects on the depreciation / amaortisation charge
and impairment.

Television program costs (nofe 8)

Television program costs represent unamortised cost of completed television programs and television programs in
production. In order to determine the amount to be charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss, the management
estimates fulure revenues from each program. Estimates of future ravenues can change significantly due to a variety of
factors, including advertising rates and the level of market acceplance of the production in different geographical locations,
Accordingly, revenue eslimales are reviewed pedodically and amorisation is adjusted, if necessary. Such adjustments
could have a meterial effect on resulls of operations in future periods.
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Incomsa taxes (note 9)
In making the estimate for income ax payable by the Group, the Group takes into account the applhcable tax laws and the
decision by appellate authorities on certain Issues in the past.

Defered tax asgels are recognized for all unused Lax logsses and credits Lo the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available agalnst which such losses and credits can be utifized. Significant management judgment 15 required to
daterming the amount of deferred Lax assals that can be recognizad, basad upon tha likely timing and leval of future taxable
profits logelhar with fulure ax planning stralegias.

Impairment of financlal assets (note 3.9)
Tha Group uses a provision matrix 1o calculate ECLs for trade dabis and other recaivables, Tha provision rates are basad
on days past dus lor Group's vanous customsr thal have semilar oss paliermns

Tha pravision matrix |s initially basad on the Group’s historical cbsarved default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the hisioncal credil loss axperance with forward-looking informaton. For nstance, (| forecas) sconomic conditions
are espected 1o delenorale over the nexd year which can lead o an increased number of defaults in the manufacturing
sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated
and changas in the forward-inoking astimates are analysad.

The assessment of the correlation between historcal observed default rates. forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant astimale. The amount of ECLs |s sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic condilions.
Tha Group's historical credil loss expenance and forecas! of economic condilions may also nol be representative of
customers actual default in the future, The information aboul the ECLs on the Group's financial assels exposed to credit
risk s disclosed In note 38.5.

Contingencies (note 23)

The assessment of the contingencles Inherently involves the exercisa of significant judgment as the outcome of the future
svents cannot be predicted with cartainty. The Group, based on the availability of the latest information, estimates the value
of eontingent assels and liabililies which may differ an the occurrence { non-occumence of the uncertain fulure events.

Leases- Estimating the incremental borrowing rate (note 18)

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate
(IBR’) to measura laasa llabilities. The IBR |s the rate of interast that the Group would have 1o pay to borrow over a similar
term, and with a similar securily, the funds necessary lo oblain an assel of a similar value lo the righl-ol-use assel in a
similar economic environment.

Leases- Determination of the lease term for lease contracts with extension and lermination oplions (note 18)

The Group determines the fease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, logether with any perods covered by an
option to extend the lease If il is reasonably certain (o be exarcized, or any pariods covared by an oplion 1o larminate the
lesse, if it is reasonably cerlain nol 1o be exercised.

The Group has lease contracts that include extension and termination option. The Group applies judgement in evalualing
whethar it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers
all relevant factors lhal creale an economic incentive for |1 lo exercise either the renewal of lerminalion. Aller the
commencement date, the Group reassesseos the lease tarm if there is a significant evenl or change in circumstances that is
within its control that affects its ability to exercise or not 1o exercise the option {o renew or to lerminate.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiary is a enlity over which the Group has contral. Control |s achiaved when the group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable relurns from its invalvermnant with the inveates and has ability to affect those retums through its power over the
investee. Generally, there is presumption thatl a majority of voting rights result in conitrol.

The Group re-assess whather or not it controls an investes if facts and circumstances indicate that thare are changes (o
one or more elements of control.

Subsidiary is consolidated from the dale on which the Group obtains contral, and continue to be consolidated until the date

when such control ceases. Income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed off dunng the year are included in
profil or loss from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases lo control the subsidiary,
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Tha linancial slalaments of tha Subsidiary Company sma preparad for the ssme raporting penod ss tha Holding Compsny,
using consistenl accounting policies. The accounting policies of the Subsidiary Company have been changed o conform
with accounting palicies of the Holding Company. where required.

If the business combinstion is schirvad in stages, the scouisiton date camyng value of the scguirer's praviously held sguity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured lo falr value al the acguisiion dale, any gains of losses ansing from soch
remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss,

ldantifiable azsaiz acquired, liabilities assomsd snd conlingsnt iabililies assumed in 8 business combinabion are messurd
inilially at their fair values al the acguisition date, imespective of the extent of any non-contiolling interest. The excess of
cost of acquisition is recorded as goodwill, however, If the cost of acquisition is less than fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiany acquired, tha diffaranca ie racognisad directly in tha prafit or lass.

All intra-group balances, ransachons and unrealised gains and lossas resulting from mira-group ansactiong and dvidends
wilhin lhe Group are eliminated in full,

Non-controlling interast (NCI) = that part of the net resullz of oparahons and of nel azsats of subsidiary atinbutsbls nterast
which are not owned by the Group, The Group measures NC| on proporlionale basis of the net assets of subsidiary
company.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, I8 accounted for as an aquity transaction. If the
Group loses control over & subsidiary, il derecognises the assels (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
carying amount of any NCI, cumulative translation differences recognised in other comprehensive income, and recognises
fair value of consideration recelved, any investment retained, surplus or deficlt in profit and loss. and reclassifies the
Holding Company share of componants previously recognised in other comprehensive income to profit or loss account or
relained earmnings, as appropriate.

3.2 Investment in assoclate

Associales are all entities over which the Group has significant influence bul not conlrol, genarally represenied by a
shareholding of 20% or more but less than 50% of the voling rights. Significant influence is the power 1o participale in the
financial and operating policies and decislon of investees. Investiments in associales ane accounted for using the aguity
method of accounting and are initially recognised al cost.

The Group's share of its associates’ posit acquisition profits or lpsses s recognised in profit or loss and its share in
associales' posl acqusilion other comprehensive income 18 recognisad n the Group's other comprehensive income.,
Cumulative posl acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying value of the investments. Dividends received
from assoclates reduce the camying amount of the Investment. When the Group's share of losses In assoclale equals or
exceads its interest in the associate including any other long term unsecured receivable, the Group does not recognise
furlher losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behall of the sssociale.

When FVOC! investment is converied info associated company, the balance in the surpius on revaluation of related asset
is lransferred lo un-appropriated profil Gain on transaelion belween the Group and s associate are eliminaled o the
axtent of the Group's interest in associates.

The earmying amount of tha investmant is lested lor impairment, by comparing its recoverabla amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs 1o sell) with its carmying amount and |oss, il any, is recognised in the profil or losa.

3.3 Property, plant and equipment
3.3.1 Operating fixed assets
These are statad at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairmeant, If any.

Depreciation is charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss uging straight line method so as to write off the historical
cost of the sssats over thair estimated usaful lives. Depreciation on addittons is charged from the month in which tha assal
1s available lo use and no depreciation is charged for the month in which asset was disposed of.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged o consolidaled statement of profil or loss as and when incurred. Major
renewals and improvemants, { any, are capitalized when it is probable thal respaclive fulure aconomic benafits will flow to
the Group.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no fulure economic benefits are sxpected
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from lts use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference batween the net
dizposal procaads and the campng amount of the assal) is includad in consobdaled slalemen! of profit or loss in tha year
the aaset i derecoghised.

The assets' residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are revised, and adjusted If appropriate, at each
coneolidatad statemant of financial position date.

Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises a right-of-use assets al the commencement date of the lease (l.e. the date the underlying asset is
avallable for use). Right-of-use assets ane measurad at cost loss any accumulated depreciation and Impalrment lossos and
adjustad for any remaasuramant of laasa liabilitieg, Tha cost of nighl-ol-use assale ncludes (ha amount of lpase [Ehilitias
recognised, inillal direc! costs incurred, and lease payiments mede al or before the commencemenl dale less any lease
incentives recelved. Right-of-use assels are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shoner of lease term or useful life,
excepl for the leasas in which ownership of the underlying assets transfer to the lessees by the end of the lease term or cost
ol right of ugs asssls rallacts thal tha |asxes will axarcigs a purchasa option, the Group dapreciate thosa nghl of uss Bxssl
ovir the useful life of the underlying assel.

Capital work-in-progress

These are stated at cost less accumulated Impairment losses and consists of expenditures incurred and advances made in
respect of specific assets during the construction period. These are transtermed to specific assels as and when assels are
available for use

Business combination and goodwill

Business combinalions are accounted for using the purchase methoad of accounting. The cost of an acquisition Is measured
as the cash pald and the fair value of other assets given, equity instruments Issued and llabilities Incurred or assumed at
the date of exchange. plus costs directly attricutabla to the acquisition, The acquired identifiable assets, liabiliies and
cantingent liabiliies are measured al their fair values al tha date of acquisition. Any axcess of tha cost of acquigilion over
the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired is recognized as goodwill.

Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured alt cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is reviewed for
impairment annually or more frequently If events or changes in circumstances indicate that the camying value may be
impalred. Impairmant is determined by assassing the recoverable amount of the cash-genarating unit to which the goodwill
relates. Where the recoverable amounl of the cash-generaling unit is less than the carmyng amount, an impairment loss is
recognized.

Intangible assats

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on Inifial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following Initial recognition, intangible assets are camied al
cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses,

Intangible assets are amorised over the useful ecanomic life and assessed for iImpalment whenever there ls an indication
that the intangible assat may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with
a finite useful life is reviewed al leasl at each financial year end. The amortisalion expensa on inlangible assets with finile
lives ia recognised in consolidated statement of profit or logs in the expense calegory congistent with the function of the
intangible asset.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset ara measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the camying amount of the assel and are recognised in consolidated statement of profil or loss when the
assel s derecognised.

Television program costs

Telewvision program costs represenl unamortized cost of completed television programs and television programs in
production. These costs include direct produclion costs, cost of inventory consumed, and production overheads and are
stated al the lower of cost, less sccumulated amorisation and nel realizable value (NRY), NRY is estimated by the
management on the basis of fulure revenue generation capacity of the program. Acquired television program licenses and
rights are recorded when the license period begins and the program Is available for use.

Television program costs and acquired lelevision program licenses and rights are charged (o sxpensa based on the ratio of
the revenues eamed till date to total revenues to be eamed from the program including future estimated revenues less cost
expensed in prior years on an individual program basis,
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3.7 MNon current assets held for sale

Mon current assets are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying amount is to be recovered principally through a
salz transaction rather than continuing use and sale is considered highly probable. They are staled at the lower of carrying
amount and fair value less cost 1o sell,

The crileria for held for sale classification is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable, and the assel or
dizposal group is availabla for immediate sala in its present condition. Actions required to complete the sale should indicate
that il is unlikely thal significant changes to the sale will be made or thal the dacision to sell will be withdrawn. Management
must be committed to the plan to sell the asset and the sale expected to be completed within ane year from the date of the
classification.

Property, plant and equipment are not depreciated once classified as held for sale,

Assets and liabilities claseified as held for sale are presented separately as current items in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

3.8 Inventories
These ars valued on weighted average cost basis and are stated 2t the lower of cost and NRV,

Frovisian is made for obsolete and slow moving stock-in-trade based on management's besl eslimate and is recognised in
the statament of prafit or loss,

39 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial assel of ona antity and a financial liability or aguity
instrument of another entity,

i) Financlal assets

Initial recegnition and measurement
Under IFRS @ Financial assels are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at following:

fa) at amortised cost
(b} at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)Y and
{c) at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYVTOCI).

The classification of financial assels al inilial recognition depends on lhe financial assel's contraclual cash flow
characlaristics and the business maodel for managing tham, With the sxcaption of rade receivables, the Group initially
measures a financial assel at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through prefit or loss,
transaction costs. Trade receivatles are measured at the trangaction price determinad under IFRS 15.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortized cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give rise
to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amounl outstanding. This
gssossment is refermed to as the SPPI test and is perfformed at an instrument level. The Group's business model for
manzging financial assets refers (o how it manages its financial assets in order to generale cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

Purchasas or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regutation or
convention in tha market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.8. the date that the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset,

(a) At amortised cost
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost it both of the following conditions are mat;

- The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash llows; and

- The conlraclual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash fows that are solely payments of
principal and interast on the principal amount outstanding.
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{b) At fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and interesl are classified and measured at fair
value through profit or loss, irespective of the business model. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading, financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or
financial aszets mandatorily required to be measured at fair value, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset
that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVYOCI as at FYTPL if doing s0 eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component that is initially measured at the
transacticn price) Is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly
attrinutable to s 2cquisition.

{c) At fair value through other comprehensive income
A debl instruments is meassurad al (sir value through QC1 I both of the following conditions sre met:

- The financial assel is held within a business modal with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows
and selliing: and

= The contractual terms of the financial asset give rse on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Lpon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments designated
at FVOC| when they meet the definftion of equity under |AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not hald for
rading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Subsequent measureament
For purposes of subsequeant measurement, financial assets are classified into following categories:

B Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments).

- Financial assets designated at fair value through OC| with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses Upan
deracognition {equity instruments)

- Financial assets at fair valua through profit or loss

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
Financial assets at amorised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR) method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset s derecognised, modified or impaired

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assels at FVPL include financial assels held for trading, financial assets designaled upon initial recognition at
FVPL, or financial assels mandatorily reguired to be measured at fair value. Financlal assels are classified as held for
trading il they are acquired lor the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Financial assels with cash flows thal
are not solely payments of principal and interest are classified and measured at fair value thraugh profit or loss, irespective
of the business model. Notwithstanding the crileria for debl instruments to be classilied al amortized cost or al FVYOC), as
described above, dabt instruments may be designated at FVYPL on Initial recagnition it doing so eliminates, or significantly
reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at FVPL are carred in the unconsolidated statement of financial position at fair valug with net changes in
fair value recogmised in unconsolidated stalement of profit or loss,

This category also includes derivative instruments and listed equity investmeants which the Group had not irrevocably
elecled lo classify al FVOCI. Dividends en listed equity investments are also recognised as other income in profil or loss
whan thae right of payment has been establishead.

Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recyeling of cumulative gains and losses (debt Instruments)

These assets are subseguently measured at fair value. Interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment
Insses or reversals are recognised in the consolidated statement of prafit or lass and compuled in the same manner as for
financial assels measured at amortised cost. The remaining lair value changes are recognised in OCI. Upon derecegnition,
the cumulative fair value change recognised in OCH s recycled o profit or loss.
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Financlal assets at fair value through OCI with ne recycling of cumulative gains and losses (equity instruments)

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Gains and losses on these financlal assets are never recycled 1o
profit or lose. Dividands are recognizad as othar incoma in tha cansolidated elatamant ol profit or logs whan tha nght of
paymanl has bean aslablished, excapt whan the Group benefils from guch proceeds a8 8 recovery of parl of the cost of the
financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCIL Equity instruments designated at fair value through CCl are
not subject to impalrment assossment.

A= ot the date of consolidated statement of financial position, Group Is not having any equity instrument designated at fair
valua through OCI

Derccognition
A financlal asset (or, where applicable, 2 part of a financlal asset or part of a group of similar financlal assets) s primarily
derscognized (i.a. ramovad from the GGroup’s consalidatad stalement of financial position ) when:
- The rights 1o recelve cash flows from the assat have explred: or

The Group has transferred its rghts to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an cbligation to pay the
recaved cash flows in full without matenal delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ amangement: and aither (a) ha
Group has lransfemed substantally &l the nsks and mwards of the sssel, or (b) the Group has neither ensfemred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transfermed control of the assct
When the Group has transferred its rights to recelve cash fiows from an asset or has entered Into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and lo what extent, it has retained the nsks and rewards ol ownership.

When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of
the assel, the Group continues 1o recognise the transferred assel to the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case,
the Group also recognises an associated lisbility. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measurad on a
basls that reflects the nghls and obligalions thal the Group has relained,

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred assel is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the assel and the maximum amount of consideration thal the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets
The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows thal the Group sxpacts to receive, discounted al an approximation of the original sffective intarest
rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit fsk
since initia! recognition, ECLs are provided for credil losses that resull from default events that are possible within the nesxt
12-maonths (a8 12-month ECL). For those credil exposures for which thare has been a significant increase in credit nsk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance s required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespactive of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

For trade debts, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Group does not track changes
in credi! nsk, bul instead recognises a loss allowance based on fatima ECLs al each reporling date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its histoncal credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking faclors
specific 1o the deblors and the economic environment.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 80 days past due. However, in certain
cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates that the
Group is unlikely lo receive the oulstanding contractual amounts in full before teking inlo account any credil enhancements
held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.

ii) Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial Babilittes are classified. at initial recognition. as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings. payables, or as denvalives designaled as hedging Instruments in an effective hedae, as appropriate

All financial llabllites are recognised Iinitially at fair value and. in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, nat of
diracily attributable transaction cosls.
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Financial liabilities at fair value thraugh profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss Include financial liabilides held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon inilial recognition as at fair value through profil or loss. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or lass. Financial liabilities designated upon initlal recognilion at fair value
through profil or loss are designated al the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are salisfied. The
Group has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, barrowings and payables are subsenuently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method,
Fains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabiliies are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amorisation process,

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs thal are an
Integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the consolidated statement of profit ar loss.

Bormowings are classified as current liakilities unless the Group has an unconditionzl right to defer the settlemant of the
liahility for at least 12 months after the reporting date. Exchange gain or losses anising in respect of borrowings in foreign
currency are added to the carrying amount of the borrowings.

Derecognition

& financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by snother from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liakility. The difference in the respeclive camying amounts is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profil or loss,

Offsetting of financial Instruments

Financial assats and financial liabilities ara offzat and the nat amaount is raportad in the consolidatad statemant of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to seflie on a
net basis, to realise the assets and setlie the liabilities simultaneoushy.

Advance from customers (Contract Liability)

& contract liabllity is the obligation of the Group to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration {or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before
the Group transfers goods or services fo the customer, a contract llability is recognised when the payment is made or the
paymenl is due (whichever is earlier). Contracl liability are recognised as revenue when lhe Group performs under (ha
contract.

Impairment of non-financlal assets

The carrying amounls of non-financial assels are assessed sl each reporting dele o ascerlain whether there is any
Indication of impairment, If such an indicafion exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated to determine the extent of
impairment loss, if any. An impairment loss is recognised, as an expense in consolidated staterment of profil or loss and
other comprehansive income. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost to disposal and value
In use, Value in use is ascerained through discounting of the estimated future cash flows using a discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the assets for which the estimate of future
cash flow have not been adjusted. For the purpose of assessing impairment. assels are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separalely idenlifiable cash flows (cash-generaling units).

Deposits, advances, prepayments and other receivables excluding financial assets

These are inilially recognised at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given. Subseguent o initial recognition
assessment is made al each consolidated statement of financial position date to determing whether there is an indication
thal assels may be impaired. If such indication exisls, the estimated recoverable amount of thal asset is determined and
any impairment loss is recognised for the difference between the recoverable amount and the camying value,
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3.14 Current versus non-current classification

The Group presaents assets and liabilities in the consolidated stalement of financial position basad on current/inon-current
Classification. An assel is curment when il is

+ Expacted to be realised or intanded to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle

= Held primarily for the purpose of trading

* Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period

Or

= Cash or cash equivalent unless restricled from being exchanged or used 1o sellle a liability fer al leasl lwelve months afler
the reporting perocd

All ather assets ame classified as non-current.

A lrialility is current when:

= It is expactad to be settled in the normal cparating cycle

» It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

It iz due to be seltled within twelve months after the reporting period

Or

= There |15 no unconditional right to defer the setliiement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting penod

The tarms of the liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its seftlemeant by the issue.of eguity
instruments do not affect its classification,

The Group classifies all ather liabilities as non-current.

Deferred 1ax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.,

315 Taxation

Current
Provision for current tax i1s based on the taxable income in accordance with the applicable laws.

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet liability method, on all major temporary differences arising al the
consolidated statement of financial position date between tax bases of assels and libilities and their carrying amounts in
the consaolidated (inancial statements,

Deferred tax liabiliies are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that the future taxable profits will be available against
which the assets may be utilized. Deferred tax asseis are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related
tax benefit will b realized.

The carrying smount of deferred tax asset is reviewed st each consolidated statement of financial positon date and
reduced lo the extent that it is no longer probable thal sufficient taxable profits will be avsilable to allow all or part of the
deferred lax assel 1o be recognized.

Deferred tax assetls and liabilitlies are measured at the tax rate that are expecled o apply to the period when the asset (s
reglised or the liability is settled. based on tax rates (and tax laws) thal have been enacled or substantively enacted at the
consolidated statement of financial pasition date.

316 (Cash and cash equivalents

These are carred sl cost. For the purpose of consolidated stalement of cash llows, cash and cash eguivelents comprise of
cash in hand, bank balances and shaort term running finance.

347  Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognized al their face value. Inocremental costs directly atiributable 1o the
Issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

3.18 Leases

The Group assesses al contract inceplion whelker a contract is, or conlaing, a lease. Thalis, If the conlracl conveys the
right to control the use of an identilied aseel for & parod of tme in exchange for consideration,
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3.20

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach fTor all leases, except for shor-term leases and leasos
ol low-valus azsate. Tha Group recognisas laass |iabilitiss to maka lsass paymante and right-of-use azeale raprezanting
the right to usa the undarlying sssats.

i) Lease liabilities

Al the commencement dale of the leese, the Group recognises lease linbililies measured al the present value of leasa
payments 1o be made over the lease term. The lease payments Include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lsase incentives racaivable, varable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
axpaciad to ba paid under residusl value guarantess. The lease paymantz alzo includa the axercise prica of & purchase
option reascnably cerain o be exercised by the Group and payments of penallies for lerminaling the lesse, i the
termination option is reasonably certaln to be exercised. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognisad as expanses (unless they are incurrad to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition
thal trigners the payman! oocurs. In calculaling the prasant valis of leass paymants al the leass commancemanl dats, tha
Croup usies the interest mele implicit in the lease. In case where the interest rate implicit in the lesse s nol readily
determinable. the Group uses its Incremental bomowing rate. After the commencement date. the amount of lease liabilities
is increasad to reflact tha accration of interest and reduced for the laase payments made. In addition. the camrying amount
of lrasa habiities s remaasured i thare 8 8 modificebion, 8 changs in tha lease tarm, & changa in the leasa paymants or &
change in the assessment of an oplion 1o purchase the underlying assel.

i) Determination of the lease term for lease contracts with extension and termination options

The Group delermines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an
option io extand the lease if it is reasonably certain 1o be exercised, or any penods covered by an oplion to lerminate tha
leasa, if il is reasonably certain not 1o be axecised,

The Group has several leasa contracts that include extension and lerminalion options, The Group applies judgemant in
evaluating whether il is reasonably certain whether or not lo exercise the option 10 renew or terminate the lease. Thal is, it
considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it 1o exercise alther the renewal or lermination. After the
commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease lerm if there is a significant event or change in circumstlances thal is
within its control that affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminaie (e.g9., construction of
significant leasehold improvements or significant customisation of the leased assel),

ili) Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannol readily determing the inleres! rale implicil in the lease, tharefore, i uses ils incremental barrowing rale
(IBR) 1o measure lease liabilltizs. The IBR is the rate of inlerest thal the Group would have to pay 1o bormow over a slmilar
term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary (o obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-ol-Use assel in a
similar economic environmant.

iv) Short-term leases
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption o s short-lorm leases of office premises (Lo, those leases

thal have a lease lerm of 12 manths or less from the commencemant dale and do not contain a purchase option). Lease
paymants on short-term leases are recognisaed as expense on a straighl-line basis over the lease lerm.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, nel of transaclion costs incurred and subsequenlly carmed al amorlized
cost uging the effective interest method.

Bormowings are classified as currenl labilities uniess the Group has an unconditional / contraciual right o defer settlemeant
of the liability for at least twalve months after the consolidated statement of financial position date.

Government Grant
Governmenl grants are recognised where lhere is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and all allached

conditions will be complied wilh. As the grant relates 10 an expénse item, |1 is recognised as incoma on a systemalic basis
over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended 1o compensate, are expensed.
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321 Unclaimed and unpaid dividend
Dividend dactarad by the Group, in the preceding three years, which remaing unclaimed or unpaid as on the consolidatad

statement of financial position dale is recognized as unpald dividend. Dividend declared and payable prior to the preceding
three years from the consolidatad statamant of financial position dale are recognized as unclaimed dividend

3.22 Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or canstructive) as a result of past events, (L is
probable that an outfiow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the

amounl of obligation. Provisions are reviewed &t each consolidated statement of financial position date and adjusted to
reflact the cumrent best estimate.

3.23 Revenue recognition
Advertisement revenue is recognised when the related advertisement or commercial appears before the public i e, aired.
Production revenue: Production revenue is recognised whan production work appears bafore public.
Digital revenue: Digital revenue is recognised on the basis of number of impressions on the advertisement aired on website.

Subscripion income arses from the manthly billing to subscribers for services provided by the Group. Revenue is
recognised in the month the service is rendered.

Film Distribution Revenues: Revenue from film distribution is recognized at a point in time upon receipt of related sales
reports from cinemas.

Sale of goods are recogrized when goods are delivered to customers.
Cradit limits in contract with customars ranges from 2 to 90 days.
3.24  Other income
Sale of magazine and DVD's 15 recognized on receipl basis.
Profit on bank deposits is accnunted for on effective interest meathod.
Dividend income is recognized when it is declared and right to receive (s established.
Interaesl | markup Income is recognized on accrual basis.
Other revenues are accounted for on an accrual basis,
3.25 Expenses
Expenses are recorded when incurred based on the accrual basis of accounting. Distnbution costs and administrative
expenses include direct and indirect costs not specifically part of cost of production. Allecations between cost of production,

distribution and administrative expenses, when required, are made on a consistent basis.

3.26  Staff retirement benefits
Defined contribution plan

The Helding Company operates a funded and approved provident fund scheme for all its permanent employees. Egual
monthly contributions are made, both by the Holding Company and the employees, to tha fund at the rate of 8.33% of the
brasic salary.
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3.27

3.28

3.29

3.30

3.31

3.32

3.33

Forelgn currency transactions and translations

Foreign currency [ransactions are ranslated into Pakistanl Rupees using the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities in forelgn currencies are translated into Pakistanl Rupees using the exchangs
rate at the consolidated statement of financial position date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from tha
settiement of such transactons and from the transiations at the year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabiiities
denominated in foreign currencies are taken o consolidaled statement of profit or foss currently.

The assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiary companias are translated lo Pak rupses al exchange rates prevailing at the
consolidated statement of financial positicn date. The Income and expenses of forelgn subsidiary companies are translated
at average rate of exchange for the year. Translation gains and losses arising on the translation of net investment in foreign
subsidiary companies are taken lo eguity under "Foreign Exchange Translation Reserve” and on disposal are recognised n
the consolidated statement of profit or loss,

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition and construction of assets and Incurred during the period in
connection with the activities necessary to prepare lhe asset for ils intended use are capilalized as a part of the cost of
related asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
Dividend and appropriation to reserves

Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognized in the consolidaled financial statements in the period in which these
are approved.

Contingencies

Contingencies are disclosed when the Group has a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose exisience
will be confirmed only by the accurrence or non-occurrence of one or mare uncertain fulure events not whaolly within the
control of the entity or a present cbligation that arises from past evenis but is not recognised because L is nol probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic henefits will be requirad to sattle the obligation or the amount of the obligation
cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Earnings per share
The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. EPS is calculated by dividing

the profit or loss attributable to ordinary sharehalders of the Holding Company by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares oulstanding during tha pariod.

Functional and presentation currency

Thesea consolidated finzncial statements ara presentad in Fakistani Rupess, which is the Group's functional and
presentation currency.

Segment Reporting
Segment reporting is based on the aoperating (businegss) segments of the Group. An operating segment is a component of
the Group that engages in business activities from which it may eam ravanue and incur axpenses. An oparaling segmenl's

aperating results are reviewed regularly by the senior management of the Group to make decisions about resources 1o be
allocated to the segmeant and assess its perfformance, and far which diserets financial information is avallable,
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2021 2020
Hote Rupees
4 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EGUIPMENT
Oiperaling Fred assels 4.9 1.075:.57 5,958 1 246,884,186
Righit of vse assals 4.5 108,026,622 148,797 838
Capital work-m-progress 48 87.420,469 15,933,877
1,272 025,043 1 308,715,600
4.1  Opevating lixed azssls
Coal [ p——— Book aus Dapreciation
N Adtion=" | trmeser L L. 2 Charge | travafr et -y e
from BETUA Bz mOUASY
iy, | gradal dup By {ispenla) da the dar B0, Jum 10, %
2028 Ppslemagy=* tnay 1070 o 1L ETET iy il
Frapiin
]
et bl ¢ FETREE T . TR AT 5M AL 5 5T g (R i my5GE PITLR Y
Ruking o bpamon bokd i * RITEE TS ] TIMELAT 1Ens T L ARTT At SO TRINS ]
Le el brimimeriuidy TR T3 siawmn = e 167 2030 303 =oAL TINTE0ED LR TES T b1 ]
|13, B VAL 4
Faslrs one Vings 27T nan iras: — CEr AT ] i, Lia AN W FLEL TS I3 AT 1]
[EHR L
T T (LAY T
Mol AR A REF AXBYE Frapaks? Wt i BasLiTE AR Faidm Inaadipin L1}
indnd g RITATTE
[EEEE [EaFroT TES
T e ] L] EMgdm ~ AL AT TN TR BB AT a8
N[ AT
Ly ropiper-ar TE b D8 R i EEE o 5Bk 5005 000 6 554,751 ]
(o e 123,754 Ui 2w - LRI RS [5F =~ TN 13 HEEE EIOR AT AT 8% 3
(R R (ALY
[BERAR S LT
Cofm e ALELERE WIREE = WHHATIY (ETFFRL A 2 A RAD R4 QTR 1"
[LSETFFLE iy
TP A5 = (8 BOR PRE: "
1031 ERLIE aF mRHM LMD HIEHL T T e R EE R TIETRES
ALEL TR RATRITE .
& - L _——
=" gl aimd Tewraciat ov Mook s Negraciation
e A | Wt B Aca Gh:mwm‘ LT vl Raiy
P it uitizatinsy
by 01, e et R duse 30, Ay 1, ) [Lgsaita) o T dirn 34, 30, %
FLET Glspryein] ELFL FLEL] you HLE T Eo20 o aneum
Fupaey
Ol
Loz e’ TREAT ik Banjen = G TRF UL g 4. FRLET Al Al 40 R e
LT LB
Dt o leawe by il i (0 LR = DA 511 AT BES THERLIA 51580 SR RIEATY ]
Leanohadd Nrosowvemnenin 0005 LRI = 04, LT 198 P T R MRS 57T 1%
A EFE T AEIETI)
Feiiturn mz itnga REATADIE mage = 42T AN AEETITT 5 DG ERE T 12536 ]
(EFaAE) AL S
ekl (ET PR nogm = LTATEY bR A (LREE R kA A0 ]
Andn e FETE IR =~
AT | IR A
Wik o sl ek WA KT 26N MmLA = G AR Y TR A AR TR AR ELET = FoiR LTS am
{5 R 65 (3 B3 TR
Lk sepnperrd TEARE 5EY 3 THARA DA EHTEE ERIL3S] B BT 3% 8 THT 04 1]
LR T 1 S s iR~ A el o T 14 i e fiEBAT A 1 nfETE U]
(17, 0L 83 (8 BRI
CorTrrm T30 T Emagry = ALECN R [EERE R & (R FET AT TARES? n
TLIFE ) (1T k)
2020 LADEALT 208 BEBORAET < RADESEADSE LA TE SR B AN LIRS A1 T TR
ALanaEy nampr
[Eall T L hashEy
{mE TSI (TP my

= Includas aseel under common ownerehap under Dimirishing Musharaka amangamant,

= Additions of Hs, 39,753,379 (2020 Rs. B5530,151 ) &5 shown above, Inchude an amount of Rs. NIl (20200 Rs, 59,434,093 transfermed Irom capllal work n
progeess during the year

= Inchudes ransters from leased to caned assets. (Refer note 4.5)

= Redassiind o pon-cument assets el for sale. (Felar note 16}

sids Reppresents prowiskon for impairment against asaeta of sebsidiary.
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4.2 Particular of Immowable Assel in the name of the Group are as follows:
Lacation Addresses Total Area
warachi Plot 8o 19011 heasan ali street, off 1|, Chundrigar road 2,070 5g yards
Islamabad Plot No 24, I&T centre socior G-6H., B0t
Islamabad B-7 km. kashmir highway. ad acent to Sector H-17 303 sg yards
mnz21 2020
Haote Rup=es
43 Depreciation for the period on operating fixed assets has been allocated as fallows:
Coat of production 28 154,188,333 175,501,235
Distribitton costs 28 870,964 1,171,383
Adminstratve sxpenses 27 40,578,583 45,8891.471
195,646 8580 £21,764.138
44 The delails of oparaling fiead assels disposed [ wrillen oll, during the perod a0 a5 follows:
Aecumulated  Net boak Saln Modes of
Description Cost depreciation value procesds Galn J [loss) Diposals Particulars of Buyer
Offiee equipment
2 BOB 480 1411020 1,067, 480 1,371 550 274,000 egotialon Ahar Enginesring
2,250,000 1.036.310 1,253,690 A5, 000 (Ta3.680) Negofiation Ancius Samad Khan
Vehicles
61850 T8 4,332 385 1,857,348 2,465 Bl A30.288 As per Company Mr. Baclw lram, &n employes.
6,219,853 4,353 490 1, B 403 2,210,618 34213 As per Company M Vobammad S Hussan, Ghiel Francil Ofice:
2/500,200 1,852,745 E4T 455 974,595 127,140 As per Company Mr. Nasir Jamal, an employes
57rT.001 4,043,964 1,733,127 1,944,513 211,386 As per Company My, Duraic Qureshi, Chisf Executive
2,713,840 1,899,548 14,002 992 900 178808 As per Company Mr. Khalid Scorty, an employee
1,628,885 1045741 GB4 148 918,381 334,233 e per Company  Mr, Kanvan Shamshad Ahmed, an ermloyes
2400 Ty 1,633,058 1,356,738 1,852,386 485650  As per Company Mr. Amir Zia, an employes
2.815,641 1,827 3r0 2RE 3T QB8 3T - Ae per Company har. Malik Frizad Cayem, an smplyes
Policy
1,153,474 A%3.381 650,093 1,157 000 36,907  Insurance claim Adamjes Insuranca
Leasehold Improvemenis
6,556,854 4,220,935 2,347 9149 2,575,000 227,081 Negotiation OLx Pakistan (Privale] Limited
Mems having book value
of less than Re. 500,000 24 02, 530 A0, THG, 740 3,3, Gal 3,123,351 (132, 728) Megotkation Varlous
2021 &7 494 808.671 18, 72823 20,895,187 2.192
2020 118705771 77169013 41536758 45847 454 4 304,756
21 2020
Hote Rupees ————-
45 Right of uso asscis
Year ended June 30
Opening nat book vale 136,797 636 224 340 840
Additions 9,351,424 4,701 600
Change due to modification during the yesr 15193 £31,925,299)
Traneler to oparating fixed aesets- bock valua (5,890,547 114,810,383}
Leas: Depreciaton charge lor the period 4532 34 a4 a5 408 292
Clesing nat bocss valua 108,028 622 136,797,636
As at June 30
Cosl 189,053,790 184,557 720
Accumidated depreciation (B0,025,183) 148 160 004
Mot book valus 109,028.622 136,797 636
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4.5.2

The nght-of-use assets are depreciated on straghl line basis over the remaimng lease lemm,

Depreciation for the period on right of use assets has been allocated as follows:
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2021 2020
Note wermmenen  RUPEES memenammns
Cast of producton 25 20,442,294 26,358,008
Distribution costs 26 2,639,022 2120138
Adrministrative expenses 2 8, TB2 768 16,931,077
31,865,084 45408222
Breakup of depreciation of right-of-use asseis by class of underlying asset is as follows:
Land and bullding 25117222 31,111,065
Wehicles 6,747 862 14,248,157
31,865,084 45,408,222
4,6 Capital work-in-progress
Leasehold Land BT unlwu 15 933lﬂ??
4.61 Movement in capital wosk-in-progress during the period:
Balance at baginning of the yoar 15,933 877 58,031,934
Additions during the paiod 71,486,592 16,346,036
Transfers dunng the period . (59,434,093)
Balance at end of the perod 87 420,468 15,833,877
5 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Cost Aceumiilated amaortization Book valus Amortisation
Az al Additions As at Az at For the Az al as ot rate
Juby 01, Jumne 30, July 01, period Jure 30, June 30, o
2020 z021 20240 2021 a2 per annum
Goodiwll 15,882,252 {12a13) * 13,849,330 11,803 791 - 11 23, e 2.045 548
Computer s0ftwares 75 ok 667 130,400 7O.038067 39766700  7.764853 47531853 31,504,514 20-33
Licensa fee 75 583 208 2 2A4 0R1 52 285 460 1366825  5B02704 14046 646 48,239 BE2 B.67
(25,560,771) {5,114,779)
Trade mark 34,287,084 216,000 33883500 26604709 4420820 30679041 3,204,459 20
{573,584) * (346, 468) =
2021 202,572,211 2,617,548 179,055,404 91,733,825 17,788,487 104,081,031 74,994,373
(25,560.771) {5,114,773)
= Rapresenhs axchangs gain on fevalualon of goodwll.
g Raprseats pravison far mpammant agains aacess of subsiney
Cost Accumulated amortization Book valug Amortisation
As at Additlens Ag ot A at For the As ot as at rite
July 01, June 30, July 01, year June 30, June 30, %
2019 zZnzo 2014 2nza znzn per annum
Goodwl 13862252 - 13,862 252 11,803,701 . 11,803,781 2.058 461
Computer sofiwares 7 005 667 . 78.905.667 28229781 11544910  30.766.700 30,138, 967 20-33
License fee 75,563,208 2 75,563,208 13,083,081 475544 13 558,625 B2.004,583 B.ET
Trade mark 33,233,084 1,008,000 34,241,084 20,047,525 5,657,084 26,804,700 7,636,375 20
2020 201,564,211 1,008,000 202,572,411 T4,056,278 AT G777 547 91,733,825 110,838 386
HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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5.1

6.1

Amortisation for the period has been allocated as follows:

Cost of production
Administrative axpenseas

LONG TERM INVESTMENTS

Ungueted investment in an associate — stated as per equity

method

Digital Entertainment Ward (Private) Limited (DEW)
Dpening balancea

Investment made during the year

Share of profit — net of tax

Frovision for impairment

Disposad during the year

Closing balance

Note [
Halding

25
27

50%

6.1

201 2020
e Rupees —eeeee
9,710,249 12,157,206
8,078,218 5,520,341

— 17.788467 17,677,547

73,387 D86 77,185.824

- 7,228 162
- (11,036.200)

{73,367 086) -

- 73,387 086

During the current year, the Group in its meetng held on 08 August 2020 decided and disposed off its investment in DEW.

LONG TERM DEPOSITS
Security deposits

- Leasa

- Renl

- Trade
- Others

Prepayments
- Saftware develpoment fee

TELEVISION PROGRAM COSTS

Linreleased ! released less amortisation
In production

Less: Current portion

DEFERRED TAX ASSET

Deductible temporary differences arising in respect of:

Unused tax credits on subscrption incoma
Unrealisad loss on short term investments
Unabsorbed lax losses

Pravisions

Long term lease liabilities - net

Accelarated lax depreciation and amartisation

Taxable temporary differences arising in respect of:
Unrealised loss on shorl term investments - nel

2024 2020
cememeee RUPBES -cmememe
= 1,353,257
8,761,458 8,921,458
15,975,435 31,307,175
4,496,383 4,283,186
27,233,276 45,865,076
4,210,158 .
31,443,434 45,865,076
430,167 561 427,380,500
22,282,250 38,743,260
452,449 811 466,123 750
(100,385,799) {105,385 799)
352 064 D12 360,737 951
- 90,526,694
. 1,388,007
8,614,237 11,579,987
103,229,914 50,746,755
3,512,963 731,532
33,320,368 8,716,746
148,677,482 161,680,721
(14,003,897) =
134,673,585 161,685,721

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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2021 2020
Mote mmeenans  RUpRES
10 TRADE DEBTS - unsecured
Considered good 10.3 2,308,861,983 2,178,350,487
Less: Allowance for ECL 10.2 (78,385,137 (88.539.634)
2,231,476,846 2,089 810,853
101 Parliculars of receivable from foreign jurisdictions:
Jurisdiction
Unitad Arsh Emirates 75,895,667 04 500 Fo
United States of Amernca 59 587 224 24 (082 237
135,462.891 118,682 0259

These receivables are on contract basis and there are no defauling parties as of June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2020,

2021 2020
seeaesaes RUpees

10,2  Provision for doubtiul debis

Opening batance 89,539,634 B7.832.083
Charge for the year 22,865,447 25,823,085
Provision written off (34,019,944) {24,115.548)
Balance as at the end of the year 78,385,137 B 530,634

10.3  The aging of trade debis as at June 30 is as follows:

Meither past due nos impaired 1,683,507, 777 1,310,822 787

Fasl due but not impairad

= 01 to 30 days 239,190,089 436,947,080

- 31 to 60 days 238,131,759 263,416,582

- Over B0 days 70,647,211 78,624 404
2|231I4TEIB4E 2,089,810,853

2021 2020
———---- Rupees

1 SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
At fair value through profit or loss
Term Finance Certificates (TFCs)

Bank of Punjab
2,033 TFCs having face value of Rs.99,860 each - 198,901,230

U Microfinance Bank Limilad

8,400 TFCs having face value of Rs.4,992 sach
{2020: 8,400 TFCs having face value of Rs. 4 994 each) 1.1 42 302,020 42 603, BG2
Mutual Funds

Askart High Yield Scheme
21.865 unils having net asset value (MAY) of Rs.103.1229 per unil 2,254,809 -

AKD Opportunity Fund
2,199,809 units having NAY of Rs. 1367162 per unit 300,749,572 -

AKD Golden Arrow Stock Fund
9,448 241 units having NAY of Rs. 18 6266 par unit 157,108,756 -

502,415,157 241,505,082

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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14

12

13

14

141

15

151

16

2021 2020
Rupees
These carmy interest ranging from 10.60% to 10.84% (2020 8.68% to 16.98%:).
ADVANCES - unsecured, considered good
Interest free advances to:
- Producers 95,205,731 52,272,091
- Suppliers 27,081,160 39,398,193
- Emplayess 6,338,967 8. 738189
- Executives 657,539 4,713,727
129,283 397 106,122,200
2021 2020
Mote RUDBES ===e=n -
TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT-TERM PREPAYMENTS
Deposits
- Rent 711,430 684,500
Prepaymeants
- Insurance 20,365,662 15,972,830
- Rent 1,244,140 1,734,426
- Other 1,261,743 5.291,397
22,871,545 22988713

23,582,975 23,663,213

OTHER RECEIVABLES - considered good

Sales tax receivabla 141 110,354,312 108,626,731
Incomed mark-up accrued - 69,580
Others 894,099 1,833,251

111,845 411 110,529,571

Az per rule 3(5) of Sindh Sales Tax Special Procedure (withhelding) Rule. 2014, registered persons as recipient of
advertisement services shall withheld whole of sales fax applicable on the person providing adverlisemeant services.
Accordingly, the Holding company Is unable to adjust its Input tax deducted on purchases of taxable goods and services as
100% aof the output tax on the Holding Company's taxable services are being withheld by the recipienl of these services.
However, Holding Company 12 in carrespondence walh the relevani authonbies through ils legal advisor 1o resolve the matler.

2021 2020
Rupgei sEmEm

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand 381,740 2,018,652
Cash at banks

- in currant accounts 136,053,795 140,421,348
- in deposit accounts 15.1 301,257,992 126,257 823

437,311,787 266,679,171
437,693,527 268,697,823

These carry profit at the rates ranging from 5.5% 10 6% per annum (2020: 6.5% 1o 11.25%) per annum
NON-CURRENT ASSET HELD FOR SALE
On 16 July 2020, the managemant of the Company disposed off land located in Karachi at consideration of Rs. 483 340,000

having fair value of Rs. 472,958,100 based on the independent valuation carried out on 30 June 2020 and net book value of
16,507,087,

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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17 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

2021 2020 2021 2020
{(Number of shafregy — emsseesess Rupees

Ordinary shares of Re. 1/-each

500,000,000 500,000,000 Fully paid in cash 500,000,000 500,000,000
445,000,000 445,000,000 |ssued as fully pald bonus shares 445,000,000 445 000,000
945,000,000 845,000,000 945,000,000 245,000,000

17.1  As a8l June 30, 2021, institutions and others held 665950489 and 279,049,511 shares, respectively (June 30, 2020:
B04 989,034 and 340,030,966 shares). Voting rights, board selection, right of first refusal and bleck voting are in propartion to
the sharehalding.

2021 2020
Note Rupees =——-—--m
18 LONG TERM LEASE LIABILITIES
Opening balance 139,976,668 203,492 165
Additionz during the period 4.5 7,874,151 4,701,800
Change due to modification during the yvear 35,193 (31.925,299)
Mark up on lease liabllities 30 15,529,710 24,730,643
Less: Lease rentals paid (41,799,470) (f1.022.441)
Closing balance 181 121,616,252 139,976,668
Current portion of long-term lease lizbilities 29,564,860 35,142,945
Long-term lease llabilites 92,051,392 104,833,723

181 Includes lease finance facility enterad into by the Company with commercial banks for vehicles amounting to Rs 91,750,000
(2020 Rs. 115.000.000) out of which Rs. 66,358,190 (2020: Rs. 101,173,870) remains unutilized at peried end. Lease
renlals are payabla in monthly instaliments latest by September 2022,

2021 2020
13 LONG TERM FINANCING Note Rupees —-——m—-m—-
Islamic banks - secured
Diminshing Musharaka - | 18.1 269,420,550 409,771 846
Diminzhing Musharaka - (| 19.2 187,048,496 12195127
456,469,046 721,966,873
Less: current maturity (257,640 ,427) {169,835,542)

198,828,619 282131 431
Conventional bank

Term Finance Loan - secured - 312,185,996
Bounce back loan - unsecurad 193 21,797,749 o
Salary Refinance Loan - secured 194 144,531,403 -

166,328,152 312,183 896
Less: current maturity {95,228 460) {26, 476,058)

70,400,692 285 707,938

269,229,311 837 839,369

19.1  Represent Diminishing Musharaka facility carrying profit at the rate of & months KIBOR plos 1% (June 2020: & maonths
KIBOR plus 1%) per annum, The financing is repayable by 24 June 2023 in 48 equal monthly instalments commencing after
a grace period of 12 months fram the date of firsl disbursement (e from June 2018. The loan is secured by way of
registered mortgage aver the building on leasshold land.

19,2  Reprasent Diminishing Musharaka carrying profit at the rate of 6 months KIBOR plus 1% (June 2020: 6 manihs KIBOR plus
1% per annum, The financing is repayable in 48 egual monthly instalments commencing after 2 grace pericd of 18 months
from the date of first dishursement i.e. December 2017. In 2020, the Company has availed the principal deferment facility for
LTFF offered by the EBP through BPRD drcular no. 13 of 2020 to dampen adverse effects of the COVID-13 and to provide
relief to the businasses. Hence, the financing is repayable by December 2023. Financing is secured by way of Equitable
Morlgage over registered office, first pan passu constructive mortgage charge over land and first hypothecation charge over
plant, machinery & equipment.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED

125




Annual Report 2021

19.3

18.4

20

20.1

21

211

21.2

224

Represents foreign currency loan amounting to £100,000 obtained by the Group from Barclays Bank UK PLC at the rate of
2.5% per annum. The loan is repayable in 80 equal installments commencing after a grace period of 13 manths from the
date of disbursement. During the first 12 months, the UK government will pay interest due on this loan as Business
Interruption payment. The loan s supported by the Bounce Bank Loan Scheme (BBLS) managed by the Bnslish Business
Bank on bahif of the Secretary of State for Business Energy and Industrial Strategy.

Represents long temm-financing from an Islamic bank obtalned during the perlod of Rs. 200 milllon under the refinance
scheme lor payment of wages and salaries by State Bank of Pakistan (SBP). The loan carmy markup rale al the rale of SEP
rate + 3% however, the loan have been recognised at the present value. The loan is repayable in B equal quarterly
instaliments commencing from January 2021 discounted at effective rate of Inlerest. The differential markup has been
recognisad as govermeant grant which will be amortised (o interest incoma over the pariod of loan, Tha facility is sscured by
way of reqisterad equitabla mortgage over land and property with 30% margin.

2021 2020

Deferred Incame - Gavernment grant Note Rupees

Opening balance - -
Receivad during the year 13,459,991 g
Releasad to the ataterment of profit or loss 29 {8,403,726) -
Closing balance 201 5,056,265 -
Current portion (4,495,607) .
Mon-current porlion 560,658 -

Government grant has been recorded pursuant to a salary refinance scheme introduced by the State Bank of Pakistan
{IHESMEFD Circular Nos. 07 &14) lo provide loan lo businesses al concessional rates lo finance salary expense during the
COVID-19 autbreak. The grant has been provided to the Company as a reimbursement of average wages end salaries' bill
for the months of April, May and June 2020 subject to Company's underiaking thal no employees have been laid off,
duefowing to cash flow limitations, for a period of three months between April 01, 2020 1o June 30, 2020,

2021 2020
Mote Rupees
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Creditors 211 307,877,604 415,305,683
Accrued liabilities 320,803,855 103,445,339
Payable against investment in an associate - 59,704,281
Withhalding lax payable 19,946,085 42 230,553
Payabla to provident fund 21.2 1,371,103 1.273.701
Cilhers 24,087 441 35,677,744
683,186,088 657.637,341

Include amount payable to following related party:
M.D Production (Private) Limited 1,669,008 85,940,684
Digitial Entertainment World (Private) Limited = 45,002,945

1,669,008 140,943,629

Investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the Act and the ules
formulated for this purpose.

2021 2020
Note Rupeas
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS - secured
Short-term running finance— conventional banks 221 & 189,067,264

The Helding Company has short-term running finance faciliies from various conventional banks smounting to Rs.
425,000,000 (June 2020: Rs. 425,000,000) which remained unutilised at year end (June 2020: Rs. 235,032 736). These
facilities carrying markup ranging from 1 manth to 3 month KIBOR + 0.75% to 1%. (June 2020: 1 month to 3 manth KIBOR
+0.75% to 1%). These facilities are secured by way of parl passu charge and first hypothecation charge on all current
assels of the Holding Company,
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22.2 Thea Holding Company has local hill discounting faciities amounting to Rs, 175,000,000 (June 2020: Rs. 175,000,000} which
ramain unutiized at the year end. These facilities carrying mark-up rates ranging from 3 months KIBOR + 0.8% to 1% {June
2020: 3 months KIBOR + 0.9% lo 1%). These facililies secured by way of pan passu charge and first hypothecation charge
an all current assets of the Holding Company.

22.3 Tha Holding Company has facility against letters of credit aggregating to Rs. 50,000,000 (June 2020: Rs. 50,000,000} which
remain unulilized at the period end. These facilities secured by way of lien over import documents,

23 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
231 Contingencies

For the tex year 2013, he Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) passed an order under section 122(1} of the Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001 wherein cerain disallowances | addbacks were made o the laxable income of the Company. The Company
filed an appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) against the aforesaid order who decided the case against
the Company. The Company challenged the aforesaid order of the CIR (A) before tha Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenus (ATIR),
Pursuant to the above appesl, the ATIR has now passed an appellate ordar whereby the order passed by the ACIR has bean
remanded back on the ground that gproper opperiunity of being heard was not provided lo the company. No notice has yel been
isgued for fresh proceedings.

The tax authorities passed an order under section 122 (5A) of the Income Tax Crdinance, 2001 for the tax year 2014
whereby a lax demand of Rs. 168,166,682 was crealed. The Hoiding Company has filled appeal bafare the Commissioner
Infand Revenue (Appaals) (CIR (A)) in respact of the aforesaid order, which is pending adjudication.

Furthermore, the Holding Company has obtained stay from recovery of lax in respect of the above tax demand from the
Sindh High Court (the Court), till the decision of appeal. The management, based on tha legal and tax advice, |s confident
that the ultimate culcome will be In favor of the Holding Company and accordingly, no provision has been made in this
respect in these consolidated financial statements.

23.1.1 Fortax related matters, refer note 31 1o these consolidated financial statements.
23.2 Commitments
23.21  Purchase of telavision programs commitmants with M.D Production (Private) Limited - a related party as at June 30, 2021

amounted to Rs. 175,514,000 (June 30 2020: Rs. 155,578.500). Commitment for purchase of television programs with other
than related parties a5 at June 30, 2021 amounted to Rs. 71,736,000 (June 30, 2020: Rs. 84,222 500).

2021 2020
Note Rupees -
24 REVEMNUE - net
Advertisement revenus 4,057,299,047 3,504,290 142
Production revenus 67,200,884 51,495,210
Digital revenus 47,036,575 110,414,145
Subscription Income 657,492 801 636,811,833
Film distribution revenue 715,601 40,630,585
Sale of goods 162,708,076 298 509 962
Sale ol megazines 1,177,052 3,173.810
24.1/242 __4893,720.036  __ 4645325 787_
HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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2021 2020
MNote - Rupees —--—-----
241 Revenue is net off the following lems:
Sales tax 519,676,018 440,871,671
Discount to customers 331,818,560 248,716,703
851,494 578 B89 687,374
24.2 Reprasents revenus from the following geographical reglons:
Asia 4,196,687,187 3,918.308,018
United Kingdom 238,567,556 346,283 540
America 558,474,203 379 737,228
—4.903.729.036 __ 4545325 VAT
25 COST OF PRODUCTION
Cost of outsourced programs 1,449 206,697 1,501,992 926
Cosl of in-house programs 128,361,607 238,684,117
Cost of inventony consumed 153,182,250 2,023,408
Salaries and benefils 251 620,709,406 700,813,054
Depreciation 4384532 174,639,627 201,859,291
Traveling and conveyance 47,112,949 60,459,154
Utilities 23,035,888 19,316,327
Rent, rales and taxes 535,389 1,839,183
Insurance 25169, 262 22,850,381
Repair and malntenance 63,627 522 47 379 514
Fee and subscription 103,226,704 60,023,083
Communication 16,037,576 16,378,825
Security charges 811,074 1,356,144
Amortisation 51 9,710,249 12,157,206
Website and internet charges 15,754 -
Consultancy 5,466,961 6,013,959
Printing and stalionery 4,081,024 10,818,429
2,824,020.939 3,213,966 061
In production television programs — opening 38,743,250 54,213,916
In production television programs - closing (22,282,250) (38,743,250}
2,841,390,939 3,220438 727
Released { unreleasaed programs - opening 427,380,500 386,400,500
Released | unreleased programs - closing (430,167, 561) (427,380,500}

2,838 603,878 3,188 458727

251 Include Rs, 23 635,656 (2020: Rs. 26, 580.044) in respect of s1af ratiramean! benefits.

2021 2020
Mote - Rupees ——-----
26 DISTRIEUTION COSTS
Advertisemeant and promotion 116,127,307 184,273,278
Salaries and benefils 26.1 126,007,356 141,588 602
Traveling and convayance 10,485,718 10,159,583
Rent, rales and taxes 90,983 B BORB
Utilities 1,751,418 867,803
Depreciatan 4384532 3,500,986 3,201 522
Communication 1,267,513 1.4932 880
Insurance 2,524,783 2,716 465
Repair and maintenance 1,926,678 2,186,613
Fees and subscription 2.119,504 1,984 746
Commission expanss 22,603,618 7,567,065
Printing and stationery 140,979 287 413
288 605 843 356 436 BEE
26.1 Include Rs. 5,162 605 (2020 Rs. 4,987 023) in respect of staff retirement benefits,
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2021 2020
Note -semeee— Rupees
27 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salaries and benafits 271 578,988,381 410,517,264
Technical advisary fea 27.2 41,400,000 41,400,000
Depreciation 4384572 49,362,351 62,022 548
Amaortisation 5 B,07T8,218 0,020,341
Repair and maintenance 40,267,173 30,003,265
Caommunication 5,401,087 6,374,162
Travaling and conveyance 19,831,085 30,336,726
Fee and subseriptinn 23,261,582 8,350,074
Utilities 31,299,504 20 592 304
Legal and professional charges 76,300,190 20,056,963
Printing, stationery and perodicals 5,722,682 7,278,650
Rent, rales and 1axes 24,253,769 20,179,390
Insurance 6,036,792 5,303,920
Auditors” remuneration 2r.3 9,272,646 8.531.001
Sacurity charges B,B63,850 10,628,238
Donation 274 200,000 1.817. 770
Bﬂiﬁiﬂ!ﬁﬂ EQBEQ‘JEEEEM
271 Include Rs. 4,903,800 (2020 Rs. 4,956,832) in respect of staff retirament benefits.
27.2 Represenls amount paid | payable lo director of the Holding Campany for technical advisory services renderad in terms of
tha technical advisory agreement duly approved by the Board of Directors
2021 2020
mmmmnna - Rupees -
27.3  Auditors' remuneration
Audit fee 3,851,065 5.515.543
Fee for consolidated financial statemenis 1,832,627 850,000
Fee lor hall yearly review 450,000 325.000
Tax and other assurance services 2,518,954 2,276,560
Out of pockal expansas 620,000 BE3 508
9,272,646 9.531.001

e e e
274  [nterast of the Directors or their spouses in the donations made during the year is as follows:

Mame of donee and address Names of interested

fomina and Duraid Foundation (Plot No.
10/11 hassan ali streat, off |.1. Chundrigar

mir. Duraid Qurashi - Truslee
Ms. Sultana Siddiqui - Trustee

road, Karachi, - 1,480 649
28 OTHER EXPENSE
Provigion for doubtful rade debis 22,865,447 25,823,085
Provision for impairment against assets [ investment in an associate 28,262,941 11,056,200
Stock written off 5,117,655 2,581,225
Expenses for award show arrangermeant - 209,014 898
Loss on disposal of intangible assets 14,055,806 -
Cthers - 13,745 Bo96
70,301,849 263202006
28 OTHER INCOME -
Income [ (loss) from financial assets
Profit on bank accounts 16,956,588 12,443,154
Exchange gain 7,997,414 14,096,340
Dividend Income 177.973 150.000
[nterest f markup income 7,242, 8B65 63,157,955
Govaernmeant grant B.403,726 -
Urrealised gain / {loss) on revaluation of investments 110,580,114 {4,188,063)
{Loss} { gain on redemption / sale of investments {12,426,115) 1.508 558
138,932,565 B7. 167 044
Income from non financial assets
Gain on disposal of opecating fixed assats 2,192,344 4,304,736
Liabilities no fonger payable written back - 177,185
Sale of conlent and festival revenue 21,284,181 74,317 800
Incame from award show arrangement - 97,733,251
Cthers 505,662 12,808,161
23,982,187 169,342,133

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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2021 2020
Mote EMERRISEN =177 7.1 - Spamm——

FINANCE COSTS
Mark-up an lang term financing 63,287, 927 164,676,755
Mark-up on short term borrowings 20,906,003 53,548,307
Interest on lease labiities 15,529,710 24,730,643
Bank charges 1,863,711 2,017,540

101,587,354 244 973 245
TAXATION
Currant 72,266,427 66,068,723
Deferred 25,765,379 (88,310,777
Prior 6410387

ana 98 l.'l!!l?'Sﬁ 515 831 Bﬁ?t

The Holding Company has filed ils return of income up lo tax year 2020. The reiurn so filed is deemed o be an assessmen| order
issued by the Taxation Authorities on the date the complete return is filed. The Holding Company is mainly subject to Minimum Tax
Regime under Ssction 163((3) (g)} of the Incoma Tax Ordinance, 2001, therefore, relationship between income tax expense and
accounting profit has not been presented.

The Holding Company filed a Constitutional Pstition (CF) before the Court on September 27, 2018 challenging the tax under
saction 54 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, The Court accepted the CF and granted a stay against the above section. In case
the Court's declsion is not in favor of the Holding Company, the Holding Company will either be required 1o declare the dividend 1o
the extent of 40% of after t2x profits or it will be liabla to pay additional 13x at the rale of T 5% of the accounting profit before (8x of
the Haolding Company for the financial vear ended June 30, 2018, The management, based on the legal and tax advice, is canfident
that the ultimale outcome will be in favor of the Holding Company and accordingly, no provision has bean made in this respect in
these consclidated financial stalements.

Subsequent 12 the vaar end, the Sindh High Cour (the Courl), through its order dated 30 April 2021, declared the insertion of
sachon bA of the Ordinance as ullra vires fo the Constitulion of Islamic Republe of Pakistan, 1973 and therefore struck down the
provisions of the aforesaid section, Accordingly. In light of the above udgment af the Caourt, the provisions of seclion 54 of the
Ordinance are no longer applicabla on the Helding Company, untll such matter s decided othemwise by the Honorable Supreme
Caurt,

Curing the year 2017, Depuly Commissionar Inland Revenuce issusd a show cause notice 1o the Holding Company, for The (ax year
2014, showing his intention lo disallow the deduction claimed on account of agency commission on alleged non-deduction of ax on
such sgency commission, The Holding Company filed a suil belore the Hon'bie High Court of Sindh challenging the above
showcause nolice,

Based on & recent judgement of the Hon'ble Supreme Courl of Pakistan, suils Med by taxpayers are not lo be maintained unless
50% of the tax due is deposited by the patiioners. In compliance to the above order, the Holding Company has deposited an
amount of 24,395,012 into the Government treasury. The decision in respect of the Suit filed by the Holding Company is still
panding.

2021 20240
Rupees —-—---

EARNINGS | (LOSS) PER SHARE - basic and diluted

Profit / (loss) aftributabla to the owners of the Holding Company 894,762 844 {193 068 481)
Weighted average number of aordinary shares

outstanding during the period — 245,000,000 ___ 945,000,000
Eamings / (loss) per share (Rupesa) 1.05 {0.20)
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2021 2020
Rupees -

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Profit / {loss) before taxation 1,059,224 552 (263,000.185)
Adjustments for :
Depraciation 227,511,964 267,173,361
Amartisation 17,788,467 17,677 547
Provision for impairment against assets / invastment in an associate 28,262 941 11,036,900
Frovision for employes ratirameant benefits 4,802,695 34,292,849
Finance cosls 101,587,351 244 6973 245
Exchange difference on transiation of foreign subsidisries 7.023,908 7,841 236
Exchange gain (7,997 .414) {14,096 340)
Profit on deposit accounts (16,956,588) {12,443.154)
Gain an gale of non-current asset held for sale (476,832,913) -
Galn an disposal of oparating fixed assels (2,192,344) (4,304 T36)
Lozs an disposal of intangible assets 14,055,806 -
Share of net profit of associate - (7,228,162)
{Loss] { gain on redemption / =ale of investments 12,426.115 {1,508,558)
Uinrealised gain ! (loss) on revaluation of investmeants (110,580,114) 4,188,063
Provision for doubtful debts 22,865,447 25823089

(178,234,679) 573425440
(Increase) | decrease in current assets
Invenicries 27,469,959 17,745,971
Current portion of television program cosls 5,000,000 108,000,000
Trade debls (166,424,330) (213,011,700)
Advances (25,527,189 48,026 417
Trade deposits and short term prepayments {3,187,831) (22,012,138)
Oither receivables (7.871,962) a3 G00.3RA

(170,543,453) 32,348,940

Increase { (decrease) in current liabilities

Trade and other payables 25,548,747 (330,523.158)
Advance from customers (101,278,018} 201,801,981
634,717,149 205,153.018

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregale amounts charged in the consolidaled financial statements for remuneration, including all benefits 1o the
Chief Executives, Directors and Executives are as follows:

021 2020
Chiaf Exccutive Chial Expcutive

Executive Director Directors Ewecutives Executive Director Directors Executives
Mapagorial remumeration 100,834 935 - 237,292 249 a8 470040 - 253,774 383
Faa - 2,300,000 - 26760
Bonu BT, T53 983 BT.753,803 - L3 . =
Raliremenl benefits - - 12,051 188 - - 12,642 810
House rent 14,022,584 - 62,308,947 14,102,581 T37 842
(SR E 3,116,128 - 13,846,433 116120 16,302,852
Car abowance 20,128,072 3,500,000 - - - - - -
Techrica! aduisary fee . 44,400,000 . . - 44 400,000 - -
Fugl and convayancs 1,349, 57T B15, 040 540,085 B, 795300 1, 363515 B34 3E9 ADG 32 ool 367

_&Hﬁm&&. et LEATASE 42284200, 3,74.832, 36520287,

Faumoer 1 1 5 (¥

The Chief Executives, Directors and certaln Executives are also provided with free use of Group maintained cars in accordance
with the Group's policy and reimbursement of expenses relaled lo business travel,

The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for meeting fee 1o 4 non-executive directors amounted to
Rs. 300,000/- (2020; Rs. 675,000/-).

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
Redated partins of the Group comprise associnted undertaking, reSrement benefls fond snd ey manmgoment personnel
year, afhar than thoae which have been discosed elaahens in fese conaolidated inencial statemants are &5 foilows

Relationship Mature of ransactions

Associates Purchazas of lalevision arogram righta
Expenses pald on behall of ihe assocate
Payman; made during the perod

Cihers Cantribubon o the provident fund

Distails of Eransmctinrs with relsted parties during the

021 N
Ruppes
1,263,466 387 1,142,864 302
22 A43 060 18230 705

1,321,263 54 1,337, 378,266
‘31,702,061 36 523 009

All ransactions with relaled parbes are eniecad inke al agmed lerre duly spproved by the Board of Direclars of the Group, The ouistandng meevaide and payable balances of the

ralated pariies are gisslosad In thel respective robes o these consoidated Snancal slatemeants

Fodoning are 1he related parmes with whom the Comasny had entered mbc Tansactions or hawe amanpameant / aqrasment in place’

B.MNao. Company Name
1 D Praductons (Pavata) Livsed
d Moming & Duraid Flims [Private) Limited
i Komina and Curaid Foundation
4 HUM Network Linited- Emcioyoes’ Provident Fund
5 Mz Sultana SEddkui
4 br. Mazhar ul Hag Siddigu)
T br. Diurald Cureshl
a e, Bhinsid Curesh
& kirs. Mahtab Akbar Rashd)
10 L Gen (R Az Yasin Makk
1" br, Mubiammad Avub Younsus Adhl
2 ke Sohadl Angas
13 k. Mabinha Nassser Masoosd
14 . Muhammad Aobas Hugssin
1% kir. Mghsin Nagsm

These enlilies are associaled compases f underakings of he Company under Cornpanies Act, 2097

None af tha ey managamant Deraannel hiad sy arrandamsns with he Company othar han the emaloviment coriraa.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Financlal asscis s per statemont of financial position

Finenclsl seeuls ol mmodlised cost
= Long foom depoaits

- Trade d5bis

- Trade deposils

= Gither recawvables

= Cashand bank balances

Finanelal asaets &t falr value through profit or logs
= Shoit ferm investmants.

Financial fiahlities as per statement of financial position

Financial liabllities al amortiscd cost
g Long lenn Nindncing

- Crafarresd mooma - qovammen| gramt
= Tmady and ather payables

= Atcrued mark-up

- Shol 8rm borravwenos:

= Gurrent pertan of long e irancing
= Inciaimpa dividend

. knpasd drochand

Bastzs of association BAggregate % of
aharahalding
Az nclatad company [35.1.1) -
Agsociated company (35.1.7) I!
Assnointed oompany (35,1, =
Ratiremant Fune -
Dimeinr a02%
Driretsor -
Dhreniiend 24.30%
Direcior HaET
Dvracwr -
Dwrmcior =
Demcior -
Dt
Dotacion -

Hey mpnageiment Peraommne .
Kry managemeant Persanne! -

2o 2020
Note Rupees

v 31,443, 424 45 REE,07A
10 2,231 ATE B46 2089 810.E53
15 711,420 16497 150
14 A1, 099 110,528,571
15 437693 537 268,507 EF3
Z?EZTEBJB 2534 400 E13
" —t RS, _gA1S05 DY
L) 260,228,311 B37 838,368
20 550,658 -
#1 663,240,003 B15.408 T48
9,807 259 3,210,148

28 - 1B206T 264
10 352,568 287 106,311,600
5,046 450 5,945 4190

5150 20515

1,303,658 807 1,647 888 778

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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a7 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OB.JECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's activiies expose it to a varety of financial nsks |.e. market risk {including currency risk, interest rate nsk and price
risk), credit risk and liguidity risk. The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of finzncial
markets and seeks to minim:ze polential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

The Group's senicr managemsni oversees the management of these risks. The Group's senior managemanl provides
policies for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas such as foraign exchangea risk, interest rate
risk and credit risk, use of financial derivatives, financial instruments and Investment of excess liquidity. 1tis the Group's policy
that no trading n derivalives for spaculative purposes shall be undartaken, Tha Board of Directors review and agrae policies
for managing each of these risks which are summarized below:

374 Market risk
Market rizk iz the risk that fair value of fulure cash fiows will luctuate because of changes in market prices. Market prices
comprise three types of risk: interast rate risk, currency risk and equity price risk, such as aguily nisk.

37.2  Interest rate risk

Intarast rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash fows of financial instruments will fluctsate because of changes in
the market interes] rates. The Group's interast rate risk arisas from finance lease obligations, shor term borrowings and bank
balances. The Group manages these rsks through risk management strategies.

Sensitivity analysis:

The following figures demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rate, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's profit before taxation:

Increase / Effect on profit
decreasea in Betors taation
basis points

Rupees
+100 (2,419,993)
June 30, 2021 =100 2419883
+100 111,216 898)
June 30, 2020 -100 T 11,216,898

37.3 Currency risk

Forelgn currency risk Is the risk that the value of financial assetz or financial Hakilitizs will fluctuate due to a8 changa in foreign
exchange rates. It arises mainly where receivabies and payahles exist due to transactions in foreign cumrencies. The Group's
exposune to foreign currency risk is as follows:

2021 2020
Us Dollar GEP AED uUs Dollar GBP AED
Trade debts 871,063 1,203,781 1,399,380 a0z,844 BE3 174 2,829,086
Deposils and prepayments - - 271,936 1.250 - Ir7 218
Trada and other payables (452,364) (355,706) (328,491) {406 532 {342 D59) {121 543)
The following significant exchange rates have been applied at the reporting dates:
RUpEES ==mmweeees sererememres RUPEES sremememee
Clasing sxchange rates 157.5 216 43 167.6 205 45.50

Sensitivity analysis:

The following table demonsirates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the US dellar and GBP exchange rate,
with all other variables held constant, of the Group's profit before taxation;

Change in Effect an ———— Effect on s T E =
u;:“f',:;r m":::h’“ rfs: rats (%) pmﬂ:::"’” ai;’..?; (%) pnﬁr:lc:f:re tax
= Rupsas -- - Rupees -- - Rupeas --
30 June 2021 10 __ 6,584,508 10 18,318,420 10 5774148
-0 __[6594508) -0 A0 [(5774148)
30 June 2020 10 8. 340,808 10 13,347 10 14 204

-10 5@34{153081 -10 13,347 858 -10 !'I-!IIEﬁ 204)
374  Equity price risk

The Group's investments are susceptible to markel price risk ardsing from uncerainlies aboutl future values of Invesiment
sacurties. The Group manages the equity price risk through diversification and placing limits on individual and t1otal
invaestmeants. Reports on the investments portfalio are submitted o the Group’s senior managemen! on & regular basis

Az of the ststement of financial posilion dale, the exposure lo investmeanis al lair value through profil or loss was Rs
602,415 517 (2020: Rs. 241 605,082

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk which arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge its cbligation
and cause lhe other parly to incur 8 financal loss, Concentration of credil nsk arise when a number of counterparlies are
engaged In similar business activities or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to mset contractual
ohbligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate the
relative sensitivity of the Group's performance (o deveiopments affecting a particuiar industry

The Group is mainly exposed to credit risk on frade debts and bank balances, The Group seeks o minimize the credit risk
exposure through having expozuras only to customers considered credit worthy and obtaining secunties whare applicable,

Management of credit risk

The Group's policy is o enter into financial contracts In accordance with the guidelines =&l by the Board of Directors and other
internal guidelines.

Credil risk i= managed and controlled by the managemeant of the Group in the following manner:

= Credil rating and | or credit worthiness of the counterparty is taken into account along with the financial background s0 as to
minimize the risk of defaull,

- The risk of counterparty exposure due to failed agreements causing a loss 1o the Group is mitigated by a periodic review of their
credil ratings, financial statemants, credit worthiness and market information on a regular basis.

- Cash ls held with reputable banks aniy.
As of the consolidated statament of financial position date, the Group is exposed to credit risk on the following assets:

2021 2020

Rupees —-----ee
- Long term deposits 31,443 434 45,886,076
- Trade debts 2,231 476,846 2,089.810,853
- Shor term investmenis 502,415,157 241,605,092
- Trade deposits 711,430 19,497 180
- Other receivables #91,093 1,802 840
- Bank balances 437,311,787 266,679,171
3,204,249.753 2 665 260,222

Quality of financlal assets

The credit quality of financial assets can be assessed by reference 1o external credit ratings or to historical infermation about
counterpary defaull rates.,

2021 2020
Note mmeeeees RUPEES ———eeeeee
Trade debts
Customers with no defaults in the past ong year 2,231,476,846 2,089,610.853
Customers with some defaults in past one year 78,385,137 B9,530,634

10 2,309,861,983 2,179,350 487

Bank balances
A+ 15 354,695,054 141,146,855
AT 767,992 ~
A+ 81,848,701 125,532,216
437,311,787 266,679,171

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Short term investments

Mutual funds AMA++ 157,108,756 -
MFR 5-Star 300,749,572 .
AT} 2,254,608 -
460,113,137 =
Term finance cerificate A 42,302,020 -
Al - 198,901,230
A - 42 603 862

1 502,415,157 241,505,092
376  Liguidity risk
Liguidity nsk is the nsk that the Group will not be able 1o meet ils financial obligations as they fall due. The Group applies prudent

risk management policies by maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances and by keeping commitled credit lines. Tha lable
below summarnzes the maturity profile of the Group's financial lizbilities as at the following reporiing dates:

Less than 3 3to12
2021 On demand SRR biite 11to 5 years Total
Rupees
Lang term lease liabiliies - 5,979,119 23,585741 92,051,392 121,616,252
Long term financing - 95,703,546 278,573,203 248,521,449 622,798,198
Trade and other payablac 45,404 629 278,619,198 474 611,276 - 788,635,103
Deferred income- Government grant - 1,570,255 2,925,352 560,658 5,056,265
Acarued mark-up 9,907,299 - 9,907,209

55,311,928 asd 572,113 1'1'9,6955?2 341133499 _ 1.558.013117

Less than 3 3to 12

20240 On demand N e 11o 5 years Total
Rupees
Long term linancing - 3,554,703 a0 BET, 350 170,774,112 208,186,165
Leasa liabilitins B 60.558,183 237647 543 549 485,375 1,247.691,101
Trade and other payablas 84,985 859 274735110 4592 456,259 - B2 177,268
Short term barrowing - 241 505,092 - - 241 505,082
Accrued mark-up 3210149 3.210.1448

88,196,048 583,353 ggg 750,871 15; 1,120 ggﬂ!rig? 2,932, ??Q!T?g

37.6.1 Changes in liabilities from financing activities

1-Jul-20 Cash Flows MNew leases Others 30-Jun-21
Rupees
Lang term financing 1,034,150,969 {411,352 771} s - (22,798,198
Long term lease liabilties 130.976.6 EI;_ 141,799 470} ?.3?4.151_ 15,564 903 121,616,252
1-Jul-19 Cash Flows New leases Others 30-Jun-20
Rupees
Long term financing '1 50 655 062 (316.404 {!IEIBE _ 334 160 869

Lang term lease liabilities — Zhamies _ Glozain éﬂé&i A@Jg — 138,976,668

37.6.2 Fair value of financial instruments

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the consolidated financial stalements appropriate their fair
values.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Capital risk

The Group finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working capital with a view of maintaining an
apprapriate mix betwesn various sources of finance to minimize fsk, The primary objective of the Group s capital management s
to ensure that it maintains healthy capital ratios in arder to support its business sustain future development of the business and
maximize shareholders value. The Group monitors capital using a debt equity ratio as follows:

2021 2020

MNole -~ Rupgeg S———
Lang term lease liabilities 18 92,051,392 104,833,723
Lang term financing 19 269,229,311 837,838,369
Cefered income - Govemmant grant 20 560,658 .
Trade and ather payable 21 683,186,088 657,637 341
Accrued markup 9,907,299 3,210,149
Short term barrowing 22 - 188,067 264
Current partion of lang tenm lease liabilities 18 29 564 860 a5 142 045
Current portion of deferred income - Govermment grant 20 4,495,607 -
Current portion of long team financing 18 353,568,887 196,211,600
Total debt 1,442 564,102 2,024 042 391
Cash and bank balances 15 (437 ,683,527) {268,687 B23)
Met dabt 1,004.870,575 1,755,344,568
Share capital 17 845 000,000 045 000,000
Unappropriated profit 3,098,100,358 2,006,403 6506
Total equity 4,043,190,358 3,041,403,506
Capital 5,048.060,933 4,756 748 074
Gearing ratio 19.91% 36.58%

Fair value measurament

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a lisbility in an crderly transaction betwsen
market participants at the measurement date.

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the consolidated financial slatements approximate fair values.
The following table shows assets recognised at fair value, analysed betwaen those whosa falr value Is based on:

Level 1. Quoled prices in active markets Tor identical assets or labilities,

Leval 2: Those invalving inputs othar than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are obsarvable for the assel or liability, aither
direclly (as prices) or indireclly [derived from prices). and

Level 3: Those whose inputs for the assel ar liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Assets measured at fair value

2021 2020
Lewvel 1 Lavel 2 Level 3 Total
(Rupass)
Shart term investmants 502,415,157 - - 502,415,157 241 505082

During the pericd, there were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 fair value measuremeants. and no transfers info and out of
leve! 3 fair value measuroment.

Fimancial instruments which are tradable in an opsn market are revalusd at the market prces prevalling on the consolidated
statement of financal position date.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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DPERATING SEGMENTS
For managament purposes, the Group has determined following reportable operating segmeants on the basis of arsas of
operations | e. enferiainment and news.
Entertainmeant segment is engaged in advarizemant, entertainmant and media marketing.
Mews segment is engaged in broadeasting of news programs,
Entartainmmant News Othars Total
20 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
(Rupesas)
Rovonuy
et revanue from exdemal
Cusbammar ~ASESSERgEE 4135 TTHII]  IE1EIBTE  I0BTTT29H 46633 dEd 01436500 2 JPANTISON6 45 355 FET
Resull
Sagrmant profil | fioss) 2036608677 1 EER061.344 (454 308.334)  (SATABASAY)  (B24BE54E) (111226204 1,510,005, 757 B0, 345,051
Tawatinn (38,031, T5E] 15,821,867
Uralooated incoma /
(ewpanzas) -
Administralive expenses [928,539,710] (58,942 5d)
Other ifciie 162,914,752 278.590077
Gain af sale & pan-curren assal held for sids A4TE BIZ2 913 -
Cithes Expanses [7,301,848]  (262,202.008)
Sham of Prof from Associoe - 122062
Financs oost (101,587,351) _ (2a4.973 345
Profit [ (Lees) for the period 961,192,796 [247 1BE.518]
Chivet infoomstion
Amaorttzation (12 383 B60) (17337435 (5,234,389 (5,187 256) {1y, 178) (#8185} [17,788 46T] (7 6T7.547)
Caprecation el AR, s PN, e (USRS RIS USGITEL UBRTTRRY) o dEREELORN, o JARTELLRES,  (ROC LIRS
Segment agsets 434 454 261 449 468,813 911,621,224 1.033,331,155 943,937 105,855,418 1,347,010, 422 | 606,634,666
Unabocsited Ansels - - B - - 4 2B7 404,849 3 730,504 563
£234.454 361 449461113 911621324 _ 1.053. 331 165 943937 105855410 S.633434341 DG 0124

Segrnen| iabitias 60 B I AR 110106 508 TEZ 190619 ARERE LT 7 672 160 L 1616, 738 87 200 BE 450

Revanue fram three major custormars of the Group are around 56% during he year ended Jume 30, 2021 {2020: 51%).

MUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The total number of employees and average number of employeas & parod end and during tha perind respactively are a5 follows:

2021 2020
wsmeee-— Rupees
Total numbear of amployeas 735 781
Axverage number ol employess durrg the perod 7§E i)

GEMERAL

For betier prasentalion, certein pror year figures have been reclassified consequent o cengin changes in current period presentabion.
Flgures have bean rounded off 1o the nearasl Rupas

DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

Thess financial slalements bave been autharised for issue on Ociober 22, 2021 by the Board of Girectors of the Halding Compeany.

r -";‘ EI' '
5% = s
DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAG SIDDIQUI MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Chairman Chief Financial Officer




FORM OF PROXY

The Company Secrefary,
HUM NETWORK LIMITED
17 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Karuehi

L, Slo. , holder of CNIC Mo, ———— Resident of

——, heing member of HUM NETWORK LIMITED, holding ———— ondinary shares as per Registered Folio [/ CDS
Accoumt Mg, — hL‘.T.[‘J'I}I' appoint Mo hds, ., resident of or
failing hiny' her M, Ms ol

ull wddress) who /e also member(s) ol the Company, @5 my £ our prosy o adend, ael and voue Tor med’ us and on my O our behall

al Annual General Meeting (AGM) of  the Company 1o be held on Tuesday, 23™ day of November, 2021 at 3:00 pm at 1CAFP

Auditorinm, Chartered Accountants Avenue, [CAP, Clifton, Karachi and / or any Adjourniment thereof,

For attending mecting by proxy through electronic means i.c. video-link facility, please register following particulars of proxy:

Ermal 113 Cell Number:
As witness mry . our hand / scal this - dav of 2021,
Signed by in the presence of;
Witness:
I Mame:

Signatuie

Adledress:

CNIC or Passport Mo

2 Maine:

Signature

Adddrgss:

CNIC or Passparl Mo;

Mote:

1. The proxy form, duby completed amd siened, must be received al the Registered Office of the Company, HUM Network Limited. Plot Mo,
10N L, Hassan Al Street, OfF) LE Chundngar Road. Karachi

2. All members are cotitled o attend and vole al the meciing.

3 A member eligible to attend and vote at the Meeting may appoint enother member as his/her proxy to attend, and vote instead of himdher.

4, An instument of promy applicable for the mesting is being provided with the notice sent 10 members, Further copies of the instrument of
proxy msy be obtained from the registered office of the Company during normal office hours

5; An mstrument of procey and the power of atismey or sther authorsty (if &ny ), under which il 18 signed or o notarily cectified copy of such
poveer or authority muse, o be valid, be deposited an the regisiered office not lesa thon 48 hours before the time of the meering,

fr. I a memher q‘lpnlﬂ!x more than one proxy and more than one nstruments of proxy are deposited by a member with the company, all such
instrumenies of prosy shall be rendered invalid.

¥ Members are requested o notify any changes i their addresses immsediatety,

8. CDC secmmt hinlders will further have o foltow the under mentioned guidelines & laid down in circalar 1T dated Januory 26 2000 issued by

the Securitics & Fachange Commission of Pakisan,

For CDC Account Holders/Corporate Entities:

T addition 1o above, the following reqireenients have 1o be mat:
i} The priscy fomm shall be witnessed by two (2] persons whose names, adidiesses and CMIC numbers shall be mentioned on the form,
it} Attested copies of CMIC or passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be fumished with the peoxy Form.
1) The precy =hall produce bis eriginal CNIC or oniginol passport ot the time of meeling.

"l In cage of corporate entity, the Board of Directors” resolunion |/ porwer of attomey with specimen signatore shall be submitcd (unicss it has

been provided eorlier) alongwith proxy form t the Company.
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Wi, jamapunil pk

Be aware, Be alert,

Be safe

Learn about investing at
www.jamapunji.pk

Key features:
g2 Licensed Entities Verification 4l Stock trading simulator

(based on live feed from KSE)

Jamapunji games*® & Knowledge center
- e @ Risk profiler*

i i ml?lat?r @ Financial calculator
ROy Y VR Kicstion m Subscription to Alerts (event
E Insurance & Investment Checklist notifications, corporate and

=t FAQs Answered ragulatun{ actmlns}.
BH Jamapunjl application for
maobile device

e Scam meter®

3} Online Quizzes
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